
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

CABINET AGENDA

Membership:      Councillor Wilson (Chairman)

Councillors Bains, Bowerman, Pike, Turner and Hughes

Meeting: Cabinet

Date: Wednesday 18 December 2019 

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

David Brown
Monitoring Officer

10 December 2019

Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098
Email:  DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk

Page
PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive and record any apologies for absence.

2 Minutes  

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 October 
2019.

1 - 4

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


ii

3 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record any declarations of interest.

4 Chairman's Report  

5 Cabinet Lead Delegated Decisions, Minutes from Meetings etc  

RECOMMENDED that the following Delegated Decision be noted:

(1) Charges for the Collection of Garden Waste

5 - 10

Leader of the Council

6 Corporate Performance report 2019/20 Quarter 2  11 - 34

Cabinet Lead for People and Communications (including 
Legal and Capita)

7 Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21  35 - 40

8 Council Tax Empty Homes Premium  41 - 46

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Lead for Planning, Regeneration 
and Communities

9 Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy  47 - 152

Cabinet Lead for Neighbourhoods, Safety and Enforcement

10 Overnight Parking for Motorhomes on Hayling Island  153 - 198

PART 2 (Confidential items - closed to the public)

11 Exclusion of Public and Press  

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following item of business as:

(a) It was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of 
the public were present during that item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information of the descriptions 
specified in paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) of the Local Government Act 1972; and



iii

(b) In all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Lead for Planning, Regeneration 
and Communities

12 Investment in Additional Car Parking  199 - 206

13 Acquisition for Regeneration  

Exempt report to follow under separate cover.



iv

 GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231
Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to 
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this 
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact 
officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO

No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets. 

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Plaza.

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


v

PROTOCOL AT MEETINGS – RULES OF DEBATE

Rules of Debate

 Councillors must always address each other as “Councillor …” and must 
always address the meeting through the Chairman;

 A motion must relate to the business included on the agenda or accepted by 
the meeting as urgent business

 A motion must be proposed and seconded before it is debated until it is either 
accepted or rejected by a vote; 

 An amendment can be proposed to the original motion and this must be 
seconded before it is debated;

 An amendment cannot be considered if it is inconsistent with an amendment 
previously adopted or repeats an amendment previously rejected;

 The mover of an original motion may, with the consent of the mover of an 
amendment, incorporate an amendment into the motion;

 Only one amendment may be moved at a time. No further amendments can be 
moved until the previous amendment has been dealt with;

 Each amendment must be voted on separately;
 If an amendment is carried, the amended motion becomes the substantive 

motion to which further amendments may be moved;
 If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved to the original 

motion.
 The mover may withdraw an amendment at any time
 After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the amended 

(substantive) motion, before accepting any further amendment, or if there are 
none, put it to the vote.

Voting

 Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the 
Chairman;

 Councillors may not vote unless they are present for the full duration of the 
item;

 Where there is an equality of votes, the Chairman may exercise a second 
(casting) vote;

 Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those 
voting be recorded in the minutes

 A recorded vote will always be taken in respect of approval of the Annual 
Budget

 Councillors may not vote unless they are in the meeting for the full debate on 
any particular item

 A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes



vi

Public 
Service 
Plaza



1
Cabinet

23 October 2019

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Cabinet held on 23 October 2019

Present 

Councillor Wilson (Chairman)

Councillors Bains, Bowerman, Pike, Turner and Hughes

27 Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

28 Minutes

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 September 2019 were agreed 
and signed as a correct record.

29 Declarations of Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

30 Chairman's Report

The Chairman updated Cabinet on his recent work and meetings that he had 
attended on behalf of the Council.

31 Cabinet Lead Delegated Decisions, Minutes from Meetings etc.

Cabinet NOTED the minutes of the Portchester Crematorium Joint 
Management Committee held on 23 September 2019.

32 Recommendations from the Scrutiny Board

At the invitation of the Chairman, Cllr Lloyd introduced the report in her capacity 
as Chairman of the Operations and Place Shaping Board.  She explained that 
the recommendations had been crafted to try and encourage a culture change, 
rather than to penalise.

Whilst Cabinet was supportive of the recommendations, concern was 
expressed about whether a Risk Assessment for Councillors being the point of 
contact had been explored and that residents in receipt of a letter might contact 
the Council directly, thereby increasing officer workload.

It was suggested that a more targeted approach could be considered should 
the proposals to encourage culture change not prove to be successful.

Overall, Cabinet was supportive of the report and RESOLVED that:



2
Cabinet

23 October 2019

(i) a borough-wide communique be issued on the matter; 

(ii) a pilot scheme be agreed, whereby Councillors issue a letter similar to 
the HCC letter set out in Appendix B of the attached Panel’s report in 
areas where vehicles park on grass verges, footpaths, pavements and 
grassed areas, that form part of the highway in the following five roads

(a) Crookhorn Lane
(b) Fir Copse Road
(c) Parkhouse farm Way
(d) Dunsbury Way   
(e) Sutton Road

The letters to be issued in response to a request from a member of the 
public or a Councillor and prioritised in accordance with Annex 1 of the 
Hampshire County Council’s policy statement Parking On Grass 
Verges, Footpaths And Pavements (Appendix C of the attached 
Panel’s report). The letters for the pilot scheme to contain the 
telephone number of a nominated councillor for that road.

(iii) officers be requested to approach Hampshire County Council and the 
Police with a view to using their logos on the letter referred to in 2.1.1 
above;

(iv) the results of the pilot scheme referred to 2.1.1 above be considered by 
the Operations and Place Shaping Board in six months from the date of 
the start of the pilot; 

(v) Hampshire County Council be requested to conduct a repair 
programme to grass verges and grassed areas in named streets in 
each ward forming the pilot scheme, if 2.1.1 above has resulted in the 
cessation of the parking which caused the damage. In the long term 
this repair programme to include all roads where action taken by the 
Council has been successful in stopping vehicles parking on verges 
and grassed areas and pavements/footpaths; and

(vi) Hampshire County Council be requested to undertake any necessary 
consultation prior to trialling different wildlife friendly verge maintenance 
options as part of 2.1.4 above.  This is in an effort to encourage 
pollinators, in line with the Council’s commitment to the environment, 
enhance street scenes and reduce costs by only needing to cut wild 
flowers verges twice a year.

33 Polling Station Review

Cabinet Recommended to Council that the following changes to Polling 
Districts, Polling places and Polling stations within Havant are agreed: -

(i) Emsworth – Havant Road – No’s 1 – 19, 33 – 41 odds, 12 – 16, and 30 
evens – move from EC to EE;



3
Cabinet

23 October 2019

(ii) Emsworth – Convent Lane – No’s 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10 and 12 – move from 
EC to EE;

(iii) Emsworth – Hollybank Lane – move all properties to EB; and

(iv) All other Polling districts and Polling places will remain the same as 2019 
elections.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.49 pm

……………………………

Chairman





Havant Borough Council
Record of Decision

Non-Key Decision

1. TITLE: Charges for Collection of Garden Waste

2. PURPOSE OF DECISION

Decision made by Cabinet Lead under scheme of delegation to Cabinet Leads 
(paragraph 2)

3. DECISION MADE BY: Cabinet Lead for Commercial Services and County Council 
Liaison & Director of Norse South East

4. DECISION:

Agreed the changes as set out in Appendix 1 of the report to the current charges for 
the collection of garden waste, including the early bird discount, the increase is 
calculated on the Consumer Price Index increase by NSE as per the Service 
Agreement.

5. DOCUMENT CONSIDERED: Report

Decision Status Date of Decision Made Call In Expiry Date

For Determination 09 December 2019 16 December 2019





NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Decision by Cabinet Lead for Contracts and Commercial Services

CHARGES FOR THE COLLECTION OF GARDEN WASTE

Report by: Carl Mathias 

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To set the service charges for the collection of garden waste for 2020/21.

2.0 Decision

2.1 To agree the changes as per Appendix 1 to the current charges for the collection 
of garden waste, including the early bird discount, the increase is calculated on 
the Consumer Price Index increase by NSE as per the Service Agreement.

3.0 Issue

3.1 To agree the changes to the charges for 2020/21 in relation to the collection of 
garden waste.

3.2 It is necessary to agree to the garden waste collection service charges in 
advance of the budget due to the:

 success of this service and the increased workload demands placed 
on the Customer Services Team

 need to arrange the necessary operational resources required to 
deliver the service

 the need to compile customer information, route optimisation, bin 
deliveries and bin retrievals

4.0 Implications

4.1 Resources: None

4.2 Legal: None

4.3 Strategy: This will comply with the following strategies:

 To cover the extra cost of providing this service and keeping the 
increase to a minimum so to increase our customer uptake to 



generate more income from this service.  

4.4 Risks: Delaying the process would put significant pressure on the Customers 
Services Team which would have an adverse impact on the services that they deliver 
on behalf of other service areas

5.0 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 — 'confidential' or 
Exempt' Information Indicator: N/A

5.1 This delegated decision contains neither confidential nor exempt information

6.0 Is this an Urgent Decision?

No

Agreed by Councillor Hughes

Dated: 02.12.2019

Agreed and signed off by:

Legal Services: David Brown
Finance: Janette Gill
Head of Service: Claire Hughes  

Contact Officer: Carl Mathias
Job Title: Strategic Procurement Project Manager
Telephone: 01730 234351
E-Mail: Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk

mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Mathias@easthants.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Garden Waste Licence (early bird) 
Charge for full year - no pro rata charges apply

 2019/20

£

Value of 
2% CPI 

£

 2020/21 

£
Early Bird  - per sack (70 litre) 31 1 32
Early Bird  - 1 bin (140 litre) Wheeled bin - full yr , 1 bin 41 1 42
Early Bird  - 1 bin (240 litre) Wheeled bin - full yr , 1 bin 62 1 63
Garden Waste Licence                                                                        
Charge for full year - no pro rata charges apply    

 Per sack (70 litre) 33 1 34
 1 bin (140 litre) Wheeled bin - full yr 43 1 44
1 bin (240 litre) Wheeled bin - full yr 64 1 65
Bins and Sacks    
Additional or Replacement 140l bin 36 1 37
Additional or Replacement 240l bin 41 1 42
Replacement of Garden Waste Sack 5 0 5





1 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SUBJECT   Corporate Performance Report 2019/20 Quarter 2 
 
Report of    Chief Finance Officer 
 
FOR:            CABINET  
 
Key Decision - No 
 
DATE:        18 December 2019 

 
 

Summary 
 

This report provides a strategic overview of performance for Quarter 2 (Q2) 2019/20 in 
relation to the corporate priorities in the Council’s Corporate Plan 
 

 

Officer Recommendations 
 

1. Cabinet is asked to note the revenue and capital forecasts for 2019/20 in the 
Appendices A and B 

2. Cabinet is requested to note the forecasted variance outturn for the period 
3. Cabinet notes that the MTFS at Appendix C 
4. Cabinet notes the current KPI position at Appendix D 
5. Cabinet agree to share the Healthcheck summary position at Appendix E 
 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report provides a strategic overview of the Council’s financial position for Quarter 2 of 

the 2019/20 monitoring cycle, focusing on the Budget variance forecasts and activities to 
deliver the corporate priorities in the Corporate Plan and the supporting actions to be 
agreed. 

 
2. Overview 
 
2.1  The corporate financial monitoring report for Quarter 2 revenue position is attached at 

Appendix A and includes the latest Capital Programme forecast at Appendix B. 
 
2.2 Appendix A outlines the latest forecast for the year which shows a projected deficit of 

£39.9k. The forecast at Quarter 1 was £107k meaning an improvement of £67.1k.   
 
2.3 The main variances against the approved budget are set out below:  
 

• Additional CIL fee income of (£53k) 

• Planning Policy salary savings of £78k and reduced professional fees in Development 
Management 



2 
 

• Additional street furniture costs of £27k 

• Wecock BigLocal reduced project costs forecast not in line with lottery income totalling 
£188.6k 

• Net increase of £104k in B&B and homelessness prevention costs and increased costs 
in Housing Strategy 

• Community Safety - reduced contract costs and other recharge adjustments totalling 
£200k offset by reduced on and off-street parking income of £256k 

• Commercial Development - net salary savings and adjustments to income budgets of 
£10.7k 

• Norse contract - additional external legal advice costs of £70k offset by minor saving of 
£1k. Note that this may be mitigated by future savings, however these still need to be 
quantified 

 
Table 1 is a snapshot of the Quarter 2 projected outturn for the 6 months ending 30th 
September 2019, by Directorate, and an estimate for the full year.  
A summary of all forecast variances is included in Appendix A. 
 
 

TABLE 1  YTD   FULL YEAR 

Corporate 

 
Current 
Budget        
£'000 

Actuals + 
GRN 

Committed     
£'000 

Variance            
£'000 

 
Base 

Budget        
£'000 

 
Current 
Budget   

*      
£'000 

 
Current 
Period 

Forecast       
£'000 

Current 
Period 

Variance 
£'000 

Head of Commercial 
Development 

48 79 31 96 96 156 60 

Head of Environmental 
Services 

2,099 2,007 (92) 4,198 4,198 4,267 69 

Director Commercial 2,147 2,086 (61) 4,294 4,294 4,423 129 

Estates 34 (315) (349) 69 69 158 89 

Head of Community 
Engagement 

674 399 (275) 929 1,139 950 (189) 

Head of Coastal 
Partnership 

130 (311) (441) 139 200 200 0 

Head of Development 43 82 39 85 86 77 (8) 

Head of Housing 654 (300) (954) 569 938 1,042 104 

Head of Neighbourhood 
Support 

(98) (41) 57 (227) (159) (104) 55 

Head of Planning 487 (909) (1,396) 978 978 875 (103) 

Head of Property (683) (1,396) (713) (1,365) (1,426) (1,426) 0 

Head of Regeneration 
(South) 

33 231 199 65 65 65 0 

Director Operations 1,273 (2,560) (3,833) 1,242 1,889 1,837 (52) 

5 Councils Staff and 
Contract 

163 2,135 1,972 804 326 326 0 

Head of 
Communications 

99 131 32 198 198 198 0 

Head of Customer 
Services 

1,715 620 (1,095) 3,430 3,430 3,419 (11) 

Head of Finance 452 375 (77) 426 904 904 0 

Head of Legal 170 96 (74) 342 342 342 0 

Head of Organisational 
Development 

463 326 (137) 927 927 896 (30) 



3 
 

TABLE 1  YTD   FULL YEAR 

Corporate 

 
Current 
Budget        
£'000 

Actuals + 
GRN 

Committed     
£'000 

Variance            
£'000 

 
Base 

Budget        
£'000 

 
Current 
Budget   

*      
£'000 

 
Current 
Period 

Forecast       
£'000 

Current 
Period 

Variance 
£'000 

Head of Programmes 
Redesign 

1,539 914 (625) 2,782 2,932 2,936 4 

Director Strategy & 
Governance 

4,600 4,596 (4) 8,909 9,058 9,021 (37) 

Grand Totals 8,021 4,122 (3,898) 14,445 15,241 15,281 40 

MIRS       -1091       

Other Operating I and E       853       

Grand Totals 8,021 4,122 (3,898) 14,207 15,241 15,281 40 

* 1. Please note the main variance between Base Budget and Current Budget relates to Carry forwards of £796K 
less the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and other Operating I and E entries net £238k 
   2. Reconciliation of Table 1 to Appendix A 5 Councils includes exchequer services and Head of Customer 
Services includes Executive Office 

 
 
3. Issues & Action Points 

 
3.1 There are still issues with the completion of monthly forecasting in terms of engagement.  A 

review is being carried out to ensure that budget holders input their forecasts with a 
potential increase in the current two-day window to allow access to input on a more 
reasonable timescale. 

 
3.2 In order to assist inputters and reviewers in meeting the deadlines, Capita have been 

requested to make two changes to the BDM process relating to the order in which forecasts 
are reviewed, and to allow inputters access to BDM immediately after the previous month’s 
submissions have been made. 

 
3.3 The intention is to give Business Partners more time to work with budget holders on their 

submissions, and to give more time to make any changes. 
 
4. Budgets and Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 
4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy for Havant Borough Council 2019/20 is attached at 

Appendix C and shows the impending budget pressures and gap for next year’s 2020/21 
Budget and the challenges that the Council faces in setting a balanced budget. The budget 
process is currently underway with a peer review taking place to engage Heads of Service 
fully in the process and challenge those that seek to retain budgets that are no longer 
required and/or do not fully address the Council’s priorities. As part of that process, both 
income and expenditure will be scrutinised with a full review of Fees and Charges and a 
review of proposed Business Cases that will generate future potential income streams for 
the Council in line with the Authority’s strategic aims and objectives. The funding gap for 
next year 2020/21 is currently £1.2m. 

 

5. Impact on the Authority’s Borrowing 
 
5.1. The Treasury announced an increase of 1% or 100bps in the PWLB rates effective from the 

9th October 2019.In a letter to the Chief Finance Officers, the Treasury increased the 



4 
 

interest rate on a PWLB 50 year maturity loan by 1% from 1.81% to 2.82%. Our Local 
Authorities are among others that recently increased their use of PWLB in recent months as 
the cost of borrowing had fallen to record lows. However this increase in rates has 
effectively priced the loan facility at 180 basis points above gilts (1.8%). 

 
5.2. HM Treasury has therefore taken the decision to restore interest rates to the levels of that in 

2018 by increasing the margin that applies to new loans from the PWLB by 100bps (one 
percentage point) on top of the usual lending terms. This will impact on Councils with high 
demand for Housing and Regeneration and will effectively price them out of the PWLB 
markets and for their borrowing requirements and lenders 

 
6. Corporate Priorities 
 
6.1  The Corporate Strategy is currently being reviewed and updated with sessions held with 

Cabinet during Q2 and further sessions planned in Q3. The Corporate Strategy will be 
taken through Full Council alongside the 2020-21 budget. Underneath the Corporate 
Strategy will be a detailed Corporate Plan which will provide the necessary activities to 
deliver the Corporate Strategy. Key themes based on Cabinet discussions and a review of 
the evidence and insight have been identified. 

 
6.2  2019-20 performance to date is being monitored through the annual business plans and key 

performance metrics (KPIs). The position of the KPIs at end of Q2 is shown at Appendix D. 
The majority of KPIs are rated as green and on target. A full review of performance 
monitoring is taking place and a number of KPIs will be reviewed and amended to reflect 
best practice and to improve performance reporting. New KPIs will be in place to support 
the new Corporate Strategy and Corporate Plan. 

 
6.3 During Q2 there was particular progress on the following: 
 

• Norse South East began delivering East Hampshire District Council’s Environmental 
Services on 30th September. This was a significant piece of work and mobilisation of the 
service has gone well with over 98.5% of refuse bins collected on schedule. The 
mobilisation has not impacted on Havant Borough Council’s service. A new Delegated 
User Group has been established and will meet regularly. In addition, as part of the 
mobilisation new revised performance measures have been agreed. Although not 
reported this quarter due to the mobilisation, they will be reported in Q3 which will allow 
for a higher degree of oversight on Norse performance. 

• Along with over 150 Local Authorities we have signed up to the Local Digital 
Declaration. This is a commitment to collaborate across Councils on digital initiatives on 
the basis that we share common challenges in designing digital solutions. 

• Full Council has approved a review of the Constitution to be overseen jointly with East 
Hampshire via a sub-committee. Meetings of the sub-committee have been held and an 
update on the approach will be provided to Full Council in Q3. 

• The budget setting process has begun for 2020/21 with Heads of Service taking the lead 
on identifying options for closing the budget deficit as identified in the MTFS. Budget 
update meetings will take place at Cabinet Briefing during December to review 
proposals. 

• The Homelessness Review has progressed during the quarter with priorities identified 
and a draft Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy is due to come to Cabinet for 
approval in Q3. 

• Officers have been focussed on the potential impacts of Brexit on the Authority. During 
Q2 business continuity plans were activated in the event of a no-deal Brexit. In addition, 
a Brexit business survey was conducted looking at the likely impact on local businesses. 



5 
 

Results of the survey have been shared at local and national level and a Brexit Impact 
Statement has been published on our website which provides an analysis of how the 
Council is prepared for Brexit. 

• No new corporate risks have been identified, however, the Corporate Risk Register has 
been reviewed and updates provided on risk mitigations for a number of risks (IT 
provision, contract performance and Medium Term Financial Strategy). 

 
Appendix E contains the Q2 Healthcheck that will be shared with all Councillors. 

 
 
7. Regeneration/Place Making 

 
7.1 The agreed Regeneration Strategy is currently focused on four initial projects: Civic Plaza 

car park, Brockhampton West and Hayling Seafront: 
  

• Civic car park: The OJEU procurement process to secure a viable development 
partner for the Civic Plaza car park has progressed to final submission. Each of the 
proposals from the final two bidders has been evaluated against the criteria and a 
decision will be made on next steps based on the evaluation. 

• Brockhampton West: The site is being marketed for a sale with a fallback position 
being considered for income generation as a solar farm or goose mitigation land. 

• Hayling Seafront: Detailed work has taken place on the submission of an outline 
planning application for Nab Street Car Park. In addition MACE consultants are 
working on proposals for regeneration investment along the seafront with a focus on 
enhancing the commercial offer at West Beach. The report will come forward during 
Q3. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



6 
 

 

APPENDIX A - REVENUE QTR 2 UPDATE

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMENTS RELATING TO MAIN VARIANCES

Head of Planning 978.0 (103.3) Additional CIL Monies of £53K plus additional costs street furniture of £27K less savings in 

Planning Policy of £78K relating to  Salaries and reduced professional fees.

Estates 69.0 89.0 Increased staff costs with vacant posts covered by Interim professionals

Investment & Commercial Prop'y (1,365.0)

Head of Regeneration (South) 65.0

Head of Development 85.0 (8.2) Building Control salary/recharge savings of (£18k) less reduced income of £10k.

Head of Coastal Partnership 139.0

Head of Community Engagement 929.0 (56.0) (188.6) Wecock Big Local -Lottery income received and reduced costs forecast

Head of Housing 569.0 42.0 104.0 Homelessness - Net  anticipated increase in B&B and homelessness prevention costs 

Head of Neighbourhood Support (227.0) 127.0 54.6 Community Safety reduced contract costs and other recharge adjustments totalling £200K 

offset by a reduction in income on parking of £256K

DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 1,242.0 113.0 (52.5)

5 Councils Staff and Contract 326.0

Head of Commercial Development 96.0 60.0 £37K pressures salaries, £23K missing posts and Salary recharge errors

Head of Communications 198.0

Head of Customer Services 3,085.0 10.0 (10.7) Net salary savings and adjustments to income budgets.

Executives Office 345.0

Head of Finance 426.0

Capita Services (Exchequer & Accountancy) 478.0

Head of Legal 342.0

Head of Organisational Development 927.0 (30.2) Savings salaries HR

Head of Programmes Redesign 2,782.0 (56.0) 4.3 Land Charges reduced income offset by  vacant posts

Head of Environmental Services 4,198.0 40.0 69.0 Norse Contract - £70k for external legal advice less other minor savings of £1k.

DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 13,203.0 (6.0) 92.4

Movements In Reserves (1,091.0)

Other Operating Income and Expenditure 853.0

TOTAL CORPORATE BUDGETS (238.0) 0.0 0.0

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 14,207.0 107.0 39.9

Council Tax & Business Rates Income (12,620.0)

General Grants (1,587.0)

FUNDING (14,207.0) 0.0 0.0

(SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0.0 107.0 39.9

SERVICE / DIRECTORATE 

QTR 1 Year End 

Forecast 

Variance to 

Budget

AP6 Year End 

Forecast 

Variance to 

Budget

FULL YEAR 

BUDGET



7 
 

APPENDIX B – CAPITAL PROGRAMME PROGRESS UPDATE QUARTER 2 
 

TABLE 2 YTD 5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

Havant Borough Council  
Capital Programme Summary 
Project 

 
Revised 
Budget  
2019/20      

£'000 

Actuals 
to Qtr 2    
£'000 

Variance            
£'000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Forecast 

£'000 
2020/21 

£'000 
2021/22 

£'000 
2022/23 

£'000 
2023/24 

£'000 Progress Update 

Housing                   

Disabled Facilities Grants 1,628 370 1,258 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 In line with expectations 

IT Equipment                   

Replacement of Noise Monitoring 
Equipment 

11 0 11 11 0 0 0 0 
Budget carry forward 

Processing and Management System 204 0 204 204 0 0 0 0 
Covering various service 
areas 

Asset Maintenance Management System 35 0 35 35 0 0 0 0   

Building Control - Software 32 10 22 32 0 0 0 0 Approved Cabinet  

Southern Coastal 20 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 Approval Partnerships 4 
Authority 

Vehicles and Equipment                   

Pest Control Vehicles 30 0 30 30 0 0 0 0 Delay in replacement 

Land and Buildings                   

HBC Plaza Development Phase 1 3,600 0 3,600 0 0 0 0 0 No spend forecast this year 

Barton Green Pavilion - Grant & s106 0 190 -190 190 0 0 0 0 Suggest s106 funded 

Redevelopment Front Lawn - Grant & s106 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0  

Grand Totals 5,560 570 4,990 2,145 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628   

Projected Capital Financing                   

REFCUS (Revenue funded as Capital 
under Statute) 1,628 370 1,258 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628   

External Grants & Contributions 3,620 190 3,430 205 0 0 0 0   

Use of Specific Reserves 136 10 126 271 0 0 0 0   

Use of Capital Receipts 176   176 41 0 0 0 0   

Total Projected Funding 5,560 570 4,990 2,145 1,628 1,628 1,628 1,628   

 



8 
 

 

 

APPENDIX C - Havant Borough Council      

Medium Term Financial Strategy      

        

      2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

    £M £M £M £M £M 

Director of Regeneration & Place           

  Head of Planning 1.088 0.961 0.970 0.980 0.990 

  Head of Environmental Services 4.266 4.351 4.438 4.527 4.618 

  Head of Coastal Partnership 0.139 0.142 0.145 0.148 0.150 

              

Director of Operations & Neighbourhoods           

  Head of Commercial Development 0.118 0.120 0.123 0.125 0.128 

  Head of Community Engagement 0.933 0.882 0.900 0.918 0.936 

  Head of Development 0.092 0.094 0.096 0.098 0.100 

  Head of Housing 0.537 0.548 0.559 0.570 0.581 

  Head of Neighbourhood Support (0.234) (0.239) (0.243) (0.248) (0.253) 

              

Director of Corporate Services           

  5 Councils Staff and Contract 0.326 0.213 0.217 0.221 0.226 

  Head of Property (1.292) (1.318) (1.344) (1.371) (1.399) 

  Head of Communications 0.199 0.203 0.207 0.211 0.215 

  Head of Customer Services 3.438 3.507 3.577 3.648 3.721 

  Head of Finance 0.886 0.904 0.922 0.940 0.959 

  Head of Legal 0.352 0.359 0.366 0.374 0.381 

  Head of Organisational Development 0.803 0.819 0.835 0.852 0.869 

  Head of Programmes Redesign 2.794 2.850 2.907 2.965 3.024 

Contribution (Surplus) / Deficit 14.445 14.395 14.674 14.957 15.247 

              

  Corporate Pension Costs 0.853 0.853 0.853 0.853 0.853 

  Movement in Reserves (Capital Charges) (1.091) (0.984) (0.984) (0.984) (0.984) 

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 14.207 14.264 14.543 14.826 15.116 

              

  Council Tax (8.324) (8.366) (8.407) (8.449) (8.492) 

  Council Tax Surplus from Prior Year (0.002) - - - - 

  Retained Business Rates (1.951) (1.738) (1.773) (1.808) (1.844) 

  Business Rates Growth (0.981) (0.491) (0.515) (0.541) (0.568) 

  Business Rates Deficit from Prior Year 0.206 - - - - 

  S31 Grants - Small Business Rate Relief (1.568) (1.599) (1.631) (1.664) (1.697) 

  New Homes Bonus (1.587) (0.848) (0.337) (0.092) - 

TOTAL FUNDING (14.207) (13.041) (12.663) (12.554) (12.601) 

              

BUDGET (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0.000 1.223 1.879 2.272 2.515 

 

 

 



9 
 

 

 

 

 

£0.0M

£0.5M

£1.0M

£1.5M

£2.0M

£2.5M

£3.0M

£0.0M

£1.0M

£2.0M

£3.0M

£4.0M

£5.0M

£6.0M

£7.0M

£8.0M

£9.0M

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

B
u

d
ge

t 
D

ef
ic

it

Fu
n

d
in

g 
Fo

re
ca

st
s

MTFS FORECASTS

Council Tax Business Rates New Homes Bonus Budget Deficit



APPENDIX D

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OPERATIONS

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 38 (22)/60

2018/19 11 (60)/71 (8)/79 (15)/94 94

2017/18 52 (28)/80 (18)98 (30)128 128

2016/17 57 (87)/144 (51)/195 (57)/252 252

2019/20 2 (0)/2

2018/19 4 (2)/6 (0)/6 (1)/7 7

2017/18 8 (6)/14 (11)/25 (18).43 43

2016/17 13 (9)/22 (4)/26 (4)/30 30

2019/20 280 (217)/497

2018/19 194 (123)/317 (215)/532 (272)/804 804

2017/18 311 (265)/576 (313)/889 (377)/1266 1266

2016/17 232 (325)/557 (232)/789 (268)/1057 1057

2019/20 27 (28)/55

2018/19 23 (20)/43 (19)/62 (16)/78 78

2017/18 15 (15)/30 (13)/43 (17)/60 60

2016/17 12 (17)/29 (12)/41 (13)/54 54

2019/20 162 (158)/320

2018/19 87 (76)/163 (87)/250 (57)/307 307

2017/18 41 (63.5)/104.5 (71)/175.5 (53)/228.5 229

2016/17 51 (82)/133 (40)/173 (41)/214 214

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E

Number of weeks in B&B 

(cumulative round up full 

weeks)

Year End 

Actual
Year

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action Taken

Number of households in 

B&B (cumulative)

65 (year end 

cumulative)
28 new referrals to B&B.  19 at end of Quarter

Successful homelessness 

prevention outcomes 

(cumulative)

950 (year end 

cumulative)

70

65 (Year end 

cumulative) 

- 

total of 217 new cases opened and worked with (34 DHP).  Worked with an additional 124 

giving general Housing Advice.  Over 900 visitors to Housing - 

 - none needed as very low

Performance

Indicator

A

B

C

D

Affordable homes delivered 

(cumulative) - Social 

rented, Affordable rented, 

First buy (shared 

ownership)

Homelessness 

acceptances (cumulative)

Number 

Page 1 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OPERATIONS

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Year End 

Actual
Year

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action Taken

70 Target still needs to be changed -

Performance

Indicator

A

Affordable homes delivered

(cumulative) - Social 

rented, Affordable rented, 

First buy (shared

ownership)

2019/20 £354459.2
(£414227.56)/£7

68686.76

2018/19 £428,102 £500,947 £358,998 £367,860 £1,655,907

2017/18 £322,591 £343,408 £338,983 £285,340 £1,290,322

2016/17 £289,105 £393,308 £249,248 £260,093 £1,191,754

2019/20 £58854
(£68160)/£12701

4

2018/19 £66,656 £49,450 £66,528 £51,170 £233,804

2017/18 £80,404 £51,594 £40,547 £34,910 £207,455

2016/17 £84,024 £64,449 £62,958 £65,900 £277,331

2019/20 74.47

2018/19 59.60 55.10 69.20 54.90 60%

2017/18 83.40 71.00 65.70 68.70 72%

2016/17 60.77 72.40 57.53 76.47 72.46%

£1,115,000 (year end 

cumulative)

Income from pay & display 

machines (cumulative 

£value)

£223,000 (year end 

cumulative)

A

B

C FPN Collection Rate (%) 60%

P
a
rk

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Income from Penalty 

Charge Notices 

(cumulative £value)

Page 2 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OPERATIONS

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Year End 

Actual
Year

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action Taken

70 Target still needs to be changed -

Performance

Indicator

A

Affordable homes delivered

(cumulative) - Social 

rented, Affordable rented, 

First buy (shared

ownership)

2019/20 3 2

2018/19 4 4 5 3 16

2017/18 7 3 8 3 21

2016/17 9 5 9

2019/20 100 100

2018/19 100 100 80 100.00 95%

2017/18 100 100 100 100.00 100%

2016/17 100 100 100 88.9 97%

2019/20 27 33

2018/19 27 35 43 40 145

2017/18 36 45 46 45 172

2016/17 47 41 29

2019/20 92.6 90.91

2018/19 77.8 77.1 90.7 82.50 82.0

2017/18 97.2 93.3 93.5 86.67 92.7

2016/17 97.9 100.0 97.6 93.1 97.2

2019/20 181 115

2018/19 128 141 155 115 539

2017/18 143 150 124 167 584

2016/17 165 125 133

2019/20 92.27 95.65

2018/19 86.72 92.20 94.84 95.65 92.35

2017/18 98.60 94.00 95.97 94.12 95.67

2016/17 98.80 98.18 100.00 97.74 98.70

2019/20 99.53 99.33

2018/19 100.00 99.44 100.0 100.00 99.86%

2017/18 100.00 100.00 99.4 99.40 99.70%

2016/17 99.55 98.64 99.42 96.49 99.52

A

Major planning apps 

decided in the quarter 

(Number)

Number 

B

Major planning apps 

decided within 13 weeks or 

agreed extension (%)

60%

Minor planning apps 

decided in the quarter 

(Number)

Number

F

Minor planning apps 

decided within 8 weeks or 

agreed extension (%)

65%

E

I

Other planning apps 

decided in the quarter 

(Number)

Number

J

Other planning apps 

decided within 8 weeks or 

agreed extension (%)

80%

O

Percentage of all 

applications determined in 

26 weeks  (actual) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

98%

Page 3 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OPERATIONS

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Year End 

Actual
Year

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action Taken

70 Target still needs to be changed -

Performance

Indicator

A

Affordable homes delivered

(cumulative) - Social 

rented, Affordable rented, 

First buy (shared

ownership)

2019/20 73.8 58.54

2018/19 59.1 73.5 90.2 82.86 76.4

2017/18 96.3 57.0 not supplied 81.7 64.8

2016/17 79.4 84.1 79.3 100.0 85.1

2019/20 0.0 0

2018/19 2.17 2.17 2.13 2.13 2.15

2017/18 2.04 2.38 2.08 2.17 2.17

2016/17 0 1 0 0 1.0

2019/20 0.7 0.57

2018/19 0.48 0.41 0.48 0.64 0.50

2017/18 0.42 0.49 0.41 0.42 0.44

2016/17 0.50 0.47 0.00 0.62 0.40

2019/20 £64791
(£50211)/£11500

2

2018/19 £27,544 £20,026 £30,211 £109,810 £187,591

2017/18 £18,612 £25,103 £17,439 £30,140 £91,294

2018/19

2017/18 not supplied not supplied not supplied not supplied

2016/17 £10,387.00 £13,494.00 £1,903.00 £503 £503

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C

Property debt: rent arrears 

over 90 days for all 

tenanted commercial 

property (£000s)

£50,000

Number of discharge of 

condition apps determined 

within 8 weeks (%)

80% Discharge of conditions post has been vacant for some time - now filled 

Q

Number of Major 

application decisions 

allowed on appeal (%)

Less than 20%

R

Number of Minor and Other 

application decisions 

allowed on appeal (%)

Less than 30%

P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

P
o

li
c
y

A

CIL Administration and 

Monitoring  fees collected 

(cumulative)

£22,000

P

Page 4 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS COMMERCIAL

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 92.68

2018/19 96.10 92.85 83.75 88.89 90.40

2017/18 100.00 93.22 87.95 87.95 92.28

2016/17 97.89 96.94 97.35 not supplied 97.39

Year End 

Actual

Performance

Indicator
Target

2019/20
Year Q2 Commentary/Action Taken

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

A

Building Regulations – Full 

Plan applications checked 

within 15 days (cumulative)

90%

Page 5 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS STRATEGY GOVERNANCE

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 136 147

2018/19 189 189 159 200 737

2017/18 139 159 157 192 647

2016/17 121 (138) / 259 (127) / 386 (150) / 536 536

2019/20 90% 91.84%

2018/19 89.90 87.30 88.10 80.00 86.33

2017/18 97.80 94.30 91.70 85.90 92.43

2016/17 93.39 73.91 93.70 91.33 88.08

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action TakenYear

Year End 

Actual

Performance

Number of FOI requests 

received
Number 

L
e

g
a

l 
&

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Indicator

B

FOI requests completed 

in 20 day statutory 

deadline (%)

95% (quarter actual) 

A

Page 6 of 7



14/11/2019 (15:27)

HBC PERFORMANCE INDICATORS STRATEGY GOVERNANCE

Q2 '?' = No response to data requests (Quarter Actual) / Cumulative

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target

2019/20
Q2 Commentary/Action TakenYear

Year End 

Actual

Performance

Number of FOI requests

received
Number

L
e

g
a

l
&

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Indicator

A

2019/20 29.47 57.08

2018/19 28.9 56.47 84.44 96.82 96.8

2019/20 27.9 55.22

2018/19 27.59 53.98 83.88 99.2 99.2

2019/20 5.46 5.12

2018/19 13.89 13.57 12.05 9.1 12.2

2019/20 13.95 9.86

2018/19 26.58 23.59 21.18 18.96 22.6

Average processing time 

– Housing Benefit & 

Council Tax Benefit 

Change Events (days) 

cumulative

7 days 

D

Average processing time

– Housing Benefit & 

Council Tax Benefit New 

Claims (days) cumulative

13 days 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 &

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

A

Council tax cash 

collection rate cumulative 

(%)

97.2% (cumulative 

year end) 

B

Non domestic rates cash 

collection rate cumulative 

(%)

98.8% (cumulative 

year end)

C

Page 7 of 7



2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck 

Executive Summary 

This report covers progress during Q2 2019-20 themed around the Council’s mission. 

The report is split into sections: our place, our customers, our finances, our staff and governance. It is a 
highlight report intended to capture the key activities during Q2. The senior management team is provided 
with detailed reports on progress against key performance metrics and business plan targets throughout the 
year. This report is shared with all Councillors via the Councillor Newsletter. 

Q2 2019-20 key headlines: 

• Norse South East began delivering East Hampshire District Council’s Environmental Services on
30th September. This was a significant piece of work and mobilisation of the service has gone well
with over 98.5% of refuse bins collected on schedule.  The mobilisation has not impacted on Havant
Borough Council’s service.

• Along with over 150 Local Authorities we have signed up to the Local Digital Declaration. This is a
commitment to collaborate across Councils on digital initiatives on the basis that we share common
challenges in designing digital solutions.

• Full Council has approved a review of the Constitution to be overseen jointly with East Hampshire
via a sub-committee. Meetings of the sub-committee have been held and an update on the
approach will be provided to Full Council in Q3.

• The Homelessness Review has progressed during the quarter with priorities identified and a draft
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy due to come to Cabinet for approval in Q3.

• Officers have been focused on the potential impacts of Brexit on the Authority. During Q2 business
continuity plans were activated in the event of a no-deal Brexit. In addition, a Brexit business survey
was conducted looking at the likely impact on local businesses. Results of the survey have been
shared at local and national level and a Brexit Impact Statement has been published on our website
which provides an analysis of how the Council is prepared for Brexit.

Appendix E



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 2 

 

  
 

Place 

How have we improved our place and what has been the impact of our place work? 

• Local Plan: Resource gaps and additional issues (nutrient neutrality) arising in the meantime mean that 

proposed submission has had to be delayed until Q4 2019-20 

 

 

REGENERATION  

• Civic Plaza: OJEU procurement process for a viable development partner for the Civic Plaza car park site 

progressed to final two developers stage. The final proposals are being evaluated and a decision made 

against the evaluation criteria on whether to proceed any further 

• MACE Masterplan instructed to develop Hemingway vision for West Beach to Eastoke Corner 

• Bid submitted to High Street Fund and support given to Transforming Cities bid 

• Draft Lobbying Strategy being developed 

PROMOTION OF HAVANT BOROUGH 

• Officers attended MIPIM UK, a national property investment conference, in mid-October. Whilst investment 

is slowing down over wider uncertainties, there is still finance looking for a safe long-term home, some of 

which will head out of the seemingly saturated London market. This could be an opportunity for the 

promotion of Havant once we have some certainty over our town centre position. 

 
 

Service ID Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 100 100

2018/19 100 100 80 100.00 95%

2017/18 100 100 100 100.00 100%

2016/17 100 100 100 88.9 97%

2019/20 92.6 90.91

2018/19 77.8 77.1 90.7 82.50 82.0

2017/18 97.2 93.3 93.5 86.67 92.7

2016/17 97.9 100.0 97.6 93.1 97.2

2019/20 92.27 95.65

2018/19 86.72 92.20 94.84 95.65 92.35

2017/18 98.60 94.00 95.97 94.12 95.67

2016/17 98.80 98.18 100.00 97.74 98.70

2019/20 99.53 99.33

2018/19 100.00 99.44 100.0 100.00 99.86%

2017/18 100.00 100.00 99.4 99.40 99.70%

2016/17 99.55 98.64 99.42 96.49 99.52

Year End 

Actual
Year

Target

2019/20

Performance

Indicator

B

Major planning apps 

decided within 13 weeks 

or agreed extension (%)

60%

F

Minor planning apps 

decided within 8 weeks or 

agreed extension (%)

65%

J

Other planning apps 

decided within 8 weeks or 

agreed extension (%)

80%

O

Percentage of all 

applications determined in 

26 weeks  (actual) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

98%



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 3 

 

  
 

Customers 
In assessing our progress with respect to customers, there are a number of key considerations: are our customers happy 

with the services they are receiving, are we meeting their needs and are we achieving the desired channel shift?  

Helping our vulnerable customers 

 
• The Homelessness 

Strategy will come 
forward in Q3 with 
associated action plan. 
Councillor briefing 
sessions will also be held 
to discuss work ongoing 
with respect to homelessness alongside the emerging Strategy. 

 

Channel Shift & Communications 

 

 

Community 

 PHYSICAL ACTIVITY INITIATIVE  

WORKING WITH INACTIVE WOMEN 
AGED 35-54 WITH SESSIONS AT 
HORIZON LEISURE TRUST IN 
HAVANT AND WATERLOOVILLE 

 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE 
LEVY 

REVIEWING BIDS IN RELATION TO 
PLAY, SPORT AND LEISURE. WILL 
ASSIST WITH RECOMMENDATION IN 
OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND 
RECREATION STRATEGY 

 HEALTH AND WELLBEING  

NUMBER OF MEETINGS TAKEN 
PLACE TO DISCUSS 
REESTABLISHMENT OF HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP 

 DEMENTIA 

MONTHLY DEMENTIA AWARENESS 
SESSIONS CONTINUE TO BE HELD AT 
PLAZA. 

 HAVANT LOTTERY 

FURTHER FUNDING CONTINUES TO 
BE AWARDED TO A NUMBER OF 
PROJECTS SUPPORTED BY THE 
HAVANT LOTTERY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

When compared to the same period from last year (2018), 

the number of website visits has increased by 4,945 (3%) 

and the number of pages viewed has increased by 28,224 

(6.9%). 

Major focus for Q2 has been on regeneration, 

which has included the following:  

 

• Promotion of Hampshire Sports 

Conference 

• Get-up and Go promotional activities 

• Community Lottery 

• Promoting our approach to Nutrient 

Neutrality 

• Internal communications through staff 

newsletter (readership at 62%) and 

Councillor newsletter (readership at 58%) 

Total social media 

following: 

Facebook – 3,393 (+248)  

Instagram – 437 408 (+119)  

LinkedIn – 568 543 (+78)  

Twitter – 3,359 (+73) 

YouTube – 10 (+1) 

 affordable homes delivered 

in Q2 with total of 60 delivered to date 

against year target of 100 

 homelessness prevention  

outcomes delivered to date against a 

target of 950 for the year 



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 4 

 

  
 

Finance 
Are we on target for a balanced budget ? The following page details financial progress against our budget. 

Quarter 2 2019-20 

At Quarter 2 there is a forecast deficit of £39,900, without transfers from reserves which would take place at year end. 

The current deficit is driven primarily by a number of areas as detailed below. This position is an improvement against 

the Q1 position when the deficit was £107,000. 

The budget setting process has begun for 2020-21 with Heads of Service taking the lead on identifying options for closing 
the budget deficit as identified in the MTFS. Budget update meetings will take place at Cabinet Briefing during 
December to review proposals. 
 

Forecast variances from budget 

Key movements against the approved budget are set out below: 

· Additional CIL monies and savings in Planning Policy (vacancies) 

 

· Increase in staffing costs in Estates 

 

· Reduced income in Building Control 

 

· Increase in B&B costs  

 

· Land Charges reduced income 

 

· Increase in legal costs with respect to the new Norse contract 

 

· Salary savings in various services  

 

 

 

 

A detailed review of the current establishment is being undertaken to determine 
organisational needs going forward and to help inform the review of the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy and budget setting for 2020-21 

 

 



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 5 

 

  
 

Staff 
In assessing our progress with respect to our staff, consideration is given to how our staff are performing and whether we 

have the right staff and skills to deliver our strategy. 

Organisational Development Strategy  

• A new provider of Occupational Health services, Cordell Health, has been selected for the Council through a 

procurement process. The service is supported by an online referral system, enabling managers to create and 

track referrals for employees. In-house HR advice will be provided to manage wellbeing and absence cases. 

• An Employee Assistance Programme has been secured for the Council through a procurement process. Health 

Assured will provide a range of services including telephone and face to face counselling. The EAP and Cordell 

Health will work in a collaborative way to support the council. 

• Procurement of a provider of learning and development services is being finalised. The successful bidder will be 

providing a comprehensive e-learning suite of courses to ensure the council meets mandatory training 

obligations, as well as a full Learning Management System which will enable employees to source, book and track 

learning events. The LMS will also provide the council with data in relation to learning and development to inform 

future decision-making. 

• The corporate induction for new employees has been successfully revised to ensure an session is provided for new 

employees. The current format will be extended to cover all essential governance matters in the New Year. 

• Independent Remuneration Panel for Councillor allowances – the data from the questionnaire sent to all 

Councillors has been collated and forwarded to the panel to inform their deliberations. The panel will soon be 

arranging interviews with Councillors to further inform the recommendations of their report, which will be 

considered by Council in early 2020. 

• Capita are now implementing the agreed changes to the payroll in line with the 2019-20 pay award and it is 

anticipated that this can be applied in November pay and any backdated pay due to staff included. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SICKNESS HAD DECREASTED SLIGHTLY AGAINST THE FIGURE REPORTED IN THE PREVIOUS QUARTER. 

TURNOVER HAS RISEN SLIGHTLY (4%). ORGANISATION HAS 15 VACANCIES OUT TO ADVERT AT END OF 

REPORTING QUARTER 

SICKNESS HBC Q2: 1.3  DAYS*  

SICKNESS PUBLIC: 2.2 DAYS 

SICKNESS PRIVATE: 1.8 DAYS 

* Management sickness information provided to teams in order to manage sickness in their areas. 

Further work is taking place with Capita in order to improve sickness management reporting in 

order to review any potential trends. 



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 6 

 

  
 

Governance 
HEALTH & SAFETY 

Mandatory objective added to the Appraisal document for health and safety. Campaign currently being worked on with 

Communications to remind colleagues that health and safety is everyone's responsibility. Ongoing monitoring of 

contractors for compliance with the HSAWA.  

EMERGENCY PLANNING & BUSINESS CONTINUITY  

A recent audit of BC plans identified a number were out of date and work has been progressing to ensure that this issue 

was addressed. All teams were asked to review their plans and update and this has been progressing well. Each team were 

also provided with an exercise template to test the content of their plan and to ensure they were robust. Completed 

exercises are currently being reviewed. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE BOARD & RISK 

The Councils’ risk appetite has been set at 15; i.e. the maximum level of residual risk which it is prepared to accept is a risk 

score of 15. 

Significant Corporate Risks 
HB6 - MTFS, HB8 – Short term IT provision, HB9 – Long Term IT provision, HB11 – 
Manpower/Resources, HB13 – Capita Business Model 

Summary of Residual Scores for 'Live' Corporate Risks - Q2  

Im
p

a
c
t 

Very High 5           

High 4     
HB2, HB7, 

HB10 

HB6, HB8, 
HB9, HB11, 

HB13 
  

Medium 3   
HB1 

(Waste), 
HB3, HB5 

HB12, 
HB14, 

HB15, HB17 

HB1 
(Capita), 

HB16 
  

Low 2   HB4       

Negligible 1           

   1 2 3 4 5 

   Very Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Very Likely 

   Likelihood 
        

Colour Score Detail 

Red 
16 and 
above 

This is in excess of the Council's risk appetite.  Action is needed to 
redress, with regular monitoring.  In exceptional circumstances 
residual risk in excess of the risk appetite can be approved if it is 
agreed that it is impractical or impossible to reduce the risk level 
below 16.  Such risks should be escalated through the management 
reporting line to Corporate Governance Board. 

Amber 5 to 15 Likely to cause the Council some difficulties - six monthly monitoring. 

Green 1 to 4 Low risk.  Monitor as necessary. 



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 7 

 

  
 

 

HB8
IT Provision: 

short term
SERVICE Technological

Failure by the IT provider (Capita) to 

provide good IT service to staff which 

results in a considerable regular downtime 

of IT leading to slower service provision.  

We become unable to provide a reliable 

and timely service to our customers.  

10/04/18
Sue 

Parker
4 5 20

1. Weekly IT Ops Board  (every Monday) tracks progress 

on major issues and monitors progress. Weekly RAG 

progress score provided on all P1 and P2 calls from IT 

service centre.                       

2. Busines Solutions continue to work with Capita and the 

teams to help address any issues identified.                                 

3. Contractual triggers if escalation of incidents.                      

4. VMWare issue escalated                                   

Reduction in P1 

incidents through 

monitoring of 

Capita KPIs

4 4 16 5
All 

Retained 

Services

Issues with CVW 

continue, and show 

no sign of resolution; 

exascerbated now 

with issues about 

Vmware platform. 

Therefore likelihood 

of failure increased 

since last report

HB6

Medium Term 

Financial 

Strategy 

(MTFS)

FINANCIAL Economic

The ongoing viability of the authority being 

able to manage a balanced budget. Current 

MTFS highlights a shortfall of £7.8M over 

the course of the MTFS

28/11/16
Lydia 

Morrison
4 5 20

1. MTFS is reviewed each year as part of budget setting 

exercise. Budget challenge sessions held each year to 

scrutinise future business plans and income/savings.

2. Full MTFS review to take place in 2019/20 to begin in 

Q1 in particular to understand forward costs of staffing and 

major contracts.

3. Identify and manage in-depth service budgets 

income/expenditure to rebalance budget

The authority has 

a balanced 

budget

4 4 16 4 ALL 

Services 

CIPFA engaged to 

undertake a 

benchmarking 

exercise and the 

authority is beginning 

the MTFS work at 

early stage during 

2019-20 for 2020-21 

budget setting 

process

Date 

Added

R
is

k
 ID

Risk Title Type Category
Identification of areas where there are 

significant risks

Risk 

Owner

Original 

Assessment
Planned Mitigation Actions 

Mitigation Success 

Factor

Control 

Assessment
Financial 

assessment of 

potential losses.

Current 

Service 

hotspots

Reasons for changes 

since last reviewL I P L I P

D
ire

c
tio

n

HB9
IT Provision: 

long term
SERVICE Technological

Failure by the IT provider (Capita) to deliver 

on long term digital vision and aspirations 

of Council as per the contract in particular 

the strategy for 'digital by default' and 

contract requirements

10/04/18
Sue 

Parker
5 5 25

1. Ensure Capita are held to contractual responsibilities 

regarding digital strategy              

2. Progression of a Digital Strategy for the Council with 

linkages to IT Capita 

3. Renegotiation of IT contract in order to deliver required 

digital vision       

Clear vision and 

links to Council 

aspiration of 

'digital by 

default' Approval 

of Council's 

Digital Strategy - 

October 2019

4 4 16 4

Additional costs 

of providing 

digital solutions 

outside of 

contracted 

arrangements

All 

Retained 

Services

HB11
Manpower/ 

Resources 
SERVICE Organisational

Shortage of employees and/or 

appropriately skilled employees, leading to 

organisation being unable to deliver key 

priorities or regular services.

10/04/18
Caroline 

Tickner
4 5 20

1. Review of quarterly turnover statistics to higlight any 

potential issues and monitoring of staff performance 

through PDRs

2. Improve recruitment service including the launching on 

internal system for specialist recruitment

3. Recruitment and benefits of working for the Council 

space publicised on website 'Bright Stars campaign' to 

attract right talent http://www.easthants.gov.uk/jobs-and-

careers                                                                                                                                                                                                

4. Use of Indeed as standard advertising tool

Little or no 

disruption to our 

service delivery 

4 4 16 5

Cost of replacing 

key employees 

usually lead to 

under £10k 

recruitment costs.

All 

Retained 

Services

Further issues 

reported with Capita 

recruitment system - 

process and visibility. 

Capacity/resource 

levels for in-house 

solution. 

HB13 Capita SERVICE Economic

Changing business model of Capita not 

aligned to the current 5-Councils contract 

resulting:

1) Capita in-ability to deliver contract 

requirements

2) Quality of service not as expected 

resulting in increasing costs to rectify

3) Partners not acting/complying with IAA

4) Disputes as to scope of contract

5) Services being removed increasing 

transition costs

08/07/18
Gill 

Kneller
5 5 25

1) Robust contract monitoring to ensure Capita delivers 

including reneogtiation of aspects of services where 

appropriate

2) Measures put in place to deal with quality issues, 

increased support within Council in particular around IT and 

HR

3) Regular meetings of s151 and MOs across the 

Partnership to ensure unified approach

4) Dispute log maintained and legal advice sort where 

necessary

5) Review of services within contracts and potential options 

- process agreed with Capita 

Agreed way 

forward with 

Capita reflecting 

the requirements 

of Council and 

minimal 

business 

disruption

4 4 16 4

Contract savings 

may not be 

realised as per 

the agreed 

contract

Services 

within 

Capita 

contract

Work programme in 

place covering all 

mitigations and being 

monitored and 

collated by Head of 

Strategic 

Commissioning



 2019-20 Q2 Healthcheck | 8 

 

  
 

 

In addition, Q2 updates were not reported for 6 Business Plans 

Directorate Action Outcomes Q1 Q2 On Target? 

Corporate Services Drive transformational 
programmes across the council 

Delivery of programme milestones for 
major projects - environmental services, 
design, system and implementation 
programme and other corporate 
initiatives 

Building Control Project progressing 
well in Implementation Phase for the 
new IT system and related processes. 
Planned 'Go-Live' September 2019.  
Planning, Enforcement, Arboriculture 
and Land Charges Project has moved 
into Design Phase 2 (detailed design) - 
'to-be' processes being developed; 
using information obtained from 
Customer Journey Mapping. 
Environmental Health Project is at the 
final stage of Design Phase 1 (high level 
design), where the service's vision and 
high level objectives from implementing 
a new system has been captured. 
Projects around the Local Land and 
Property Gazetteers and Document 
Management Systems to follow, 
informed and impacted by the 
procurement decisions from the other 
projects - effective management of 
these links and dependencies 
continues. 

Building Control - go-live slippage into Qtr 3 
due to User Acceptance Testing (UAT) 
highlighting need for further design to manage 
data issues. Other service areas such as 
Planning and Enforcement remain in detailed 
design phase, which is in line with plan. 
Programme Manager now also taking into 
account wider transformational objectives for 
these and other regulatory services. Quarter 3 
will see adjustments on the programme in line 
with these objectives. 

Amber 

Corporate Services Design and delivery of digital 
customer access strategy 
including workplan and 
investment requirements 

Viable digital route map enabling 
transformational initiatives 

Draft digital strategy to be considered by 
EB early July, as part of wider 
transformation programme which will 
inform investment plans 

Draft digital strategy considered at EB as 
planned, with direction of travel approved in 
principle. The proposed strategy and 
associated delivery plan will be presented to 
EB early in Qtr 3. Meanwhile, the Council has 
signed up to the Local Digital Declaration along 
with over 150+ local authorities. In association 
with this, a bid has been submitted to 
undertake a discovery project on the cultural 
aspects of digital transformation. Outcome of 
the bid anticipated to be early Qtr 3. 

Amber 

Corporate Services Work with IT supplier to ensure 
IT services are resilient and in 
line with business needs 

Measured through contract KPIs Weekly IT Ops Board continues, 
alongside the newly created Service 
Improvement Group both forums are 
used to track issues. Priority 1 issues 
have reduced in recent months, 
however, project work is often impacted 
by slow responses by IT provider. 

The status of the service remains unchanged 
since Qtr 1. Weekly IT Ops Board continues. 
Service Improvement Group meeting held in 
September. A measure of delivery in Qtr 3 will 
be the safe deployment of c100 devices as part 
of Brexit contingencies. 

Amber 

Corporate Services Provide project management 
services to other Councils where 
capacity allows 

Income generation through provision of 
services to others 

2 commissions have been ongoing in 
Qtr 1. One has now been ended, due to 
the need to retain capacity in house to 
deliver against our own transformation 
plans 

Single commission continued throughout Qtr 2, 
and will progress into Qtr 3. No new 
opportunities in the pipeline, and this hasn't 
been a proactive action for the service at this 
time. 

Amber 

Corporate Services With Digital Design, review 
workstyle definitions for services 
to inform digital investment and 
workspace plan 

Council use of space is optimised to be 
tracked via Workspace Plan, once 
approved 

Workstyle review is in planning stage, 
and will be delivered in Qtr 2 to inform 
digital investment, digital delivery plans 
and accommodation needs 

Scope of workstyle review defined as People 
(skills and culture), Process (how we operate in 
the workspace) and Technology (digital tools 
required to be effective). Bid submitted to Local 
Digital Fund to undertake discovery project on 
digital workforce and mindset shift. Remaining 
elements will be wrapped around this, should it 
be successful. Preparations for survey and 
local staff engagement in planning phase. 

Amber 

Corporate Services Progress Legal Services review Legal services being delivered 
differently and savings secured 

Plans in place to relocate team to one 
location (Plaza) will be complete early in 
Q2. Meetings held with respect to Iken 
usage and will ensure use for whole 

New JDs being drafted and team structure 
being realigned. Ensure legal instruction form 
is used to initiate work. Further work required 
on legal support to corporate projects. Team 

Amber 



NON EXEMPT

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET 18th December 2019

Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21
Report by Brian Wood – Head of Customer Services

FOR DECISION

Portfolio: Cabinet Lead for People and Communications – Cllr Lulu Bowerman

Key Decision: Yes

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To agree the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2020/21

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 That Cabinet recommend to Council the following:

1) that the 2019/20 Council Tax Support Scheme is retained for 2020/21 but with 
the following amendments:

(i) the Allowances and Premiums used in determining entitlement for working 
age claims are changed as set out in paragraph 5.3 of this report

(ii) the Non-Dependant deductions used in determining entitlement for working 
age claims are changed as set out in paragraph 5.4 of this report.

2) that the necessary amendments are made to the Council Tax Support Scheme 
document and that it is then published in accordance with Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 Section 13A(2)

3.0 Summary 

3.1 The localised Council Tax Support scheme was introduced by the Local 
Government Finance Act 2012 to replace the national Council Tax Benefit 
Scheme from 1/4/13

3.2 The legislation imposes a duty on each Council to adopt a scheme by 11 March 
each year to apply for the forthcoming financial year

3.3 This report puts forward a recommended approach for 2020/21.

.



NON EXEMPT
4.0 HBC’s current scheme

4.1 HBC’s current scheme is based on the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government (MHCLG) default scheme (which mirrored the former council tax 
benefit scheme) but with a reduced maximum amount of support available for 
certain working age households.

4.2 The scheme requires a minimum payment of 8.5% of the council tax liability from 
all working age households apart from those in receipt of disability related 
incomes. For these households, the scheme therefore offers a slightly reduced 
level of support compared to the former council tax benefit scheme.

4.3 Scheme expenditure and caseload has reduced since 2013/14 mainly because 
of the improving economic situation;

Council Tax support scheme caseload and expenditure 

Cases in payment 
on 31 March

Amount of 
benefit paid 
out

note

2012/13 11,118 £9,174,118 last year of council 
tax benefit

2013/14 10,569 £8,632,007
2014/15  10,059 £8,207,832
2015/16 9,788 £7,916,713
2016/17 9,654 £8,013,050
2017/18 9,298 £8,341,559 
2018/19 9,123 £8,392,266
2019/20 8,922 £8,534,816 Actual as at 31/07/19
2020/21 8,872 £8,802,930 Estimated cost for 

the year

5.0 2020/21 scheme and Hardship Fund

5.1 The estimated cost of retaining the current scheme for 2020/21 is £8,802,930.
.

This estimate assumes that the current caseload pattern continues for the 
remainder of 2019/20 and through 2020/21. The estimate also takes account of 
the possibility that the relevant precepting authorities will levy the same increase 
in their Council Tax precept from 1 April 2020 as was levied in 1 April 2019.   

5.2 Uprating – this is the process under which various elements (Personal 
Allowances, Premiums and Non-Dependant deductions) used in the calculation 
of entitlement under the scheme are altered to reflect inflation and changes to the 
level of pensions and other Benefits.

5.3 Personal Allowances and Premiums – the arrangements for pensioners within 
our scheme are prescribed by the MHCLG and they will be advising Councils of 
the new figures that must be included in our scheme for 2020/21. However, for 
working age claims it is for the Council to decide. The Personal Allowances and 



NON EXEMPT
Premiums in our current scheme match those that are used to calculate Housing 
Benefit for working age claimants. To retain this consistency with the Housing 
Benefit scheme, it is recommended that the Council adopts the same figures that 
the DWP will be specifying for the Housing Benefit scheme for 2020/21. The 
DWP will advise councils of these in due course but it is expected that the DWP 
will continue to freeze the personal allowances and premiums for 2020/21.

5.4 Non-Dependant deductions – our current Council Tax Support scheme includes 
the same levels for non-dependant deductions for both pension age and working 
age claims. The MHCLG will be prescribing the revised non dependant deduction 
levels for pension age claims and to retain consistency, it is recommended that 
the revised figures set by the MHCLG for pension age claims for 2020/21 are 
also adopted for working age claims for 2020/21. The MHCLG will advise 
councils of the amounts in due course

5.5 To continue a Council Tax Support Hardship Fund to support the most vulnerable 
Council Tax Support customers to:

(iI) Allow a short period of time to adjust to unforeseen short-term financial 
circumstances whilst the applicant seeks alternative solutions.

(iII) Support the applicant in managing their finances
(iIII) Help the applicant through personal circumstances and difficult events that 

affect their finances
(iIV) Prevent exceptional hardship
(iV) Support those who are trying to help themselves financially 

  The expected cost would be £5,000.  

6.0 Implications 

6.1 Resources: 

Considering the assumptions outlined in paragraphs 5.1 – 5.4, the estimated cost 
of retaining the current scheme for 2020/21 is £8,802,930. Retaining the current 
scheme would require no increase in staffing or other administration costs

It is planned to carry out a full review of the Council Tax Support scheme to 
introduce a simplified banded Council Tax Support scheme in readiness for 
2021/22.

6.2 Legal:

The Council has a statutory duty to operate a Council Tax Support scheme. Any 
changes to the current scheme for 2020/21 must be adopted by full Council by 
11/03/2020.



NON EXEMPT
6.3 Strategy: 

The Council Tax Support scheme provides financial assistance to those on low 
incomes. The proposed scheme retains comparable levels of support to those 
provided for in the scheme. 

6.4 Risks: 

A full Customer Impact Assessment of the proposed 2013/14 scheme was 
completed during 2012. The proposed scheme for 2020/21 differs only marginally 
from the 2013/14 scheme. 

An increase in caseload would lead to an increase in the cost of the scheme. 
However, the trend over the last 18 months has been for caseload to slightly 
decrease but the reduction appears to have slowed. 

6.5 Communications: 

Hampshire County Council will be advised of the proposed scheme for 2020/21 
on behalf of the major precepting authorities. It is not anticipated that they will 
have any difficulties with the proposal. As the proposed scheme for 2020/21 
retains comparable levels of support to those in the 2019/20 scheme, it is 
considered unnecessary to undertake any further public consultation.

6.6 For the Community:

The Council Tax Support scheme provides financial assistance to those on low 
incomes. The proposed scheme for 2020/21 retains comparable levels of support 
to those provided for in the 2019/20 scheme and does not therefore impose any 
significant additional burden on council tax payers.

6.7 The Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has been completed and 
concluded the following:

An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) of the 2013/14 scheme was completed in 
2012.

7.0 Consultation 

Cllr Lulu Bowerman
Revenues and Benefits Contract Manager (Client)
Director of Corporate Services
Monitoring Officer
Head of Housing and Communities
Hampshire County Council will be made aware of the proposed scheme.

Appendices: 

None



NON EXEMPT
Background Papers: 

None

Agreed and signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: (13th September 2019) David Brown
S151 Officer: (29th October 2019) Lydia Morrison
Director: (29th October 2019) Lydia Morrison
Portfolio Holder: (29th October 2019) Lulu Bowerman

Contact Officer: Brian Wood
Job Title: Head of Customer Services 
Telephone: 01730 234150
E-Mail: brian.wood@easthants.gov.uk





NON EXEMPT 
             

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet 18th December 2019

Council Tax Empty Homes Premium

Brian Wood – Head of Customer Services

FOR RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL

Portfolio: Cabinet Lead for People and Communications – Cllr Lulu 
Bowerman

Head of Service: Brian Wood, Head of Customer Services

Key Decision: No 

1.0Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider adopting new premiums for 
residential properties empty and unfurnished for two years or more under new 
powers provided by the Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council 
Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018 which come into force from April 2019.

1.2 Currently, Long Term Empty properties (empty more than two years) 
attract a Premium of 50% - thus paying 150% Council Tax.

1.3 These measures support the Council’s ‘Empty Property Strategy’ to 
encourage the occupation of long-term empties that have been empty for over 
two years.  

2.0Recommendation 

2.1 That Cabinet recommends to Council:

That the level of Empty Homes Premium on dwellings that have been 
unoccupied for more than two years, be applied as follows:

 1) From 1 April 2020, 100% premium in addition to the full council tax charge 
for each dwelling unoccupied and unfurnished between two and five years, 
and 200% premium for dwellings unoccupied for more than five years; and

 2) From 1 April 2021, 100% premium in addition to the full council tax charge 
for each dwelling unoccupied and unfurnished between two and five years, 
200% for dwellings unoccupied between five and ten years, and 300% for 
properties unoccupied for more than ten years.



3) That in co-ordination with the Private Sector Housing Team, owners of 
dwellings that would be affected by the above changes are contacted during 
2019, to encourage occupation and are informed of the changes to the level 
of premium.

3.0Executive Summary 

3.1 Section 12 of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a new 
Section 11B into the original 1992 Act giving local authorities the power to 
levy extra council tax of not more that 50% on long-term empty homes, known 
as the empty homes premium. The Council has used this power since April 
2013 and imposed the maximum premium of 50% over and above the charge 
which would apply if the domestic property was occupied.

3.2 For the empty home premium to apply, properties must have been empty 
and substantially unfurnished for at least two years, excluding any occupation 
for less than six weeks. The government can prescribe classes of properties 
where the premium should not apply and has prescribed an exemption for 
occupants serving in the Armed Forces absent for job-related purposes. 
Liability for the empty homes premium is determined by the length of time that 
the property has been empty, irrespective of any change in ownership, and 
includes any period the property may be in probate

3.3 The Rating (Property in Common occupation) and Council Tax (Empty 
Dwellings) Act 2018 provided for the premium to be increased from 1st April 
2019 as follows

Length of 
time empty

Current From April 
2019

From April 
2020

From April 
2021

2 years + to 
5 years

50% 100% 100% 100%

5 years + to 
10 years

50% 100% 200% 200%

10 years + 50% 100% 200% 300%

3.4 Since the introduction of the Empty Homes Premium the number of 
properties in Havant empty for more than two years has reduced from approx. 
300 at 1 April 2013 to 101 as at August 2019. 

3.5 The breakdown of properties in Havant, empty for more than two years at 
August 2019 is:
 
Between 2 – 5 years 73
Over 5 and up to 10 
years

22

Over 10 years 6
Total 101

Band A B C D E F G H total



Number 21 25 22 16 13 4 0 0 101

3.6 Based on the 101 properties and the Council Tax level for 2019/20 
increasing the premium would increase Council Tax income approximately as 
follows:

Financial Year 2020/21 2021/22
Overall Increase £119,272 £128,484
HBC element 11.95% £14,253 £15,353

 
3.7 It should be noted when considering the extra revenue raised, that should 
this legislation have the desired effect, i.e. the number of properties empty for 
more than two years reduces, therefore any extra revenue raised will 
eventually reduce. Based on the experience since the introduction of the 
empty homes premium in 2013 it is expected that this outcome will be likely.

3.8 This report is specifically mentioned in the Empty Homes Strategy (section 
12) as an enabler to meet the strategies objectives. 

4.0 Additional Budgetary Implications 

4.1.The Billing, Collection and Recovery of any extra Council Tax will be 
absorbed within the current Capita contract.

5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 
Directorate Business Plan/s

5.1 This report supports the Business Plan to develop and introduce policy 
around the Management of Empty Properties, led by the Private Sector 
Housing Manager.

6.0Options considered and reasons for the recommendation

6.1 Option 1 – To leave the empty Homes Premium at 50%. This does not 
provide any further incentive for property owners to bring properties back into 
use but would reduce the risks outlined in 9.0.

6.2 Option 2 – To increase the premium to 100% from 2020/21 onwards. 
Although this would provide a short-term incentive to encourage properties to 
be brought back into use, it does not differentiate between empty properties 
that have been vacant for more than 5 or 10 years.

6.3 Option 3 - To apply all three of the increased premiums. This is the 
recommended option. It will not solve the issue of empty homes on its own but 
provides an important part of an Empty Home strategy that also includes 
incentives and enforcement. At the very least it provides a relatively small 
amount of increased revenue for the council. 



7.0Resource Implications

7.1 Financial Implications - The potential additional revenue is set out within 
the report. If the legislation has the desired effect the number of properties 
empty over two years will reduce so the potential additional revenue received 
because of increasing the empty homes premium will eventually be reduced.

7.2 Initial dialogue with Capita to introduce any changes to Council Tax 
premiums indicate that the Billing, Collection and Recovery of any extra 
Council Tax will be absorbed within the current contract price.

7.3 Human Resources Implications – None

7.4 Information Governance Implications - None

7.5 Other Resource Implication - Additional communications focusing on 
changes to The Empty Rate Premium.

8.0 Legal Implications

8.1 Section 11B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 has been 
amended by the Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax 
(Empty Dwellings) Act 2018 to allow for the maximum percentage by which 
Council Tax may be increased to change to 100% from the financial year 
beginning 1st April 2019 and then to be further increased each financial year 
up to 2021 to a maximum of 300% as described in the main body of the report.

9.0 Risks

9.1 There is a risk that raising additional charges on empty properties could 
lead to an increase in tax avoidance tactics.  This could include the creation of 
fictitious tenancies, increased claims for single person discount and claims for 
exemption from premium payments.  Although steps can be taken to mitigate 
the risks through on-site inspections it not always possible to establish if a 
property is empty. Please see 11.1 Partnership Working.

9.2 There are instances where the Premium has made it difficult for charge-
payers to pay their arrears, especially if they are paying a full Council Tax on 
another property. The debt recovery arising from the Premium places a 
demand on staff time.

10.0 Consultation

10.1There is no statutory requirement to consult on these proposals. However, 
The Empty Homes Team welcome additional measures to support bringing 
empty properties back in to use. 



10.2 The Housing Team will be integral to enabling the ‘Empty Homes 
Strategy’ therefore this report has been shared with Tracey Wood, Head of 
Housing and Community Engagement.

11.0 Partnership Working

11.1 The subject of empty homes is one that spans multiple teams across the 
local authority, as well as other partner organisations. The Private Sector 
Housing Team will be assisting with verification of information provided to 
Council Tax and in the interests of enabling the ‘Empty Homes Strategy’ the 
council is committed to sharing information between relevant council 
departments and on occasion external partners where appropriate and in line 
with data protection legislation.

12.0 Communication

12.1 If Council approves the recommendation the Revenues team will contact 
all council tax payers at annual billing stage likely to be subject to the 
premium from April 2020 to advise them of the change. 

Appendices: None

Background Papers: 

Link to legislation – 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/25/section/2/enacted

Agreed and signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: (30th September) David Brown
S151 Officer: (30th September) Lydia Morrison
Director: (30th September) Lydia Morrison
Portfolio Holder: (30th September) Lulu Bowerman

Contact Officer: Brian Wood
Job Title: Head of Customer Services
Telephone: 01730 234150
E-Mail: brian.wood@easthants.gov.uk





NON EXEMPT 

             
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET 18 December 2019

Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy 2019-2024
Report Author: Head of Housing & Community 
Engagement

FOR DECISION

Portfolio:  Planning, Regeneration and Communities
                  Deputy Leader Cllr Tim Pike

Key Decision: Yes

1.0Purpose of Report 

1.1.This report is submitted to Cabinet for approval to meet a statutory 
requirement. 

2.0Recommendation 

2.1.Cabinet is recommended to approve the Council’s Homelessness and 
Rough Sleepers Strategy and Action Plan 2019-2024

2.2.Recommend to Council that the Strategy and Action Plan be adopted

3.0Executive Summary 

3.1. It is a legal requirement under homelessness legislation for local 
authorities to carry out a homelessness review and formulate a 
Homelessness Strategy based on findings of the review (Appendix C).  
The strategy (Appendix A) and action plan sets out the intentions of the 
Council and partners to prevent, relieve and address homelessness in 
the district.  It is very timely to adopt a new strategy and action plan, 
being eighteen months since the introduction of the revised 
homelessness legislation – the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 
(HRA 17).  The legislation has now had time to ‘bed in’ and the review 
has identified how this has impacted the Council’s statutory duties.  A 
new strategy must be adopted in draft by the end of the year.  It can 
then be presented to Full Council in January 2020.

3.2.This report details why a strategy is needed, the priority areas identified 
by the review which have then been formulated into a detailed action 
plan (Appendix B).



4.0Additional Budgetary Implications 

4.1.None.

5.0Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 
Directorate Business Plans

5.1.  All local authorities are required to consider housing needs within their 
areas, including the needs of homeless households and have statutory 
duties to ensure that advice and assistance is available to households 
who are homeless or threatened with homelessness.  The strategy 
must apply to everyone at risk of homelessness, not just those 
considered to be in priority need. The HRA has placed further duties 
upon councils to anyone approaching for assistance. These extended 
duties include:

 A duty to provide free advisory services to all
 A duty to refer
 A duty to assess all homelessness applications
 A duty to provide each person/household with a personal housing plan
 A duty to prevent homelessness for all
 A duty to relieve homelessness for all
 A duty to provide housing

For further detail on these duties please refer to the Homelessness 
Review paragraph 1.7 pages 4 and 5.

5.2.Emphasis has always been on prevention, and the Council has an 
excellent track record in doing this and keeping homelessness 
acceptances very low. However, the review findings indicate that the 
new duties are meaning that more households are being placed into 
emergency B&B accommodation for longer periods of time whilst 
officers work with the households to find long term solutions.

5.3.The draft strategy has been written in accordance with the 
Homelessness Act 2002 and follows consultation with stakeholders, 
customers and voluntary organisations that work with those facing 
homelessness in the borough.

5.4.The review identified the concerns and challenges that need to be 
addressed.  These have been grouped under four main priority areas 
within the Action Plan with specific targets listed under 

 To ensure all our customers are provided with appropriate 
advice, assistance and support to enable them to address 
their housing needs and to lead independent lives – 
emphasis to be on early intervention, building on existing 
services and continually improving service delivery.



 Consider more sustainable housing solutions for those 
facing homelessness and on the Housing Register

 Prevent and Relieve homelessness by working in 
partnership with statutory and voluntary sector agencies to 
identify the threat of homelessness at the earliest 
opportunity, and work together to ensure appropriate 
support services are accessible.

 To understand the needs and requirements of those rough 
sleeping and sofa surfing in the borough and provide 
sustainable solutions

5.5.Delivery of the actions support the Corporate Strategy’s aims of 
supporting the most vulnerable in our communities and the Service 
Business Plan states that a Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan 
will be introduced in 2019 following a review, to increase prevention 
and relief of homelessness. 

5.6.This strategy will be included in the Corporate Strategy and form part of 
the Council’s Policy Framework.

5.7.  To ensure the document remains ‘live’, the Action Plan will be regularly 
reviewed as part of regular performance appraisal monitoring and 
against targets in the Business Plan.  It is suggested that an annual 
review of progress will be considered by the Operations and Place 
Shaping Board in open session with a briefing to Councillors.

6.0Options considered and reasons for the recommendation

6.1.No alternative options were considered as it is a statutory requirement    
for every local authority to publish a Homelessness Strategy.

7.0Resource Implications

7.1.Financial Implications

7.2.The strategy includes a comprehensive action plan, setting out the 
Council’s key priorities.  All actions will be funded within existing 
resources and the grant funding awarded by MHCLG – see table below.  
At present there has been no confirmation for funding beyond March 
2020 however it is anticipated that there will be some continued 
funding, but this may be reduced in future years.



Purpose of funding 2018-19 2019-20

New burdens
 

£61,369 £64,871

Flexible Homelessness 
Support Grant (FHSG)

£250,003 £306,009

Top up FHSG n/a £88,060

Rough Sleeper Initiative – 
joint partnership with 
EHDC

n/a £35,000

Total £311,372 £493,940

This grant funding is to be used to support any initiatives/projects which will 
prevent or relieve homelessness.  The funds, apart from the RSI, can be 
carried forward if not spent in year.

7.3.Human Resources Implications - None

8.0Legal Implications

8.1.Under the Homelessness Act 2002 Section 1, housing authorities are 
required to carry out a homelessness review and publish a strategy 
based on the review.  A homelessness strategy is defined at S 3 (1) as 
one formulated to:

 Prevent homelessness in an authority’s area;
 Secure that accommodation is and will be available in that area for 

people wo are or may become homeless; and
 Provide support for such people or those who have been homeless and 

need support to prevent it reoccurring.

There is no legal requirement that specific objectives or plans should be 
included in the strategy as such matters are left to the discretion of the 
authority. 

9.0Risks

9.1. It is a statutory requirement to have a strategy.  Failure to have a 
strategy could impact future funding.

10.0 Consultation

10.1. During the review process consultation has been undertaken 
with a wide range of stakeholders, including partners in the private and 
voluntary sector.  We have also sought feedback from service users.  



11.0 Communication

11.1. All Councillors were provided with a copy of the review and 
invited to feedback thoughts and any queries. A Councillor Briefing has 
been held on the 4th November 2019 and very positive feedback was 
received regarding the findings of the review.

12.0 Appendices: Appendix A - Homelessness and Rough Sleepers   
Strategy 2019-24.  Appendix B - Action Plan.  Appendix C - The Review.

Agreed and signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: (12/11/19)
S151 Officer: (12/11/19)
Director: (12/11/19)
Portfolio Holder: (21/11/19)

Contact Officer: Tracey Wood
Job Title: Head of Housing & Community Engagement
Telephone:  02392 446626
E-Mail:  tracey.wood@easthants.gov.uk





1

APPENDIX A    

                                                                          
Havant Borough Council

HOMELESSNESS AND 
ROUGH SLEEPERS 

STRATEGY

2019 – 2024



2

CONTENTS

  Page

Foreword                                                                                      3

Introduction                                                                                  4-5

National context                                                                           6

Local context                                                                                7-8

Current position                                                                            9-13

Findings from the Homelessness Review 2018/19                      14-18

Summary                                                                                      19

Appendices                                                                                   20



3

Foreword
:

The development of our new Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy comes at 
a time of great change in housing, welfare and social policy. There are continual 
pressures on housing and an affordability crisis in the area, which is likely to 
increase in future years.

The Strategy is evidence based – a comprehensive review of homelessness has 
been carried out, and it is has been developed in consultation and partnership with 
stakeholders.

This Strategy sets out the issues that are specific to Havant and considers the 
challenges and opportunities that will come forward in the next 3 years. It provides 
our priorities for future action.

It reinforces our commitment to support those facing homelessness in the borough 
and builds on the excellent work carried out by our Housing team over the past few 
years, especially the last year following on from the introduction of the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.

Many of the issues facing us are outside the direct control of the local authority. 
Nonetheless, we need to plan ahead, prioritise and propose actions to build on our 
past success, mitigate the impacts of changing housing markets, social and welfare 
reform and above all, prevent homelessness. 

The Strategy contributes to the Council’s overall vision to support vulnerable people 
and create sustainable communities.  We believe the Homelessness and Rough 
Sleepers Strategy and Action Plan will support our commitment to supporting and 
creating sustainable communities in the Havant borough

Councillor Tim Pike, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Lead for Regeneration and Place 
Shaping



4

Introduction
All local authorities are required to consider housing needs within their areas, 
including the needs of homeless households and have statutory duties to ensure that 
advice and assistance is available to households who are homeless or threatened 
with homelessness.  The strategy must apply to everyone at risk of homelessness, 
not just those considered to be in priority need. The Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017 has placed further duties upon councils to anyone approaching for assistance. 
Under the Homelessness Act 2002 Section 1, housing authorities are required to 
carry out a homelessness review and publish a strategy based on the review.  A 
homelessness strategy is defined at S 3 (1) as one formulated to:

 Prevent homelessness in an authority’s area;
 Secure that accommodation is and will be available in that area for people wo 

are or may become homeless; and
 Provide support for such people or those who have been homeless and need 

support to prevent it reoccurring.

The new strategy aims to consolidate previous successes and measures and sets 
out not only what is required to maintain the service, but further develop it.

To achieve this objective, the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy has been 
informed by a review of homelessness in the District. Consultation has taken place 
with officers, local stakeholders, service users and partner organisations. The 
strategy takes into account key local, regional and national issues and priorities.

The review identified the concerns and challenges that need to be addressed.  
These have been grouped under four main priority areas within the Action Plan with 
specific targets listed under 

To ensure all our customers are provided with appropriate advice, assistance and 
support to enable them to address their housing needs and to lead independent lives 
– emphasis to be on early intervention, building on existing services and continually 
improving service delivery.

Consider more sustainable housing solutions for those facing homelessness 
and on the Housing Register

Prevent and Relieve homelessness by working in partnership with statutory 
and voluntary sector agencies to identify the threat of homelessness at the 
earliest opportunity, and work together to ensure appropriate support services 
are accessible

To understand the needs and requirements of those rough sleeping and sofa 
surfing in the borough and provide sustainable solutions



5

The Council recognises that homelessness is a complex issue that encompasses and 
impacts upon health, employment, education, offending, finance, relationships and families 
and therefore in delivering this Strategy, the Council will work in partnership with a number of 
external agencies.  Havant Borough District Council, alongside key partners and 
organisations has worked very hard to prevent homelessness and keep acceptances as low 
as we can, our annual performance figures reflect this.  That said we recognise that the next 
few years will bring considerable challenges, and this will impact the number of households 
who will be seeking assistance and support from the Council.



6

National Context

The last few years have seen significant changes which are likely to impact on 
homelessness:

 Introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which has extended 
statutory responsibilities for local authorities to provide meaningful support to 
single people as well as extending prevention & relief duties for all eligible 
households.

 The overall rate of new housing provision is not keeping pace with household 
growth and is failing to reduce housing market pressures.

 Welfare reform continues to have an impact on those receiving benefits (lower 
benefit caps, Universal Credit and freezing of Local Housing Allowance rates).

 Cuts to local government funding including the Supporting People programme 
which was administered by Hampshire County Council

 The full impact of the United Kingdom’s decision to leave the European Union 
is hard to predict at this time.

 The Localism Act 2011 – shifting power from central government back into the 
hands of individuals, communities and local authorities.

 The increase in rough sleeping and government’s Rough Sleeper Strategy to 
end rough sleeping.



7

Local Context

Havant is a desirable place to live and work; it lies in the South and Eastern part of 
Hampshire There are a number of local key issues that affect the Council. These include:

 An ageing population.  Census 2011, population 120684, predictions were that by 
2016 this figure would increase to 123700, and by 2023 this would be 129300. 
Small Area Population Forecasts (SAPF) suggest that between 2016 and 2023 
those aged 65-84 will have increased by 2700 (11%), and those aged 85+ will have 
increased by 1200 (27.2%)

 Outmigration of the workforce. Currently 26602 Havant residents commute outside 
of the Borough for work, whilst 17685 commute into our area. This gives a net out-
commuting level of 8917.

 Property values about 10% above the regional average. According to UK House 
Price Index average for Havant June 2017 was £266540, compared to national 
figure of £240325 so 11% more. In addition, the Havant average had increased by 
11% from the previous year.

 A deficit in affordable housing supply. The PUSH Objectively Assessed Housing 
Need Update (GL Hearn 2016) suggests Havant needs 292-368 affordable 
dwellings per annum. Delivery for the last 3 years were 16/17 168, 17/18 76, and 
18/19 94.

 Difficulties in bringing forward housing generally due to poor market 
conditions. House prices are rising at their slowest rate for seven years as a result 
of dampened consumer demand due to Brexit uncertainty discouraging buyers and 
sellers. There has been a general slowdown in UK house price growth over the 
three years since the EU referendum, driven mainly by a slowdown in the South and 
East of England. Havant has a variety of substantial new development schemes in 
the pipeline, all at various stages of the planning process.

 Plan for an additional 6300 new homes between 2006 and 2026 (the timescale for 
the Core Strategy). Pre-submission Havant Borough Local Plan 2036 (HBLP2016) 
states that objectively assessed need is now 9260.



8

 The fact that in Havant as a whole 72% of households are owner occupiers but at 
Leigh Park only 50% are owner occupiers and of the 50% who are not, most are 
tenants of Portsmouth Council. Census 2011 figures are: Havant Borough 69% 
o/occ, 19% LA/HA tenants...less than Hampshire as a whole but more than England 
as a whole. Our private rented % at 10% is less than both Hampshire and England. 
In Leigh Park 46% are o/occ, with 32% social rented tenants. PCC has 
approximately 5000 social homes in our Borough mainly concentrated in Leigh 
Park, but with smaller numbers in Wecock Farm and Crookhorn.

 The needs of regeneration of parts of the Havant borough. Havant sits in a 
prosperous part of the South East, however difficult local economic conditions have 
led to a prolonged lack of investment in Borough renewal. In some areas this has 
caused further depression of values and resultant deterioration of the quality of our 
urban spaces and building stock. HBC now wishes to take a more 
interventionist approach in order to drive investment and halt, then ultimately 
reverse this decline.

New Homes

The HBLP2036 at Policy H2 requires 30% affordable housing on sites outside of Havant, 
Waterlooville, and Leigh Park town centres, and 20% affordable housing within those area 
centres as defined through Policies KS1, KS2 and KS3.
In addition, there is a substantial requirement to provide sheltered and extra care housing 
within the borough to meet the needs of our ageing population. This could be addressed by 
including a percentage on any of the allocated sites within the HBLP2036 and also by 
maximising the provision of homes which are easily adaptable and accessible as older 
persons circumstances change. This will enable extra care to be provided for residents in 
their own homes.
Developments must provide mixed and balanced communities with a range, type, and size, 
including affordable housing which reflects the latest evidence of locally identified need. 
The affordable homes provided should, wherever possible, be on site, should be 
indistinguishable from the market housing, will be expected to be spread across the site in 
small clusters and the housing mix should broadly reflect the market housing 
element. There are key developing Registered Providers operating within the Borough and 
nomination arrangements exist through Hampshire Home Choice and are included as part 
of the s106 obligations.
Available waiting list data from Hampshire Home Choice and Help to Buy South suggests 
there is a greater need for affordable rented homes rather than intermediate affordable 
homes such as Shared Ownership. In response the Local Plan seeks a tenure split 
of broadly 70/30% in favour of rented dwellings.
New homes are to be provided predominantly on a number of strategic sites. It 
is estimated that 6010 new dwellings could be provided within the allocations in the 
HBLP2016, 1100 on the Southleigh strategic site, and a further 1327 as a result of windfall 
sites expected between 2024/25 and 2013/36.

This strategy and action plan will remain ‘live’ documents and will be included in the new 
Corporate Strategy to form part of the Council’s policy framework - this will also include 
documents such as the Empty Homes Strategy (draft), Council Tax Empty Homes 
Premium policy (draft), Care Leavers relief scheme and the Welfare and Wellbeing Action 
Plan (draft).



9

Current Position

Havant Borough Council’s Housing Services provision
Havant Borough Council’s Housing Services comprises two teams – Housing Options and 
Advice and Housing Development which are both based in The Plaza in Havant. The 
Housing Options and Advice team provide housing advice and assistance to anyone who 
requires it free of charge. This can be to someone with an issue with their housing 
situation, or a provider who has an issue with an occupant of their accommodation. Advice 
is not restricted by tenure and anyone, whether living at home with family/friends, in a 
private or social rented property or owner occupiers, are equally as entitled to seek 
assistance.  
The team also has a statutory responsibility to process homelessness applications and to 
determine what duties are owed with assisting those at risk of losing their homes. In all 
cases, prevention is the preferred outcome, but where not possible, identifying alternative 
accommodation is the next step, and in some cases, the provision of temporary 
accommodation until a settled housing solution can be reached.
The local housing authority also has a statutory responsibility to maintain a housing 
register which it does by processing applications for social housing through assessing a 
households housing needs to determine what priority should be awarded when allocating 
accommodation.
The Council is a non-stock holding authority so works in partnership with its registered 
social landlords who manage the social housing within their borough to assist with the 
allocation of accommodation through Hampshire Home Choice, the sub-regional choice 
based lettings scheme.
In addition to the housing options and advice provisions, the Housing Service is also 
responsible for ensuring the adequate provision of housing development within the 
borough through its housing enabling and housing strategy roles. This it does in close 
partnership with its planners, housing developers and registered providers.

Access to Housing Services
Housing options and advice can be accessed during office opening times Monday – 
Thursday 9.00am to 5.00pm and Friday 9.00am to 4.30pm either in person at The Plaza 
where a drop-in service is operated, through email at housingservices2@havant.gov.uk, or 
by telephone on 023 9244 6379.
The Council is also obliged to ensure that an emergency service is provided outside of 
office hours which it does in partnership with East Hants District Council. Officer’s man a 
duty telephone line where enquiries are taken by referral from the Council’s Emergency 
Out of Hours Service, which can be reached on 07850 358156.

Structure
The Housing Options and Advice team is comprised 18 full and part-time staff managed by 
two housing managers, one leading on options and advice and line managing Housing 
Advisory Officers, the other leading on housing development and strategy and line 
managing Housing Support Officers.
The teams provide a front-line service split between 5 full time equivalent Housing Advice 
Officers who take responsibility for processing and managing homelessness applications 
and 7.8 full time equivalent Housing Support Officers who work on a generic basis dealing 
with housing enquiries, processing housing register applications and allocation of social 
housing and homelessness prevention.
Officers also take lead roles in representing the service in statutory and partnership 

mailto:housingservices2@havant.gov.uk


10

working such as attendance at the Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangement (MAPPA) 
and Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) meetings, and attendance at the 
Early Help Hub, Child Protection and Children in Need planning conferences.

The HRA came into force on 3rd April 2018 and introduced increased duties on local 
authorities in relation to homelessness.  The Act places a greater emphasis on the 
prevention of homelessness at an early stage and partnership working with external 
organisations and agencies.

Key changes include:

An increase in the definition of ‘threatened with homelessness’ from 28 days to 56 
days

The introduction of the 56 day prevention and/or relief duty in relation to all 
households

A duty to work with all households to assess needs and create a Personalised 
Housing Plan with reasonable steps for both the applicant and the local authority

A duty on specified public bodies to refer households to the local authority where 
there is a threat of homelessness – Duty to Refer. 

Due to the significant changes introduced by the HRA, in particular, in relation to when a 
formal homelessness application can be taken, statistical performance since April 2018 is 
not comparable to that of preceding years.  However, in planning for the future it is still 
important to review performance of the years prior to the HRA.

The table below details performance since 2013

Homelessness prevented / relieved
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Able to remain in 
home

505 462 322 373 281

Assisted to secure 
alt accom

221 241 233 281 212

Homelessness 
relieved

60 70 69 91 58

Total 786 773 624 745 551



11

Homelessness – April 2018 onwards
As already mentioned since the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act, the way 
we report on homelessness has changed to reflect the change in the legislation.
The following table reflects the current reporting outcomes for homelessness application 
approaches:

Outcomes 2018-19 2019-20 (1st qtr)

Advice only/Early closure 321 89

Cancelled 3 0

Ineligible 3 0

Main duty accepted 4 1

Main duty discharged 19 2

No duty 20 8

Prevented 295 52

Assisted through Discretionary 
Housing Payment

221 89

Reasonable assistance duty 
accepted

0 1

Reasonable assistance duty 
discharged

4 0

Relieved 50 11

Triage 0 3

Under intervention 0 1

Under prevention 24 27

Under relief 2 3

Total 966 287



12

Homelessness acceptances
2013 - 2014 38
2014 - 2015 32
2015 - 2016 37
2016 - 2017 31
2017 - 2018 34
2018 - 2019 23
2019 - 2020 3 (1st quarter)

Please note that the acceptance figure for 2018/19 and subsequent years will be lower 
because since the implementation of the HRA the emphasis has been on prevention and 
relief, so fewer cases get to the acceptance stage because of the successful outcomes 
being reached beforehand.

Aside from a dip in 2016-17, there has been a year-on-year rise in the number of 
households requiring placement into emergency temporary accommodation (B&B) as a 
result of a homelessness application (please see table below). The projection for 2019-20 
shows a marked increase of 83% from 2017-2018.  This is attributable to the changes in 
the legislation and to the difficulties for households accessing alternative accommodation 
in the private sector for the reasons mentioned previously, the waiting times to be 
considered for social housing and the lack of development in the social housing sector.

Temporary accommodation and emergency housing (in brackets are the number of 
weeks spent in B&B)

Numbers of households accommodated in temp accom (B&B)
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

(1st qtr)
46 65 71 (215) 50 (214) 59 (228) 78 (307) 27

The new strategy’s action plan also includes actions to address rough sleeping in 
the borough, whilst there are not huge numbers recorded the Council is very aware 
of many people ‘sofa surfing’, moving on continuously and 
Every Autumn, local authorities are required to conduct an annual survey of the number of 
people sleeping rough in their area. Typically, this involves a snapshot survey where a 
count is carried out on a given date and/or a collection of data obtained from services 
working in the local area of known rough sleepers is collated (known as an estimate). 
The local authority cannot carry out this requirement in isolation.  It relies on its partner 
agencies, community and voluntary organisations to provide the intelligence to feed into 
the annual rough sleeper return.

Rough Sleeper Figures for Havant (from annual Autumn rough sleeper count/estimate)
Rough Sleeper figures
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
3 10 8 10 5

The recorded numbers of rough sleepers taken during previous surveys have largely 
remained stable. Havant, unlike its neighbouring borough Portsmouth, is not a large city 
which can attract rough sleeping and does not see the level of street begging like larger 
districts. Nevertheless, there are pockets of rough sleeping activity which, whilst small in 



13

comparison to other districts, are still a cause for concern, particularly with the lack of 
suitable accommodation such as stage 1 supported housing or night shelter facilities 
available in the borough to provide much needed shelter.

For people who are homeless and without entitlement or access to housing, the provision 
of Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) is their only chance to escape severe 
weather. Havant Borough Council triggers SWEP during short periods of high risk weather. 
The minimum trigger is a forecast of three nights below freezing, so that people sleeping 
rough have a bed out of harm’s way. While it should not be the only response to rough 
sleeping, SWEP is vital to prevent harm and death. This is the only type of provision that is 
open to all, including people with no recourse to public funds and those who have been 
excluded from other services.  HBC has been very flexible in respect of the weather criteria 
and have extended it in times of extreme wet and windy weather too.

The Council in partnership with East Hampshire DC has been successful in obtaining 
funding from the Government’s £11m Rough Sleeper Initiative which has been utilised to 
have a dedicated outreach worker in place to work with rough sleepers to enable them to 
engage with services, so they may end their rough sleeping and also to co-ordinate the 
services available in order to focus the resources on assisting rough sleepers into support 
and housing rather than facilitating a continued rough sleeping lifestyle.  Details of this are 
within Priority 4 of the Action Plan.



14

Findings of the Homelessness Review 2018/19

To help feed into the Review and the borough’s Homelessness Strategy a Partnership 
Forum was set up to gain the views of all of our stakeholders and partners.
 Representatives from partner organisations both statutory, community and voluntary, were 
invited to attend the workshop and agencies who were unable to attend were invited to 
provide information regarding the support they provide in order to feed into the review.  A 
list of organisations invited to attend the workshop or take place in subsequent consultation 
can be found at Appendix 2 of the review.
.
As part of local authority shared services, the partnership forum included representatives 
from a wide range of public, private, community and voluntary organisations working 
across the Havant Borough Council area. The workshop sought to map out the existing 
support and service provision that contributes to the prevention and relief of homelessness 
across the two authorities. The forum also sought to identify issues which hampered 
support to those who were homeless or threatened with homelessness and consider ways 
in which these could be overcome or be improved.
The outcome of the process enabled us to identify the areas of work which need to be 
included in the strategy’s action plan. It is also envisaged that the action plan will remain in 
the ownership of not just the Council, but also this Homelessness Partnership Forum who 
will continue to meet to discuss and develop ways in which to reduce homelessness within 
the borough and provide the most appropriate services to those in need.

The ethos of the Homelessness Reduction Act is that ‘homelessness prevention is 
everyone’s business’ which is particularly reflected in the Duty to Refer where public 
bodies are expected to identify within their service those users who may be homeless or 
threatened with homelessness and refer to housing services for advice and assistance as 
early as possible.  

The Homelessness Reduction Act also places a more holistic approach to an individual’s 
housing needs, not only to identify why they are homeless, but also what support needs 
they may have that need addressing which could prevent them becoming homeless now or 
in the future. There is therefore an even more imperative need for services to work under a 
multi-agency approach as Housing Services cannot meet all the complex needs of 
individuals in isolation.

We also sought the comments of the staff working on the front line in Housing Services to 
ascertain their thoughts on the same issues raised and discussed with the Homelessness 
Partnership Forum.
Although it was recognised that the Council and partners had over the past few years 
really worked hard together to tackle homelessness and prevention figures were high, , 
there are areas which are seen as needing improvement, such as:

 The need for customers to engage earlier to allow interventions to be considered
 Managing the expectations of customer as to the housing options available 
 Lack of temporary accommodation within the borough
 Lack of move on accommodation from temporary or supported accommodation
 Lack of affordable social and private rented accommodation 
 Understanding the needs of rough sleepers and managing the support on offer 



15

 Managing the reduction in support to prevent homelessness
 Better communication and multi-agency working between organisations
 Embedding that ‘homelessness prevention is everyone’s responsibility’ in to all 

organisations

Priorities areas for action
It is those areas identified that have formed the basis of this strategy’s action plan 2019 -
24.  The table below details those areas identified:-

1. The need for customers to 
engage earlier to allow 
interventions to be 
considered

 Continue to promote the Duty to Refer to 
public bodies and encourage non-public 
bodies to adopt a commitment to refer

 Better promote the services available from 
Housing Services and how customers can 
engage at an early stage

 Provide more robust awareness amongst 
professionals of the services Housing 
Services Provide and how they can refer 
their customers at an earlier stage

 Improve access to advice and assistance 
through the Councils website and the 
Hampshire Home Choice website

2. Managing the expectations 
of customer as to the 
housing options available

 Ensure we have a comprehensive package 
of housing options available to meet diverse 
needs

 Ensure options available are transparent 
and explained so informed choices can be 
made

 Ensure other professional organisations are 
aware of the housing options available so as 
not to misinform their customers

3. Tackling public perceptions 
of homelessness and 
addressing stereotypes to 
ensure that access to 
accommodation is increased

 Ensure website information is easy to 
access and up to date

 Investigate the possibility of ‘tenancy 
training’ to demonstrate skills obtained to 
ensure applicants can manage a tenancy 
and minimise risk to landlords

4. Lack of temporary 
accommodation within the 
borough

 Review the current temporary 
accommodation available

 Explore other options within the borough by 
continuing to work with registered providers, 
supported housing providers and private 
sector landlords

5. Lack of move on 
accommodation from 
temporary or supported 
accommodation

 Explore other options within the borough by 
continuing to work with registered providers, 
supported housing providers and private 
sector landlords

 Continue to promote and expand the 



16

Supported Tenancy Scheme
6. Affordability and Welfare 

Reform
 Close monitoring of Universal Credit will be 

required to assess the impact of accessing 
and maintaining accommodation

 Close partnership with registered providers, 
the private sector and DWP so that housing 
services can be alerted to the issues that 
may lead to homelessness at the earliest 
opportunity

7. Lack of affordable social and 
private rented 
accommodation

 Continue to encourage the development of 
social / affordable housing with developers 
and registered providers

 Continue to work with registered providers to 
ensure the best use of stock within the 
borough through creative letting and local 
lettings plans

 Continue to work with private sector 
landlords to encourage the availability of 
suitable accommodation

 Consider the introduction of a Landlords Fair 
to engage with private landlords

8. Understanding the needs of 
rough sleepers and 
managing the support on 
offer

 Expand on annual rough sleeper 
count/estimate and carry out a robust needs 
analysis of those rough sleeping

 Carry out analysis of data available on sofa 
surfing activity and target advice and 
assistance to prevent this slipping in to 
rough sleeping

 Continue to work with statutory and non-
statutory bodies and voluntary and 
community groups to co-ordinate data about 
rough sleepers

 Continue to work with statutory and non-
statutory bodies and voluntary and 
community groups to co-ordinate services 
available to rough sleepers

 Through joint work, encourage the safe 
practice of supporting rough sleepers 
through voluntary and community 
organisations rather than direct assistance 
to an individual

9. Look at whether Housing 
First is a model that could be 
successful in Havant

 Consider the option for more challenging 
and complex households

 Review other models to determine suitability
 Discuss with accommodation providers and 

support services
10.Managing the reduction in 

support to prevent 
homelessness

 Map out and create a directory of support 
services available to refer customers to as 
an alternative

 Encourage the promotion of self-service 



17

advice through digital access
 Make a commitment to ensure financial 

support is available to continue to 
commission local housing related support 

 Consider the use of Tenancy Training to 
empower tenancy sustainment and reduce 
the need for ongoing support

11.Better communication and 
multi-agency working 
between organisations

 Ensure Housing Services are a committed 
presence and multi-agency meetings, both 
statutory and non-statutory

 Promote the services provided by Housing 
Services within other organisations and 
agencies, both statutory and non-statutory

 Ensure good working relationships are 
forged, particularly with other statutory 
organisations

 Ensure that multi-agency working around 
and individual is encouraged at the earliest 
opportunity 

12.Embedding the concept that 
‘homelessness prevention is 
everyone’s responsibility’ in 
to all organisations

 Consider the formulation of a Homelessness 
Reduction Board at a strategic level

 Ensure that senior leadership across all 
organisations is committed to the reduction 
of homelessness being high on their agenda 

 Ensuring that homelessness or potential 
homelessness is a routine consideration of 
all organisations when dealing with their 
customers

 Ensuring that awareness of homelessness is 
embedded the operational staff’s skills set in 
all organisations 

 Promoting and supporting the Duty to Refer
13.Agree top priorities for 

expenditure of Flexible 
Homelessness Support 
Grant

 Agree priorities and explore options for 
expenditure that offers best value

14.Ensure officers are kept up 
to date on relevant 
legislation

 Review training for all members of staff
 Identify training gaps and arrange 

appropriate training and awareness 
sessions

These priority areas have been developed into a comprehensive action plan which 
details who and how we will deliver against the actions. 

Resources – delivery of the Action Plan will be contained within existing resources 
and the grant funding provided from the Government specifically for homelessness 
prevention and relief see the table Grant Funding.



18

Grant Funding received from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to 
support homelessness initiatives and measures:

Purpose of funding 2018-19 2019-20

New burdens
 

£61,369 £64,871

Flexible Homelessness 
Support Grant (FHSG)

£250,003 £306,009

Top up FHSG n/a £88,060

Rough Sleeper Initiative – 
joint partnership with 
EHDC

n/a £35,000

Total £311,372 £493,940

This grant funding is to be used to support any initiatives/projects which will prevent or 
relieve homelessness.  The funds, apart from the RSI, can be carried forward if not spent 
in year it cannot be used to offset B&B costs– at the present time there have been no 
further indications of whether there will be continued funding for 2020 and future 
years.

To date the grant has been used for the following initiatives :-

 Additional Staffing – 5 members of staff on fixed term contracts
 SLAs with Two Saints to provide flexible Community Support following on from the 

reduction of £2.2m from the Hampshire CC Social Inclusion budget.
 SLA with Two Saints to provide outreach to those in B&B outside the area.
 2 x Supported lodgings placements
 Loans and deposits to enable renting in the private sector.
 Incentives to PRS Landlords
 IT upgrades to ensure compliance with completing government statistics.
 New initiatives identified in the review and contained within the Action Plan will be 

supported by this grant.



19

Summary

We are committed to ensuring this strategy remains a live document and delivers 
tangible results for those in housing need in the district. To ensure that this 
happens, the Action Plan will be reviewed as part of regular performance appraisal 
monitoring for individual officers within the Housing Service.

Responsibility for ensuring that this strategy delivers key objectives lies with the 
Council’s Head of Housing and Community Engagement, supported by the Housing 
Options & Advice Manager, who will ensure that the Action Plan is updated on an 
annual basis with a progress report submitted to the Executive Board and Cabinet, 
followed by a Briefing for Councillors.

Key performance indicators which reflect a number of the strategy’s objectives are 
reported on a quarterly basis to Executive Board.  Officers will continue to meet 
partners and regularly host a district Homelessness Forum, to review progress 
against targets and changes required to continue to meet housing need in the 
district.



20

Appendices

 Action Plan 2019-2024

 Affordable Housing Statement 

 Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy

 Allocation Framework

 Provision of Temporary Accommodation Policy

 Discharge of duty into Private Rented Sector Policy

 Severe Weather Emergency Protocol



1

APPENDIX B
Havant Borough Council
 
Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy 2019-2024 Action Plan

PRIORITY 1: To ensure all our customers are provided with appropriate advice, assistance and support to enable them to address their 
housing needs and to lead independent lives.  Emphasis to be on early intervention, building on existing services and continuously improving 
service delivery

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.1 Policies and 
procedures reviewed 

and regular staff 
training undertaken 

to ensure the 
requirements of the 
HRA 2017 are met

Revised 
annually

Housing  
Manager in 

consultation with 
the team

HRA and asset 
based assessment 
training completed 

with staff   

Policies and 
procedures review 

All staff understand the HRA 2017 
requirements and are able to operate in a 

compliant way

1.2 All applicants to 
receive meaningful  
assessments and 

advice to reflect that 
the service is 

tailored to 
individuals’ goals 
and aspirations

Ongoing Housing 
Manager/Senior 
Housing Options 

Officers

Monthly case 
audits and 

individual staff 
supervision 

addressing any 
deficiencies

Asset based assessment is embedded in 
our service delivery



2

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.3 Ensure that the IT 
system continues to 
be HRA and H-CLIC 

compliant and 
develop the 

reporting 
mechanisms to 
enable effective 

monitoring.

Annually Housing Options 
and Advice 

Manager/HoS

HHC Manager

Civica  

IT system that 
enables officers to 

meet HRA 
requirements 

An IT solution that integrates with existing 
allocation and Housing register system.  

Reporting tools to ensure effective 
management information to identify trends 

etc. 

1.4 Conduct monthly 
light touch case 
audits to monitor 
service quality, 
compliance with 

HRA procedures and 
to inform any 
appropriate 

amendments to 
service delivery and 

performance 
management 

Monthly 
from 

January 
2020

Housing Options 
& Advice 
Manager

Case audit results 
discussed at team 
meetings and in 1-

1s

Findings 
addressed each 

month and service 
delivery improved

All staff working consistently

All staff working in a procedurally 
compliant way

Performance issues addressed 

Training needs identified

1.5 Revise service 
performance 

indicators in light of 
the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 
changes. 

April 2020 Head of Service 
/Housing 
Options & 

Advice Manager

Revised KPI measures to facilitate 
performance monitoring

Cllrs and Executive Board are easily able 
to review performance



3

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.6 Ensure staff and 
relevant agencies 
understand their 
responsibilities in 

relation to the ‘Duty 
to Refer’ (DTR) and 
appropriate process 

is established to 
comply with HRA – 

this links to the 
target in the 

Hampshire Health 
and Wellbeing 

Action plan target

February 
2020

Housing Options 
& Advice 
Manager  

DTR process fully 
understood by 

relevant agencies

Procedure 
established to 

ensure a speedy 
and efficient 

response to DTR 
referrals   

Partner agencies clear on their 
responsibilities and trained on DTR and 

how to refer

KPI measures to facilitate performance 
monitoring

1.7 Revise all literature 
and update website 

in plain English 
reflecting the HRA 
and asset based 
assessments to 

ensure customers 
know how and 

where to approach 
the service and what 

to expect

February 
2020 and 

then 
ongoing

Housing Options 
& Advice 
Manager 

Communications 
team (to review 

literature)

Revise literature

Publicise literature 
on website

Develop range of 
self-help 

tools/packs 
available for 

download from the 
website

Review and 
monitor annually

All literature will be up to date and reflect 
current services and any changes in 

legislation



4

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.8 Review the Council’s 
Scheme of 

Allocation and the 
Hampshire Home 
Choice Allocation 

Framework in light of 
the HRA and ensure 

it reflects local 
priorities

Annually Housing 
Manager / HHC 

Manager 

Amendments to 
the HHC 

framework agreed 
and implemented 

by HHC Board 
 

HHC and EHDC 
websites updated.

Disseminate to all 
relevant partner 

agencies including 
Registered 
Providers.

Information is easy to understand and 
made available to customer on line, in the 
council offices and with partner agencies.

Local lettings policies on all new 
developments to ensure balanced and 

sustainable communities 

1.9 Support the  
Hampshire Making 
Safe Scheme, by 

supporting victims of 
domestic abuse with 

options and 
information to enable 
them to remain safe 

in their homes in 
accordance with 

HRA17

April 2020 
and ongoing

Housing Options 
& Advice 

Manager/HAOs 

Hampshire 
Making Safe 
Scheme Co-

Ordinator 

Appropriate 
changes made to 

literature

Promotion of the 
services to 
registered 

providers and 
other key 
agencies 

Updated information available to all staff, 
customers and partners

1.10 To only use B&B 
when all other 

options have been 
considered.

ongoing Housing Options 
& Advice 

Manager/HAOs 

Reduction in the 
use of bed and 

breakfast   against 
budget  

Only using this form of accommodation in 
the event of an emergency and for no 

longer than 6 weeks.



5

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.11 Review our current 
Private Rented 

Sector Offer with a 
view to increasing 

local PRS 
opportunities

January 
2020 – 

March 2020

(and 
annually)

Housing Options 
& Advice 
Manager

Assessment of 
good practice  

currently provided 
by other local 

authorities

Produce a 
professional 

landlords pack 
and customers 

pack

Have an agreed 
timescale for 

settling in visits 
and regular follow 

up visits during 
tenancy

Develop/amend 
our offer 

Comprehensive 
communication 
and advertising

To maximise the number of private sector 
rental properties that EHDC customers 

can access and to ensure the 
effectiveness of PRSOs

To ensure excellent communication and 
support is provided to both landlord and 
tenant to enable customers to sustain 

their tenancy

To ensure that tenants receive the 
assistance they need at an early stage to 

increase their chances of remaining in 
their private sector property



6

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.12 Undertake an annual 
training needs 
analysis of the 

Housing Options and 
Advice Team to 

ensure they have the 
skills to deliver the 
asset based model 

of delivery and 
remain HRA17 

compliant

April 2020 Housing 
Manager

Training content 
agreed.

Training content to 
includes gaps 
identified in 

appraisals and 
case audit process 
as outlined above

Delivery of 
session

Delivery of training resulting in a fully 
skilled Team being fully up to date on 

current caselaw

1.13 Housing Options & 
Advice Officers/Two 
Saints to remain in 
regular contact with 
customers who have 

triggered 
homelessness duties 

with regular “touch 
base” contact made

HAOs/Support 
Officers and 
Two Saints

Ongoing support and knowledge of 
customer’s situations 

Sustained advice and assistance to move 
on from temporary accommodation

Able to identify issues affecting customers 
throughout their journey

Process focused towards agreeing and 
amending Personalised Housing Plans 



7

No. What By When Who will deliver 
this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

1.14 Undertake visits / 
inspections to B&B 
establishments to 
monitor quality of 
accommodation 

being provided in 
those exceptional 

cases that require a 
B&B placement (all 
have been initially 
inspected by PSH 

but this is an 
ongoing check)

April 2020 
and then as 

required

HAOs 

Environmental 
Health Officer

Visits conducted 
to main B&B 

providers used in 
placing homeless 

people

Identify any issues with the 
accommodation

Discuss improvement plan with the owner 
/ cease to use the establishment



8

PRIORITY 2: To deliver more sustainable housing solutions for those facing homelessness and on the Housing 
Register – with the emphasis on reducing the use of B&B, placement outside area and taking the opportunity to be 
creative and innovative

No. What By When Who will deliver this? Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

2.1 Deliver xxx 
affordable homes 
over the 3 year 

period. 

March 2021 Housing 
Development 

Team/Housing 
Options and Advice 

Team/Planning 
Policy

Quarterly reviews/ 
Performance 
indicators to 

measure if delivery 
on track

Delivery of xxx (need to set 
target in January) homes. 

Provision of good quality and 
affordable housing considering 

all types of tenure type

2.2 Review the 
Private Sector 

offer to customers

Summer 
2020

Housing Manager
Accommodation 
Liaison Officer

Housing Options & 
Team 

Review to start 
January 2020

Increase to the number of 
Landlords who want to work 
with us -reducing use of B&B

2.3 Consider 
alternative forms 
of TA to reduce 
the use of bed 
and breakfast 

accommodation 
for young families 
and young people

December 
2020 and 
ongoing

Housing Managers -
Development/options 

and advice

Business case to 
Cabinet January 

2020

Increase in TA
Reduction in use of B&B
Reduction in out of area 

placement

Fewer families spending 6 
weeks in B&B

Singles having access to 
accommodation 

 



9

No. What By When Who will deliver this? Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

Reduction in spend

2.4 Introduce a 
Housing Strategy 
for the borough

Consultation 
to begin 
January 

2020 with 
stakeholders

HoS/Housing 
Development 

Manager

To have a robust 
strategy that 
supports the 
delivery of 

affordable housing 
by being creative 

and innovative

Strategy in place by Winter 
2020

Increase to housing delivery

2.5 Review the supply 
of temporary 

accommodation 
and identify future 

local temporary 
accommodation 
needs and how 

these can be best 
met.

Begin 
review 

March 2020

Housing Options & 
Advice Manager/RPs 

who own TA

Sufficient level of 
temporary 

accommodation to 
address demand

Secure range and type of 
temporary accommodation to 

meet range of needs.
Reduce use of bed and 

breakfast accommodation
Reduction in costs

2.6 To work with Two 
Saints on the 

refurbishment of 
Brent House

Dependent 
upon 
contracts

Housing Managers – 
Options & Advice 

/Development

Be part of the 
Project Team and 

ensure the mix 
reflects the 

required need

Refurbished and ready for 
occupation xxxxx need to add 
after update from Two Saints



10

PRIORITY 3: Prevent and relieve homelessness by working in partnership with all our statutory and non-statutory 
partners - the emphasis to identify people who may at risk of homelessness at the earliest opportunity and ensuring 
appropriate support can be accessed.

No. What we will do? When will 
we do it 

by?

Who will 
deliver this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

3.1 Establish a 
Homelessness 

Partnership Forum

April 2020 Housing 
Manager

To ensure regular 
engagement with 
partners, sharing 

best practice

Continuous review of Action 
Plan

3.2 Housing Options & 
Advice Officers to 

improve joint working 
with Mental Health, 

Learning Disabilities, 
Adult and Children’s 

Services, Alcohol 
and Substance 

Misuse, Physical 
Health

Begin 
January 

2020

Housing 
Options & 

Advice 
Manager

Identify specific 
professionals to 
maintain contact 

within each 
organisation.

To build up positive working 
relationships with these 
agencies, devise referral 

processes/protocols and share 
relevant information and data to 

prevent homelessness and 
meet the legislative 

requirements of the new 
Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017
Supportive network of agencies 
in a multi-disciplinary framework 

available for individuals and 
households enabling them to 

attain their goals and ambitions



11

No. What we will do? When will 
we do it 

by?

Who will 
deliver this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

3.3 Enable older people 
with disabilities to 

continue to live 
independently in 

their homes for as 
long as possible  

PSH officers/In 
house OT

HAOs

HCC

Enable older people to remain 
independent in their homes

Meeting need, making best use 
of any extra care and affordable 
housing stock in the borough. 

Preventing homelessness 
 

3.4 Devise an early 
intervention protocol 
with all Registered 

Providers in Havant 
to address factors 

such as arrears, anti-
social behaviour and 

other issues that 
may have a negative 

impact on a 
customer sustaining 

their tenancy

December 
2020

Housing 
Options & 

Advice 
Manager 

HAOs

Liaise with main 
partner RPs to 

devise a protocol.
Widen the 

numbers of RPs 
included to ensure 

they are all 
working towards 
early intervention

RPs are ensuring that they 
contact the Housing Options & 
Team at a very early stage to 

prevent problems mounting up 
and ultimately enabling tenants 

to sustain their tenancy and 
prevent future evictions.

A protocol is in place, working 
effectively to ensure tenants 

remain in their home and 
prevent homelessness.

Customers receive structured 
multi-agency support where 

needed to maintain their 
tenancies.

Tenancies are reviewed by RPs 
more regularly to avoid crisis.



12

No. What we will do? When will 
we do it 

by?

Who will 
deliver this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

3.5 Work with Two 
Saints on the 

existing SLAs to 
ensure appropriate 
support is in place 

for

ongoing Housing 
Options & 

Advice 
Manager

Two Saints to 
attend weekly 

meeting with team
Qtrly monitoring

Appropriate community flexible 
support available to those who 

require it

3.6 Liaise with Letting 
Agents to promote 
early signposting to 
Housing & Advice 
Options Team for 

tenants with arrears 
or other tenancy 

concerns to prevent 
homelessness

November 
2020

HSOs//HAOs Devise a 
professional pack 
of information to 
give to Lettings 

Agents

.

Build on current relationships 
with lettings agents to 

encourage them to inform their 
landlords and tenants about the 
services the Housing Options & 

Advice Team provide.
Lettings Agents routinely 

provide information to 
customers resulting in less 

arrears or other tenancy 
concerns building and therefore 

a reduction in PRS evictions

3.7 Review current 
practices in 

partnership with local 
prisons and 

probation service to 
develop identification 

and early 
intervention protocol 

to ensure people 
receive the right 

housing support and 

April 2021 Housing 
Options & 

Advice Team 

Meet with all local 
prisons/probation 

services.

Devise a Protocol 
which all prisons 

and probation 
services can use.

Collect data and 
monitor 

A positive working relationship 
is in place with prisons and the 
probationary service all working 

in partnership to increase the 
numbers of ex-offenders who 

successfully obtain and sustain 
their tenancies.



13

No. What we will do? When will 
we do it 

by?

Who will 
deliver this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

that all processes 
are HRA 2017 

compliant.

processes.
Review annually

3.8 Review current 
practices in 

partnership with local 
hospitals to develop 

identification and 
early intervention 
protocol to ensure 
people receive the 

right housing support 
and that all 

processes are HRA 
2017 compliant

Autumn 
2020

Housing 
Options & 

Advice Team 

Identify the 
discharge leads 

within each 
hospital and liaise 

with them.

Agree a Protocol.

Collect data and 
monitor 

processes.

Review annually

A process is in place to enable 
hospitals to refer clients to the 

Housing Options & Advice 
Team to assist with finding 

suitable accommodation prior to 
release from hospital

All clients will be referred to the 
Housing Options & Advice 

Team and all services will have 
worked in partnership together 
to ensure the client is released 

from hospital to suitable 
accommodation

3.9 Housing Options & 
Advice Team to 

provide training as 
requested to 

partners regarding 
Hampshire Home 
Choice, bidding 

online, the lettings 
process, allocations 
policy, changes in 

homelessness 

ongoing HAOs/Housing 
Manager

Partners are able to advise 
customers appropriately

Customers receive consistent 
advice



14

No. What we will do? When will 
we do it 

by?

Who will 
deliver this?

Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

legislation and its 
impact on agencies

3.10 Ensure Housing 
Service uses locally 
gathered intelligence 
data as well as data 

available through 
central government 

and partner agencies 
to inform service 
development and 

delivery

April 2020 
and then 
ongoing

HoS/Housing 
Manager

Clear 
understanding of 

data available 
within service and 

externally

Regular review of 
data against 

service delivery

Increased levels of 
homelessness prevented 

through targeted work using 
data analysis

Predictive indices developed to 
highlight relevant cohorts and 

locations
Services working together to 

target those cohorts and 
locations in the interests of early 

intervention



15

Priority 4: To understand the needs and requirements of those rough sleeping and sofa surfing within the area and 
provide sustainable solutions and options.

No. What we will do? When 
will we 

do it by?

Who will deliver this? Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

4.1 Establish why high 
numbers of single 

people are 
continuing to sofa 

surf

Need to add Need to add text in consultation 
with Two Saints

4.2 Develop a 
communications 

plan to educate the 
local community 

and partners about 
single 

homelessness

HoS/Housing 
Manager/Communications 

Team

Ensure that 
messages 
about risk 

associated with 
donation cash 
to people on 

the street
Appropriate 

press releases

Local residents do not 
inadvertently enable rough 

sleeping and sustain people on 
the street where there are offers of 

support being refused

Local residents actively report 
incidences of rough sleeping

Greater awareness and 
understanding of available 

services
4.3 Review Severe 

Weather 
Emergency 

Provision (SWEP) 
annually

April 
2020

Housing 
Manager/HAOs/Two 

Saints

Review 19/20 
experience

Adequate SWEP provision in 
place

Advertised appropriately
Those accessing SEP are 

engaged with by wider support 
services

No-one sleeping rough during 
periods of bad weather (without 



16

No. What we will do? When 
will we 

do it by?

Who will deliver this? Milestones Target/
Outcome

Comments /
Status

clear offers of support)
Those accessing SWEP do not 

return to the streets
4.4 Continue to respond 

to reports of rough 
sleeping within 1 

working day 
including outreach 
undertaken by the 

HAOs and Two 
Saints

ongoing HAOs/Two Saints All rough 
sleepers 

receive a visit 
and made 
offers of 
support

Local services respond rapidly to 
reports of rough sleeping

No rough sleeping
NFNO – no first night out

Minimum standard no second 
night out

4.5 Identify and engage 
with people who 
have been 
successfully 
accommodated, 
with a history of 
rough sleeping, to 
understand what 
works and what 
doesn’t to inform 
future service 
changes

May 
2020

Housing Manager ..

Insight with the benefit of lived 
experience

Understanding what works and 
doesn’t and then make required 

service changes



V10 – 09.10.2019 

1 
 

APPENDIX C 

 

 

 

Havant Borough Council 

 

 

 

 Homelessness Review 
2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Introduction 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

2 
 

1.1 Local housing authorities have a legal requirement (Homelessness Act 2002) 
to publish a homelessness strategy and, as part of this process, to carry out a 
homelessness review to inform and formulate that strategy.  

1.2 The review requires that the local authority assess the current homeless 
situation within their area, to forecast the likely extent of housing need and 
homelessness in the future, to identify existing support provision to prevent and 
relieve homelessness, and to identify any gaps or issues with current services and 
support provided. The findings of the review should form the basis for the content 
and actions included in the homelessness strategy. This review is written following 
the implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act in April 2018 and takes in to 
account the additional duties introduced by the Act. It also takes account of the 
guidance set-out in the Government’s Rough Sleeper Strategy published in August 
2018. 

1.3 It is our aim to take the priorities identified in the review and formulate the 
future Action Plan. 

 

1.4  National context 

The last few years have seen significant changes which are likely to impact on 
homelessness: 

 Introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which has extended 
statutory responsibilities for local authorities to provide meaningful support to 
single people as well as extending prevention & relief duties for all eligible 
households. 

 The overall rate of new housing provision is not keeping pace with household 
growth and is failing to reduce housing market pressures. 

 Welfare reform continues to have an impact on those receiving benefits (lower 
benefit caps, Universal Credit and freezing of Local Housing Allowance rates). 

 Cuts to local government funding including the Supporting People programme 

 The full impact of the United Kingdom’s decision to leave the European Union 
is hard to predict at this time. 

 The Localism Act 2011 – shifting power from central government back into the 
hands of individuals, communities and local authorities. 

 The increase in rough sleeping and government’s Rough Sleeper Strategy to 
end rough sleeping. 

1.5 Local context 

Havant is a desirable place to live and work; it lies in the South and Eastern part of 
Hampshire and forms part of the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire 
(PUSH).  PUSH recognizes the importance of Southampton and Portsmouth as 
regional growth cities. 
 

There are a number of local key issues that affect the Council. These include: 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

3 
 

 An ageing population.  Census 2011, population 120684, predictions were 
that by 2016 this figure would increase to 123700, and by 2023 this would be 
129300. Small Area Population Forecasts (SAPF) suggest that between 2016 
and 2023 those aged 65-84 will have increased by 2700 (11%), and those 
aged 85+ will have increased by 1200 (27.2%) 

 Outmigration of the workforce. Currently 26602 Havant residents commute 
outside of the Borough for work, whilst 17685 commute into our area. This 
gives a net out-commuting level of 8917. 

 Property values about 10% above the regional average. According to UK 
House Price Index average for Havant June 2017 was £266540, compared to 
national figure of £240325 so 11% more. In addition, the Havant average had 
increased by 11% from the previous year. 

 A deficit in affordable housing supply. The PUSH Objectively Assessed 
Housing Need Update (GL Hearn 2016) suggests Havant needs 292-
368 affordable dwellings per annum. Delivery for the last 3 years were 
16/17 168, 17/18 76, and 18/19 94. 

 Difficulties in bringing forward housing generally due to poor market 
conditions. House prices are rising at their slowest rate for seven years as a 
result of dampened consumer demand due to Brexit uncertainty discouraging 
buyers and sellers. There has been a general slowdown in UK house price 
growth over the three years since the EU referendum, driven mainly by a 
slowdown in the South and East of England. Havant has a variety of 
substantial new development schemes in the pipeline, all at various stages of 
the planning process. 

 Plan for an additional 6300 new homes between 2006 and 2026 (the 
timescale for the Core Strategy). Pre-submission Havant Borough Local Plan 
2036 (HBLP2016) states that objectively assessed need is now 9260. 

 The fact that in Havant as a whole 72% of households are owner occupiers 
but at Leigh Park only 50% are owner occupiers and of the 50% who are not, 
most are tenants of Portsmouth Council. Census 2011 figures are: Havant 
Borough 69% o/occ, 19% LA/HA tenants...less than Hampshire as a whole 
but more than England as a whole. Our private rented % at 10% is less than 
both Hampshire and England. In Leigh Park 46% are o/occ, with 32% social 
rented tenants. PCC has approximately 5000 social homes in our Borough 
mainly concentrated in Leigh Park, but with smaller numbers in Wecock Farm 
and Crookhorn. 

 The needs of regeneration of parts of the Havant borough. Havant sits in a 
prosperous part of the South East, however difficult local economic conditions 
have led to a prolonged lack of investment in Borough renewal. In some areas 
this has caused further depression of values and resultant deterioration of the 
quality of our urban spaces and building stock. HBC now wishes to take a 
more interventionist approach in order to drive investment and halt, then 
ultimately reverse this decline. 

New Homes 
 

The HBLP2036 at Policy H2 requires 30% affordable housing on sites outside of 
Havant, Waterlooville, and Leigh Park town centres, and 20% affordable housing 
within those area centres as defined through Policies KS1, KS2 and KS3. 
In addition, there is a substantial requirement to provide sheltered and extra care 
housing within the borough to meet the needs of our ageing population. This could 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

4 
 

be addressed by including a percentage on any of the allocated sites within the 
HBLP2036 and also by maximising the provision of homes which 
are easily adaptable and accessible as older persons circumstances change. This 
will enable extra care to be provided for residents in their own homes. 
 
Developments must provide mixed and balanced communities with a range, type, 
and size, including affordable housing which reflects the latest evidence of locally 
identified need. The affordable homes provided should, wherever possible, be on 
site, should be indistinguishable from the market housing, will be expected to be 
spread across the site in small clusters and the housing mix should broadly reflect 
the market housing element. There are key developing Registered Providers 
operating within the Borough and nomination arrangements exist through Hampshire 
Home Choice and are included as part of the s106 obligations. 
Available waiting list data from Hampshire Home Choice and Help to Buy South 
suggests there is a greater need for affordable rented homes rather than 
intermediate affordable homes such as Shared Ownership. In response the Local 
Plan seeks a tenure split of broadly 70/30% in favour of rented dwellings. 
New homes are to be provided predominantly on a number of strategic sites. It 
is estimated that 6010 new dwellings could be provided within the allocations in the 
HBLP2016, 1100 on the Southleigh strategic site, and a further 1327 as a result 
of windfall sites expected between 2024/25 and 2013/36. 
 

Detailed below are average house prices across Hampshire. 
 

Local Authority 2017 Average House Price 

Basingstoke and Deane £309,083 

East Hampshire £374,905 

Eastleigh £276,516 

Fareham £286,193 

Gosport £203,235 

Hart £408,549 

Havant £266,540 

New Forest £339,358 

Portsmouth £207,630 

Southampton £205,986 

Test Valley £332,256 

Waverley £467,784 

Winchester £417,976 

 

Housing Affordability and Tenure  

Affordability is a major issue both nationally and locally, particularly for young people 
looking to enter the housing market. Owner-occupation remains difficult to achieve 
for many as the average house price in Havant Borough was £266,540 in June 2017; 
an 11% increase from the average price 12 months previously. This is significantly 
higher than the national increase of 4.9%5.  Alongside these increases, local 
incomes are relatively low at just over £27,500 per annum, being around half of what 
is needed to afford the average home. Alongside this, house prices are rising faster 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

5 
 

than the national average wage6 which will make housing even less affordable in the 
future. To compensate for this, a greater range of homes and tenures will need to be 
provided which embrace specialist and innovative housing products for young people 
and an ageing population (see sub-section above on population).  

Deprivation, Education and Health 

 The Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) are produced by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and provide information on deprivation 
on a range of economic, social and housing issues. In 2015, the Borough had 18 
areas within the 20% most deprived areas in England; of these, 6 were in the 10% 
most deprived. These 18 areas were located in Waterlooville (most notably Wecock 
Farm) and Leigh Park; with one exception in west Hayling. In contrast, some of the 
least deprived areas in the country also exist in Havant Borough, i.e. Emsworth. As a 
result, a renewed effort is needed to provide opportunities and regeneration in the 
most deprived parts of the Borough.  

Overall, in 2015, Havant Borough was ranked 142nd out of the 326 local authorities 
in England in terms of deprivation7 . This was an improvement from 107th in 2010. 
2.29 In terms of education, skills and training more specifically however,  

Havant Borough was ranked as 73rd out of 3268 and is therefore within the most 
deprived 25% of local authorities in England in terms of this indicator. Nevertheless, 
this ranking can be attributed to high variations in education, skills and training at 
ward level throughout Havant Borough. Warren Park, Battins and Bondfields (all 
within Leigh Park, see Chapter 6) are all within the 10% most deprived wards in 
England with respect to average education , skills and training; however, Hayling 
West, St Faith’s, Purbrook, Waterloo, Emsworth and Cowplain are all within the least 
deprived half of English wards (the latter two are even within the least deprived 
third).  

Health is a key indicator of how deprived an area is. Although life expectancy for 
men and women at a Borough-level is similar to the England average; life 
expectancy is 10.5 and 7.8 years lower for men and women respectively in the most 
deprived areas of the Borough when compared to the least deprived areas.  

Around one third of the Borough’s adults were deemed obese in 2012 and almost a 
fifth of Year 6 children were classified as obese in 2016. Public Health England has 
produced a Health Profile for Havant Borough which shows that Havant is 
significantly worse in 2016 than the England average in respect of: 

 Children from low income families;  

 GCSEs achieved;  

 Violent crime;  

 Smoking status at time of delivery of a baby;  

 Excess weight in adults;  

 Hospital stays for self-harm, and;  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

6 
 

 

 Recorded diabetes. 

Contrary to this, self-defined general health in the Borough was collected through the 
2011 census and it was reported that 44% of the population chose to describe 
themselves as being in ‘’very good health’’. In contrast, only 1.3% saw themselves 
as having ‘’very bad health’’9 . 2.33 In terms of economic inactivity as a result of 
long-term sickness and disability, Havant experiences a similar rate to the English 
average, albeit almost double the Hampshire average. 

 

1.6 Defining homelessness  
 

Homelessness can take many forms:  
 

 Rough sleeping: this is the most visible form of homelessness and includes 
people bedding down on the streets or sleeping on public transport etc. Its 
causes are complex and 

 
 Statutory homelessness: this is where people or households have 

approached the local authority as they are either threatened with 
homelessness or are actually homeless.  

 
 Hidden homeless: these people and households are generally not included 

in official statistics as they may be staying with friends and family on a 
temporary basis, sleeping on their sofa for example. They may also be living 
in housing which should not be occupied for health and safety reasons.  

 

1.7 The Homelessness Reduction Act (HRA) 2017 fundamentally changed 
councils’ legal duties towards homeless households, which are summarised below:  
 
A duty to provide free advisory services to anyone in the local area about a range 
of things, such as preventing homelessness and securing accommodation when 
homeless. These services should be designed to meet the needs of people using 
them. (HRA 2017)  
 
Certain public bodies, which includes social services authorities, have a duty to 
refer any users of their services who may be homeless or threatened with 
homelessness to the relevant service within the council. (HRA 2017)  
 
A duty to assess homeless applications and agree a personal housing plan 
with anyone that is eligible and homeless or threatened with homelessness. The plan 
should set out the actions both the applicant and the council will take, to help 
address their homelessness. (HRA 2017)  
 
A duty to prevent homelessness when someone is threatened with it within 56 
days. This applies to anyone who is eligible for assistance, regardless of whether 
they have a ‘priority need’ (see below for more information on priority need), found to 
be intentionally homeless or has a local connection to the area. The duty usually 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

7 
 

continues for 56 days, unless it is brought to an end by suitable accommodation 
becoming available for the person or household or they actually become homeless. 
(HRA 2017)  
 
A duty to relieve homelessness when it could not be prevented, through the local 
authority taking reasonable steps to help an applicant secure suitable 
accommodation. This duty lasts for 56 days and it can generally only be brought to 
an end during this period if suitable accommodation is found which is available for at 
least six months. It applies to anyone with a local connection which is defined in law. 
If the local authority has reason to believe a homeless applicant may be eligible for 
assistance and they also have a ‘priority need’, then they must be offered interim or 
temporary accommodation at this stage. (HRA 2017, Housing Act 1996)  
 
A duty to provide housing if homelessness could not be successfully prevented or 
relieved. This is known as the ‘main housing duty’ and is only owed to applicants 
who are eligible, have a ‘priority need’ for accommodation and are not homeless 
intentionally. Only certain people are considered to be in ‘priority need’, such as 
those who are pregnant, have children or are vulnerable in some way, such as 
because they are elderly, have a mental or physical illness or disability, have been in 
prison or care, are a young person or have become homeless due to domestic 
abuse. This duty is generally only brought to an end by the offer of a ‘suitable’ home, 
which is defined as social rented housing provided by a council or a registered 
provider for 4  
 
All of the increased duties detailed above have been incorporated within new 
processes and all members of the team have been fully trained and will continually 
be kept up to date with legislation changes and case law. 
 
1.8 Related strategies and policies 
 
There are also a number of strategies and policies that are closely related to the 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. These documents are reviewed and 
renewed to ensure they remain up-to-date and relevant. These include: 
 

 Affordable Housing Statement (see Appendix 1) 
 Hampshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 Allocation Framework 
 Provision of Temporary Accommodation Policy 
 Discharge of duty into Private Rented Sector Policy 
 Severe Weather Emergency Protocol 

 
 
 
2.0 Havant Borough Council’s Housing Services provision 

2.1 Services provided 

Havant Borough Council’s Housing Services comprises two teams – Housing 
Options and Advice and Housing Development which are both based in The Plaza in 
Havant. The Housing Options and Advice team provide housing advice and 
assistance to anyone who requires it free of charge. This can be to someone with an 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

8 
 

issue with their housing situation, or a provider who has an issue with an occupant of 
their accommodation. Advice is not restricted by tenure and anyone, whether living 
at home with family/friends, in a private or social rented property or owner occupiers, 
are equally as entitled to seek assistance.   

The team also has a statutory responsibility to process homelessness applications 
and to determine what duties are owed with assisting those at risk of losing their 
homes. In all cases, prevention is the preferred outcome, but where not possible, 
identifying alternative accommodation is the next step, and in some cases, the 
provision of temporary accommodation until a settled housing solution can be 
reached. 

The local housing authority also has a statutory responsibility to maintain a housing 
register which it does by processing applications for social housing through 
assessing a households housing needs to determine what priority should be 
awarded when allocating accommodation. 

The Council is a non-stock holding authority so works in partnership with its 
registered social landlords who manage the social housing within their borough to 
assist with the allocation of accommodation through Hampshire Home Choice, the 
sub-regional choice based lettings scheme. 

In addition to the housing options and advice provisions, the Housing Service is also 
responsible for ensuring the adequate provision of housing development within the 
borough through its housing enabling and housing strategy roles. This it does in 
close partnership with its planners, housing developers and registered providers. 
See Appendix 1 Affordable Housing Statement for more information. 

 

2.2 Access to Housing Services 

Housing options and advice can be accessed during office opening times Monday – 
Thursday 9.00am to 5.00pm and Friday 9.00am to 4.30pm either in person at The 
Plaza where a drop-in service is operated, through email at 
housingservices2@havant.gov.uk, or by telephone on 023 9244 6379. 

The Council is also obliged to ensure that an emergency service is provided outside 
of office hours which it does in partnership with East Hants District Council. Officer’s 
man a duty telephone line where enquiries are taken by referral from the Council’s 
Emergency Out of Hours Service, which can be reached on 07850 358156. 

 

2.3 Structure 

The Housing Options and Advice team is comprised 18 full and part-time staff 
managed by two housing managers, one leading on options and advice and line 
managing Housing Advisory Officers, the other leading on housing development and 
strategy and line managing Housing Support Officers. 

The teams provide a front-line service split between 5 full time equivalent Housing 
Advice Officers who take responsibility for processing and managing homelessness 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

9 
 

applications and 7.8 full time equivalent Housing Support Officers who work on a 
generic basis dealing with housing enquiries, processing housing register 
applications and allocation of social housing and homelessness prevention. 

Officers also take lead roles in representing the service in statutory and partnership 
working such as attendance at the Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangement 
(MAPPA) and Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) meetings, and 
attendance at the Early Help Hub, Child Protection and Children in Need planning 
conferences. 

 

2.4 Visitor numbers to the Housing Service 

The Plaza location is popular and easy to access.  Visitor numbers to the Plaza’s 
housing reception desk average 66 a week.  Of these there are typically 35 queries 
regarding Hampshire Home Choice, 13 homeless presentations and 18 other 
housing related 1queries that can often be related to the threat of homelessness.   

Data monitoring shows an upward trend in footfall over the period March to 
November 2018, which would fall in line with the expected increase in approaches 
following the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which was 
implemented in April 2018. And whilst these levels have not dropped in the 
subsequent period from December 2018 to August 2019, the level of housing advice 
enquiries appears to be rising as the reason for approach. 

As well as the services provided by Housing Services, customers can also seek 
assistance from organisations such as Two Saints, Richmond Fellowship and 
Havant Citizens Advice who provide housing related support drop ins at the Plaza.   

Customers can also seek other housing related advice such as with their housing 
benefit and discretionary housing payments claims and Council tax support requests, 
all of which are also provided out of the Plaza. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
1 Queries recorded as other include triage advice about housing, early intervention work to prevent 
homelessness and signposting to other support services 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

10 
 

Graph 1 

Number of Visitors to Housing Reception at the Plaza (weekly average) 

 

 

3.0 Identifying current and future levels of homelessness. 

3.1 Current levels of homelessness in the Havant borough. 

Table 1 

Overall number of homelessness applications opened 

No of approaches for advice and assistance (homelessness enquiries) 
 
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

(1st qtr) 
940 951 762 923 691 966 287 

 

Table 2   

Homelessness applications – by age range 

Profile of main applicant approaching as homeless (top 3) 
 2013-14 

 
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

 
2017-18 
 

2018-
19 

2019-
20 (1st 
qtr) 

Age range 
16-24 yrs 
 

29% 21% 32% 42% 41% 28% 27% 

25-44 yrs 
 

58% 52% 38% 29% 44% 52% 51% 

45-59 yrs 
 

11% 21% 14% 19% 6% 13% 16% 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

HHC Homeless Other

Visitors to reception (weekly averages)

March 2018 to November 2018 December 2018 to August 2019



V10 – 09.10.2019 

11 
 

Graph 2  

 

 

The figures for Table/Graph show a significant increase in the numbers of 16-24 year 
olds presenting as homeless from 2013 – 2018, which levels off in the following 
years with the increase then being seen in the 25-44 year olds.  

 

Graph 3  

       

 

In 2017-18, 44% of those who made a homeless approach were between the age 
ranges of 25-44 years.  16-24 year olds represented 41% of the total.  This could be 
largely due to the welfare benefit restrictions placed upon younger people when 
looking for accommodation, particularly under 35 year olds who are limited to rooms 
in shared houses due to only being entitled to the Single Accommodation Rate of 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20 (1st qtr)

Homelessness approach by age range over time (%)

45-59yrs 25-44yrs 16-24yrs

45%

48%

7%

2017-18

16-24yrs 25-44yrs 45-59yrs

30%

56%

14%

2018-19 & 2019-20 (1ST 
QTR)

16-24yrs 25-44yrs 45-59yrs



V10 – 09.10.2019 

12 
 

support.  With the lack of such accommodation which is suitable and affordable 
within the borough, this impacts on their ability to resolve their housing needs. 

There is also a lack of housing for 16-25 year olds within the borough that provides 
any form of support to nurture independent living skills such as that which a 
supported lodgings or a foyer could provide. 

In the following years the number of approaches from younger households dropped 
with a swing towards the 25-44 year age group.  

 

The following comparison information can only be provided up to 2018 due to 
the implementation of the HRA and the accompanying statistical information 
that can be gleaned from the data collected. 

Table 3 

Homelessness applications - by household type 

Household make-up (top 3) 
 2013-14 

(38) 
2014-15 
(33) 

2015-16 
(37) 

2016-17 
(31) 

2017-18 
(34) 

Couple & 
child/ren or 
pregnant 

26% 33% 32% 16% 26% 

Single parent & 
child/ren 

45% 36% 35% 61% 53% 

Single person 
 

26% 18% 24% 16% 18% 

 

Graph 4 

 

 

26%

53%

18%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Couple & dependant or pregnant

Single parent & dependant

Single person

Homelessness applications by household type  2017-18
Top 3 categories (%)



V10 – 09.10.2019 

13 
 

The predominant household type has consistently remained the single parent with 
dependent children. With parental evictions and breakdown of relationships as the 
reason for homelessness also remaining consistent, it follows that this would be so.   

 

Table 4  

Homelessness applications – by priority 

Priority need (top 3) 
 2013-14 

(38) 
2014-15 
(33) 

2015-16 
(37) 

2016-17 
(31) 

2017-18 
(34) 

Household 
with children 

68% 70% 65% 84% 76% 

Physical 
disability 

5% 9% 8% 3% 9% 

Mental health 
 

13% 6% - - 6% 

Old age 
 

- - 14% 10% - 

 

 

Graph 5 

 

 

Households with children make up the largest group of households deemed in 
priority need.  This pattern has not altered significantly over time.  

 

 

76%

9%

6%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Household with children

Physical disability

Mental health

Homelessness applications by Priority need 2017-18 Top 3 
categories (%)



V10 – 09.10.2019 

14 
 

Table 5 

Reason for Approach 

Reason for approach (top 3) 

 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

End of AST 
 

24% - 24% 35% 15% 

Family/friends 
unable to accom 

24% 30% 35% 42% 65% 

Relationship 
breakdown 
(violent) 

16% 15% - - - 

Relationship 
breakdown (non-
violent) 

- - - 10% 6% 

Rent arrears 
 

- - 11% - - 

Mortgage 
difficulties 

- 15% - - - 

 

Graph 6 

 

In 2017-18, exclusions from family or friends accounted for 65% of the homeless 
approaches made to the Housing service.  This reflects an increasing pattern year-
on-year and also mirrors the national picture of the top reason for homelessness.  

 

 

 

 

 

15%

65%

6%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

End of tenancy Family/friends unable to
accom

Relationship breakdown
(non-violent)

Reason for approach 2017-18 %



V10 – 09.10.2019 

15 
 

Table 6 

Outcomes: 

Homelessness prevented / relieved 
 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Able to remain in 
home 

505 462 322 373 281 

Assisted to secure 
alt accom 

221 241 233 281 212 

Homelessness 
relieved 

60 70 69 91 58 

Total 786 773 624 745 551 
 

Graph 7 

 

The data shows a significant decrease in the number of cases where households 
were able to remain in their home.  The introduction of welfare reforms and the 
freezing of the rates of housing benefit entitlement against the increases in market 
rents over the past few years has left an unaffordable gap for many households 
when trying to meet their housing costs.  This could be a significant factor in the 
number of incidences of homelessness being prevented by enabling a household to 
remain in their home in more recent years. 

The number of household helped to secure alternative accommodation has 
remained largely static, although this is also beginning to drop because of the 
reasons mentioned above.  With the lack of social housing also being a factor, 
finding suitable accommodation for households to move to is proving more difficult. 

Homelessness – April 2018 onwards 

Since the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act – the way we report on 
homelessness has changed to reflect the change in the legislation. 

The following table reflects the current reporting outcomes for homelessness 
application approaches: 

 

281

212

58

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Able to remain in home Assisted to help secure alt accom Homelessness relieved

Outcomes of homelessness approaches 2017-18 
Number



V10 – 09.10.2019 

16 
 

Table 7 

Outcomes 2018-19 2019-20 (1st qtr) 

Advice only/Early closure 321 89 

Cancelled 3 0 

Ineligible 3 0 

Main duty accepted 4 1 

Main duty discharged 19 2 

No duty 20 8 

Prevented 295 52 

Assisted through Discretionary 
Housing Payment 

221 89 

Reasonable assistance duty 
accepted 

0 1 

Reasonable assistance duty 
discharged 

4 0 

Relieved 50 11 

Triage 0 3 

Under intervention 0 1 

Under prevention 24 27 

Under relief 2 3 

Total  966 287 

 

Table 8  

Homelessness acceptances 

2013 - 2014 38 
2014 - 2015 32 
2015 - 2016 37 
2016 - 2017 31 
2017 - 2018 34 
2018 - 2019 23 
2019 - 2020 3 (1st quarter) 

Table 8 

Temporary accommodation and emergency housing (in brackets are the number of 
weeks spent in B&B) 

Numbers of households accommodated in temp accom (B&B) 
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

(1st qtr) 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

17 
 

46  65 71 (215) 50 (214) 59 (228) 78 (307) 27 
 

Aside from a dip in 2016-17, there has been a year-on-year rise in the number of 
households requiring placement into emergency temporary accommodation (B&B) 
as a result of a homelessness application. The projection for 2019-20 shows a 
marked increase of 83% from 2017-2018.  This is largely due to the difficulties for 
households accessing alternative accommodation in the private sector for the 
reasons mentioned previously, the waiting times to be considered for social housing 
and the lack of development in the social housing sector. 

In order to reduce the number of households having to be placed in Bed and 
Breakfast accommodation the Council continues to work with its partners in the 
private and social rented sectors to identify additional resources for the provision of 
either medium or long-term housing. The Council has also commissioned the 
provision of bespoke housing related support and can provide financial support to 
help those currently in Bed and Breakfast to assist to move on to more suitable 
accommodation as soon as possible.  Further measures being considered include 
the utilisation of affordable housing contributions to identify innovative housing 
solutions; the consideration of agreements in local lettings plans to allocate a 
proportion of properties to homeless households and a review of the Allocations 
Framework to ensure homeless households are effectively represented.  

Graph 8 

 

 

Wherever possible the council will endeavour to prevent homelessness to avoid a 
household having to be placed in to emergency accommodation. One of the options 
available to reduce homelessness includes households being assisted to access 
private rented sector (PRS) accommodation with the help of financial assistance 
from the council to secure the accommodation.   

The council also has access to longer term private rented sector accommodation 
through its Supported Tenancy Scheme (STS) and via nominations through a 

12 14

4 4

57

68

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2018 2019

Assistance into private sector options

Vivid PSL STS PRS (with financial support)



V10 – 09.10.2019 

18 
 

partnership agreement with Vivid Homes who operate a private leasing scheme 
(PSL). 

3.2 Future levels of housing needs 

Whilst single parents with dependent children remain the main type of household 
approaching for assistance, we are seeing an increase in younger people with a 
housing need.   

We therefore need to establish why this is, whether due to financial constraints 
young people are unable to remain in the family home for as long needed, or 
whether because of their lack of independent living skills they are unable to sustain 
accommodation once leaving home. 

There is also an increase in households having to utilise temporary accommodation 
until a more suitable housing solution can be reached, with a lack of such available 
in either the private or social housing sectors.   

We therefore need to work with our partners in both housing sectors to develop and 
maximise the resources available to provide housing for those who need it.  And 
given the increase in younger people approaching, this also needs to include 
accommodation suitable for this cohort, whether it be supported housing, or 
accommodation that will comply with the single accommodation rate of affordability. 

It is also expected that the number of households recorded as homeless or 
threatened with homelessness will show a marked increase from previous years 
because of the new duties under the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which 
places a wider responsibility on local authorities to assess homelessness at an 
earlier stage than previous to the implementation of the legislation and to assess and 
assist more households than it previously had a duty to. 

This coupled with the new Duty to Refer placed on Public Bodies with effect from 1 
October 2018 should also see an increase on the numbers of households 
approaching as homeless. 

 

4 Rough Sleeping 

Every Autumn, local authorities are required to conduct an annual survey of the 
number of people sleeping rough in their area. Typically, this involves a snapshot 
survey where a count is carried out on a given date and/or a collection of data 
obtained from services working in the local area of known rough sleepers is collated 
(known as an estimate).  

The local authority cannot carry out this requirement in isolation.  It relies on its 
partner agencies, community and voluntary organisations to provide the intelligence 
to feed into the annual rough sleeper return. 

Table 9a Rough Sleeper Counts/Estimates 2018 for the County 

Location Rough Sleeping numbers 
East Hampshire 4 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

19 
 

Havant 5 
Basingstoke & Deane 8 
Rushmoor 8 
Hart 0 
Fareham 19 
Gosport 0 
Test Valley 9 
Eastleigh 0 
New Forest 8 
Winchester 8 

 

In order to keep the data clean and not have individuals who could cross boroughs 
and be counted twice, the local authorities in Hampshire have agreed to conduct 
their surveys on the same night. This is co-ordinated through the Hampshire 
Homelessness Group. 

This is however, only a survey of rough sleeping. We know there is a considerable 
amount of sofa surfing and individuals relying on fragile accommodation resources to 
keep them from rough sleeping.   

More work needs to be done to understand the levels of sofa surfing within the 
borough not only to reflect the true picture of need, but also to be able to understand 
the level of preventative work that needs to be undertaken to ensure individuals do 
not slip in to rough sleeping. 

 

Table 9b 

Rough Sleeper Figures for Havant (from annual Autumn rough sleeper 
count/estimate) 

Rough Sleeper figures 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
3 10 8 10 5 

 

The recorded numbers of rough sleepers taken during previous surveys have largely 
remained stable. Havant, unlike its neighbouring borough Portsmouth, is not a large 
city which can attract rough sleeping and does not see the level of street begging like 
larger districts. Nevertheless, there are pockets of rough sleeping activity which, 
whilst small in comparison to other districts, are still a cause for concern, particularly 
with the lack of suitable accommodation such as stage 1 supported housing or night 
shelter facilities available in the borough to provide much needed shelter. 

For people who are homeless and without entitlement or access to housing, the 
provision of Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) is their only chance to 

escape severe weather. Havant Borough Council triggers SWEP during short 

periods of high risk weather. The minimum trigger is a forecast of three nights below 
freezing, so that people sleeping rough have a bed out of harm’s way. While it 
should not be the only response to rough sleeping, SWEP is vital to prevent harm 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

20 
 

and death. This is the only type of provision that is open to all, including people with 
no recourse to public funds and those who have been excluded from other services.  
HBC has been very flexible in respect of the weather criteria and have extended it in 
times of extreme wet and windy weather too. 

The Council has been successful in obtaining funding from the Government’s £11m 
Rough Sleeper Initiative which has been utilised to have a dedicated outreach 
worker in place to work with rough sleepers to enable them to engage with services, 
so they may end their rough sleeping and also to co-ordinate the services available 
in order to focus the resources on assisting rough sleepers into support and housing 
rather than facilitating a continued rough sleeping lifestyle. 

5 Demand for social housing and affordable housing 

Current housing need is high with 1697 households registered on Hampshire Home 
Choice (HHC) (the housing register) in Havant at July 2019.  In 2017/18, with 1753 
households on the Housing Register at the end of the year, 228 households secured 
accommodation through Hampshire Home Choice, whilst in 2018/19 with 1603 
households on the Housing Register at the end of the year, 271 households secured 
accommodation, the increase in allocations largely due to a number of new 
developments bringing forward additional units.   

However, as can be seen in Table 9, there has been a drop in the numbers of 
households registered for social housing in the borough which is largely due to the 
changes brought about with the introduction of the Localism Act 2011. The Act 
allowed local authorities to review their allocations policies to ensure that local needs 
were being met.  The Council also took the opportunity to remove Band 5 from the 
housing register as applicants in this band had no assessed need to be housed and 
was not therefore a true reflection of housing need in the area. 

At the same time of reviewing the HHC scheme, a renewal process of all 
applications was carried out.  This ensured that all applicants re-joining the revised 
scheme were up to date and accurate.  This process often leads to a drop in 
applications as people’s circumstances change and they no longer require to remain 
on the list for social housing. Housing Services has continued to renew applications 
consistently since this initial renewal process ensuring that the housing register is a 
true reflection of the demand for social sector accommodation in the area. 

 

Table 10 

Number of households on Hampshire Home Choice 

Numbers on Hampshire Home Choice housing register for HBC area (as at 
end of March in year) 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
2548 2803 2003 1753 1782 1603 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

21 
 

The wait for social housing remain high with current average waiting times for 1-
bedroom accommodation at 6 years and for 2-bedroom and 3-bedroom 
accommodation at 5 years.  

However, applicants can obtain feedback information on recent social housing lets 
through the Hampshire Home Choice website so that they may see where the 
demand for accommodation lies and adjust their bidding strategy accordingly to 
improve their prospects of rehousing through the scheme. 

 

Table 11 

Number of allocations of housing through Hampshire Home Choice 

Numbers of allocations through Hampshire Home Choice for HBC area (as at 
end of March in year) 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
248 362 355 339 228 271 

 

Table 12 

Average waiting times for applicants housed in Havant between 1 April 2018 and 31 
March 2019 

 Band 2 Band 3 Band 4 
 
1 bed 

 
1 year 4 months 

 
2 years 3 months 

 
N/A 

 
2 bed flat 1 year 2 months 

 
3 years 3 months  

 
N/A 

2 bed house 10 months 
 

5 years 6 months 
 

N/A 

3 bed 10 months 
 

5 years 1 month 
 

N/A 
 
4+ bed N/A 

 
3 years 7 months 

 
N/A 

    
 
55+ properties 

 
1 year 3 months 

 
2 years 9 months 

 
N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

22 
 

Table 13 

Numbers of units of new affordable housing completions (as at end of March 
in each year)  

Tenure 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Shared 
equity 

2 0 0 0 0  0 

Discounted 
market Sale 

0 6 0 0 0  0 

Social Rent 2 0 3 2 0  0 

Affordable 
Rent 

49 159 83 92 53  67 

Intermediate 
Rented 

0 0 1 19 5  0 

Rent to Buy 0 0 0 16 1  12 

Shared 
Ownership 

20 61 64 39 17  15 

First Buy 16 0 0 0 0  0 

Mortgage 
Rescue 

0 2 0 0 0  0 

Total for 
each year 

89 228 151 168 76  94 

 

The higher figures of the level of numbers of allocations through Hampshire Home 
Choice shown in Table 10 for years 2015-2017 are largely due to where there are 
periods of development of new units of accommodation, as is mirrored in Table 11.  
In comparison, years 2014 and 2018 saw very little development and therefore the 
number of allocations shown are mainly down to re-lets. 

If allocations circa 200+ a year is to be the norm with respect to re-lets, then it is 
clear that the number of allocations versus the numbers of applicants on the housing 
register is disproportionate and the increased development of affordable housing is 
therefore crucial if the need for social housing is to be met. 

 

6 Affordability of housing in the borough 

The main housing options to those who are homeless or facing homeless are in 
either the social or private housing sectors, low cost home ownership often being out 
of their reach as many household are on low incomes or benefit reliant. 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

23 
 

With social housing only being a long-term aspiration for many, this further reduces 
the options available for a medium-term solution to the private rented sector only. 

It is recognised that there is great disparity between the levels of rents being charged 
for private rented accommodation and the financial assistance that benefit 
dependent or low-income households can receive for helping them to secure and 
maintain this type of accommodation as the following two Tables 11 and 12 shows. 

Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates are meant to cover the cheapest 30 per cent of 
homes in any given area. But they haven’t been increased in line with local rents 
since April 2013 and they remain frozen until April 2020.  As a result, renters are 
facing gaps between the support they can receive, and the rent being asked. Rates 
have fallen so far behind even the cheapest private rents have become unaffordable 
for most low-income tenants – putting them at risk of homelessness as they are 
forced to choose between basic living expenses and paying the shortfall. 

This coupled with the fact that LHA will only cover a rent up to a four-bedroom rate, 
those households who require a five-bedroom property or more are unable to afford 
such accommodation at all. 

 

Table 14 

Local Housing Allowances (LHA) rates – PO7, PO8, PO9, PO11 areas 
Bedroom Size Weekly charge (£) Per calendar month (£) 
Single room rate 69.04 299.17 
1 116.53 504.96 
2 144.36 625.56 
3 173.06 749.93 
4 240.00 1040.00 

 

Local Housing Allowances (LHA) rates – PO10 area 
Bedroom Size Weekly charge (£) Per calendar month (£) 
Single room rate 73.58 318.85 
1 134.02 580.75 
2 168.00 728.00 
3 198.11 858.48 
4 268.03 1161.46 

 

Table 15 

Advertised rent levels (across all postcodes) 
Bedroom size Average weekly rent (£) Average rent per 

calendar month (£) 
Single room rate 120.00 520.00 
1 143.37 621.25 
2 191.08 828.03 
3 277.91 987.63 
4 318.00 1378.00 

Source: rightmove 28.02.2019 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

24 
 

7 The Homelessness Partnership Forum  

To help feed into the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and the districts 
homelessness review, workshops and meetings were held.  Representatives from 
partner organisations both statutory, community and voluntary, were invited to attend 
the anyone unable to attend was invited to provide information regarding the support 
they provide in order to feed into the review.  A list of organisations invited to attend 
the workshops/meetings or take place in subsequent consultation can be found at 
Appendix 2. 

As part of local authority shared services, the partnership forum included 
representatives from a wide range of public, private, community and voluntary 
organisations working across both Havant Borough Council and East Hampshire 
District Council areas. The workshop sought to map out the existing support and 
service provision that contributes to the prevention and relief of homelessness 
across the two authorities. The forum also sought to identify issues which hampered 
support to those who were homeless or threatened with homelessness and consider 
ways in which these could be overcome or be improved. 

The outcome of this process enabled us to identify the areas of work which needed 
to be included in the strategy’s action plan. It is also envisaged that the action plan 
will remain in the ownership of not just the Council, but also this Homelessness 
Partnership Forum who will continue to meet to discuss and develop ways in which 
to reduce homelessness within the borough and provide the most appropriate 
services to those in need. 

The ethos of the Homelessness Reduction Act is that ‘homelessness prevention is 
everyone’s business’ which is particularly reflected in the Duty to Refer where public 
bodies are expected to identify within their service those users who may be 
homeless or threatened with homelessness and refer to housing services for advice 
and assistance as early as possible.   

The Homelessness Reduction Act also places a more holistic approach to an 
individual’s housing needs, not only to identify why they are homeless, but also what 
support needs they may have that need addressing which could prevent them 
becoming homeless now or in the future. There is therefore an even more imperative 
need for services to work under a multi-agency approach as Housing Services 
cannot meet all the complex needs of individuals in isolation. 

 

The questions put to the attendees included: 

Q1) What arrangements/resources does your organisation have in place to 
support the homeless/those threatened with homelessness? 

Q2) What barriers/issues have you encountered when trying to support 
homeless households? 

Q3) What more needs to be done to overcome these barriers? 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

25 
 

7.1 Q1) Existing Resources in place to support homeless/those threatened 
with homelessness 

The following sections provide an outline of the available support in the local area 
provided by those who gave feedback to the homelessness partnership forum.  

7.1.1 Housing advice services 

Havant Borough Council’s Housing Services provides a wide-range of advice and 
support as part of its statutory role including general all-tenure housing advice, and 
help and support for homeless people and those at risk of homelessness. The 
Service also provides advice and support to private sector landlords as part of its 
private rental housing scheme.  

Under the new duties of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, when approaching 
as homeless an individual is entitled to a full Housing Needs Assessment which will 
detail their wants and needs in terms of both housing and any support they may 
require to keep or obtain housing. From this a Personalised Housing Plan will be 
agreed and drafted. This will detail the actions both the Council and the applicant 
can take to prevent their homelessness, including what options are available to meet 
their specific needs. 

These options may include measures to enable them to stay in their current homes, 
or where not possible, seeking alternative accommodation. This may be in the 
private rented sector, through an allocation of social housing, a referral to supported 
accommodation, through the Councils Supported Tenancy Scheme or a nomination 
to a leased property with our partner’s Vivid housing. In cases where a satisfactory 
resolution may not be found, temporary accommodation by way of Bed and 
Breakfast may be an option. 

* 

Housing advice and guidance relating to rights across all tenure types, as well as 
homelessness, is available from Havant Citizens Advice (HCA) through the services 
commissioned under an £140k contract with Havant Borough Council.  HCA 
provides support via a variety of media – in person, through webchat and telephone 
services and also by signposting clients to other agencies and specialists where 
appropriate, including Shelter and in-house staff. HCA’s support is available to 
anyone and can include such measures as negotiating with landlords and providing 
support with court and legal advice and in doing so provides prevention work to on 
average 100 people a year threatened with immediate homelessness.   

* 

Two Saints provides a comprehensive advice service through Hampshire County 
Council’s Social Inclusion contract, offering support through referrals and drop-in 
services across a number of locations throughout the borough, including the Plaza, 
the Beacon in the Meridian Centre, Waterlooville and Hayling Island. They also offer 
to help people with finding accommodation as well as tenancy support to those 
housed. Two Saints has an ongoing active case load of 80 cases providing support 
to about 600 cases a year.  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

26 
 

* 

Registered providers (RPs) of housing stock within the borough of Havant also 
provide tenancy support to their residents who are in breach of, or at risk of 
breaching, their tenancy obligations in an effort to maximise tenancy sustainment 
and reduce the level of repossession action resulting in homelessness.   

The Guinness Partnership is the stock holder of the largest number of units within 
the borough having acquired the units from the Council through Large Scale 
Voluntary Transfer. 

Tenancy support is provided in a variety of ways by the RPs with properties in the 
Havant district, who include Vivid, Radian, Guinness Partnership, Hyde and Aster, 
but in the main includes: 

 Budgeting advice and financial planning 

 Maximising income including advice on what benefits to claim 

 Assistance to manage and get help with utility bills 

 Improving health and accessing local services such as GP or specialist 
support such as for substance misuse 

 Help into training and employment 

 How to be a good tenant in regard to nuisance and anti-social behaviour 

* 

Portsmouth City Council also provides support to its tenants who occupy the stock of 
accommodation they own within the borough of Havant, which amounts to in the 
region of 5,000 properties. They have a local neighbourhood office in Leigh Park 
from where housing officers manage the tenancies, with homelessness advice being 
provided from their housing advice and support team in their central offices in 
Portsmouth. 

Given the unique situation Havant Borough Council and Portsmouth City Council find 
themselves in with one having stock within the other’s borough, a Joint Working 
Protocol has also been developed to ensure that customers receive the correct 
service from their respective local authority and that duties under the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 are followed consistently.  

 

7.1.2 Financial support and advice services 

Housing Services can provide financial support aimed at prevention and relief of 
homelessness by assisting with start-up costs to secure accommodation and where 
appropriate, by making payments to sustain existing accommodation. The need for 
such support will be identified from completion of a Housing Needs Assessment and 
will form part of the Personalised Housing Plan. Support provided will be based on 
affordability and may include referral to other agencies to help further with sustaining 
financial stability. 

* 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

27 
 

Financial advice and support is available from Havant Citizens Advice (HCA) which 
can include help with managing money; debt advice; tackling mortgage or rent 
arrears; help with banking; and utilising the StepChange Debt Charity Remedy tool.  
HCA seek to match people to charitable funding providers to maximise income or 
reduce debt. HCA also offer a ‘Help to Claim’ service at the Jobcentre to support 
people making Universal Credit claims and understand how the benefit works. 

* 

Support for start-up costs to secure accommodation is available through Two Saints 
and they make direct referrals to HCA for budgeting and housing benefit advice to 
ensure future financial stability.  

* 

The Revenues and Benefits Service of Havant Borough Council, which is provided 
by Capita Services, works closely with Housing Services to provide advice and 
support to household eligible for assistance through housing benefit (Local Housing 
Allowance) and provides supplementary support through its Discretionary Housing 
Payment scheme (DHP). DHP can support households facing unforeseen changes 
which create financial hardship such as that following a change in circumstances like 
a job loss or period of ill health. DHP has also been used to provide temporary 
support for households’ subject to changes in welfare benefit policy such as the 
‘Bedroom Tax’ or Spare Room Subsidy.   

 

7.1.3 Employment and training 

Housing Services has for the last two years facilitated a job fair at the Plaza inviting 
employers and training providers to show case their services in order to attract 
potential employees or students to their courses. These fairs have proved a success 
and hope to be continued as it is recognised that worklessness can lead to 
homelessness and enabling people to work or become work ready is a positive step 
towards preventing homelessness. 

* 

Havant Citizens Advice provide advice on employment rights such as on pay; 
contracts; holiday and sick leave; flexible working, parental rights, discrimination and 
grievances.   

* 

Community First through its Positive Pathways programme provides support for 
people looking to return to work, including confidence building, volunteering and 
work experience.  

* 

Jobcentre Plus offers a wide range of help to support people back to work. 
Customers receive personalised support from their work coach. In addition, 
Jobcentre Plus offers work related training via partners such as colleges and training 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

28 
 

providers as well as employability training to build job search skills, confidence and 
motivation. This is often focused on groups of customers with particular needs, such 
as health issues and disabilities or those who need to improve IT, literacy or other 
skills. In addition, work coaches signpost customers to a wide range of organisations 
in the area which can offer appropriate specialist support and information. Processes 
are in place to support vulnerable people such as those who are homeless or subject 
to domestic abuse. The Jobcentre works with a number of local and national 
employers to ensure customers have access to employment opportunities. This 
includes voluntary work experience placements to build confidence and work-related 
skills. Financial support can be available to assist with travel expenses to attend 
interviews or other items to overcome barriers to employment. 

 

7.1.4 Support with relationship problems and victims of domestic abuse 

Relationship support and advice is available through Havant Citizens Advice 
including marriage and civil partnerships; ending relationships; family relations; and 
domestic abuse or gender violence, with signposting to more specialist advice and 
services where appropriate.  

* 

Domestic abuse services have recently been recommissioned through Hampshire 
County Council to provide accommodation and support services across Hampshire.  
Stop Domestic Abuse (SDA) is the provider currently contracted and in the Havant 
area provides emergency accommodation for victims of domestic abuse through its 6 
bed unit in Havant and 9 bed unit in Alton in addition to two move-on properties in 
Havant.  It has access to some limited funds to help support residents with start-up 
costs for moving in to rented accommodation.   

 

7.1.5 Support for Young People and Families 

Havant Borough Council’s Supported Families Programme offers a range of support 
for families experiencing a range multiple complex needs including homelessness; 
worklessness; mental or physical health; school absences; offending or anti-social 
behaviour; or substance misuse issues. Each family will have a family plan and a key 
worker who will help co-ordinate support services. This service is time limited with 
funding due to end by March 2021. 

Housing Services work in partnership with Hampshire County Council’s Children in 
Care and Leaving Care teams to support young people who may be facing 
homelessness through end of in-care placements or when they are ready to access 
independent living.   

* 

Motiv8 is based in The Hub, Park Parade, Havant, and offers a range of activities for 
young people aged between 11-19 years old. Such activities include advice on 
careers and volunteering and improving access to education, work and training; 
confidence building; support with health and wellbeing; a confidential Listening Ear 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

29 
 

project in South Down college; and working in partnership with Hampshire County 
Council providing an intensive support service to the whole family including 
enhancing parental skills and support with family relationships. 

* 

Off the Record (South East Hampshire) offers a free information, support and 
counselling service to young people between the age 11-25 through a local drop-in 
service in Havant, or by phone or email. Support around anxiety; stress with 
school/college; being a young carer; health and wellbeing and family relationships is 
on offer. 

* 

Local schools and colleges, including South Downs and Havant; provide support 
through welfare advisors and will channel families for additional specialist help and 
advice by referring households to the Early Help Hub (EHH). The EHH provides a 
lead professional for families to co-ordinate services to support families through a 
range of support needs. 

 

7.1.6 Support for Older people 

Hampshire County Council’s Adult Social Care (ASC) Independent Living services 
includes development of extra care accommodation for older people, and supports 
with digital technology to help people maintain their independence at home. ASC 
also have an obligation under the Care Act to carry out assessments of need and 
enable the provision of appropriate care to meet those needs. 

* 

Age UK provides advice and support at local level and offers a dedicated advice line, 
a befriending service and a comprehensive advice and sign-posting services aimed 
at making living at home more manageable for older people. They can also provide 
advice and assistance with services specifically designed for older persons such as 
tax and pension advice; housing options; budgeting on retirement and signposting to 
health and care services. 

 

7.1.7 Support for mental health 

Hampshire County Council’s Adult Social Care Mental Health Team (ASCMHT) has 
a statutory duty under the Care Act to carry out assessments and enable the 
provision of appropriate care to meet those needs which can include referrals to 
supported accommodation where there is a housing need. The ASCMHT provide 
social inclusion services to help people integration back into the community whilst 
the Community Mental Health (NHS Havant) can provide hostel accommodation 
through referral via the Parkway Centre, the police or GP services.  

* 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

30 
 

Havant Housing Association specialises in support and accommodation for people 
with learning disabilities and mental health and has 120 units across Havant and 
Waterlooville. They provide long-term support and help with life skills and 
independent living through support workers and their mentoring services.  

* 

Elmleigh provides inpatient acute services treatment and care for people with severe 
mental illness with three ‘step-down’ bed placements being available before patients 
move back to or on to independent living. Dedicated treatment plans are provided 
following individual assessment with referrals to services being completed by the GP 
through the local Community Mental Health Team. 

* 

MIND operates local support from The Hub in Leigh Park through individual or group 
work and further help is available through iTalk which offers both web and phoned 
based advice and support.  

* 

Richmond Fellowship is currently contracted through Hampshire County Council to 
provide supported housing through its shared homes and independent living units 
across Havant, East Hants, Fareham and Gosport. Accommodation is provided via 
stage 1 and stage 2 move on accommodation supporting residents to ultimately 
move on to independent living. 

 

7.1.8 Support for substance misuse 

Inclusion provides support and treatment at The Orion Centre in Havant, to anyone 
affected by drug or alcohol misuse and supports those seeking recovery as well as 
those impacted by someone else’s drug or alcohol use. Support is available through 
direct access to services.  

 

7.1.9 Support for ex-offenders 

The National Probation Service is a statutory criminal justice service that supervises 
high-risk offenders released into the community. The service provides ‘Approved 
Premises’ accommodation for some offenders where additional protection for the 
wider public is considered appropriate on their release from prison. 

* 

The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Community Rehabilitation Company provide 
support to offenders to make lasting change looking at all aspects of their lives that 
may impact on their offending behaviour, such as lack of housing. The service 
provides support and advice including help with the completion of forms as well as 
sign-posting to other support providers. Support can also be provided to individuals 
with travel warrants to access services.  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

31 
 

7.1.10 Support for rough sleepers  

Housing Services provide advice and assistance to rough sleepers presenting as 
homeless through the individual Housing Needs Assessments and resulting 
Personalised Housing Plans. Reports of rough sleepers requiring support are also 
received in Housing Services via the Streetlink website and referred to Two Saints to 
engage with the rough sleeper and ensure that support and assistance is offered.  
The Council are also responsible for monitoring the need for a Severe Weather 
Emergency Protocol provision whereby rough sleepers are accommodated during 
periods of severe weather, such as freezing temperatures or bouts of heavy rainfall. 

* 

Two Saints is commissioned by Hampshire County Council through the Social 
Inclusion contract and part of their provision is to work with single people and provide 
support to rough sleepers and to those who require help finding alternative 
accommodation. Two Saints provides drop-in services throughout the local area and 
support in the community. 

* 

The Beacon, Portsdown Community Church and the Havant Homeless Trust work 
together to provide food, laundry vouchers, clothing and emergency supplies 
including tents and sleeping bags to rough sleepers.   

* 

The Homeless Network Meeting is held quarterly and attended by Housing Services, 
Two Saints, the police, Havant Citizens Advice, The Beacon, Community First and 
the local churches to discuss the provision of services to rough sleepers and identify 
where gaps in services need to be filled. 

* 

Winchester Night Shelter provides 17 night-shelter places for over 18’s with 1-2-1 
support provided (including tenancy training) and 8 off-site placements. Attached to 
this, the Trinity Day Centre provides advice and support including a 6-week well-
being course. The night shelter does not operate a local connection criteria so 
referrals from Havant can be considered. 

 

7.1.11 Food, clothing, transport, furniture, etc 

The Beacon Foodbank alongside Portsdown Community Church provides daily 
support through its Café in the Meridian Centre by way of providing a listening ear, 
food and signposting to other support agencies. It specifically works with Havant 
Citizens Advice and Two Saints to provide extra support.   

Further foodbank support is available through the Waterlooville Foodbank and 
Foodbank PO9 which is administered through St Francis’ Church Leigh Park and St 
Claire’s Church, Warren Park, Havant. 

* 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

32 
 

The United Reform Church in Havant provides free lunches on Saturdays. They, 
together with other churches in the district, also have stock of clothes and through 
the Homeless Trust can also provide laundry vouchers. 

* 

The Havant Homeless Trust also received some grant funding through Havant 
Borough Council from the South Hampshire Regional Rough Sleeping Group to 
provide provisions and support to assist rough sleepers. 

* 

The Probation Service can provide travel warrants to those on probation to assist 
with help to access accommodation.  

*  

The SCRATCH Project in Southampton provides a service to people within the 
Southampton and surrounding areas to assist relieve the effects of poverty. They 
can provide furniture, carpets, domestic appliances and removals via referral from a 
professional agency. Services are not all free, but whatever costs incurred are 
minimal. 

* 

Stella’s Voice charity shop at the Tanneries in Havant provides low cost donated 
items of furniture and household goods for sale. 

* 

The Connect to Support Hampshire website 
(www.connecttosupporthampshire.org.uk) provides links to other support agencies. It 
is an online information and advice guide and directory of services for adult residents 
in Hampshire to find information, advice and services to manage their own care and 
wellbeing. There is also information about local groups, activities and services within 
the community as well as formal care provision. 

 

8  Q2) What barriers/issues have you encountered when trying to support 
homeless households? 

Q3) What more needs to be done to overcome these barriers? 

 

The Homelessness Partnership Forum sought to identify what barriers it was felt 
there were for individuals accessing assistance when faced with homelessness. 

As the feedback tended to fall into common categories, the responses have been 
grouped by subject or theme, together with any suggestions also given as to what 
more needs to be done to overcome these barriers. 

 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

33 
 

8.1 The Customer Experience  
 
Many services felt customers were not accessing services soon enough or engaging 
with services effectively once they had done so. 
 
The Duty to Refer has been brought in to ensure that public bodies recognise an 
individual’s need for homelessness advice and are now obliged to ensure that 
referrals are made as early as possible so that services can start assisting with the 
appropriate housing advice to prevent homelessness. 
 

A survey was undertaken to gauge how well the Housing Services Team are 
responding to and meeting the needs of customers who are approaching the Council 
for housing assistance when facing homelessness or who could be homeless. We 
contacted three groups of customers: 

1. Customers at the start of their journey, accessing advice and assistance with 
an emerging housing issue 

2. Customers accessing advice and assistance who were threatened with 
homelessness 

3. Customers accessing advice and assistance who were homeless 

They were asked to answer a series of questions via a telephone call. 
 
Feedback summary from group 1: 
 

 Build more houses 

 The lady who helped me was incredibly helpful and friendly 

Feedback summary from group 2: 

 It all went really well, better communication with Housing Benefit team 
 The officer who dealt with me was very polite and helpful 

Feedback summary from group 3: 
 

 Service was good 

 Some confusion between support worker and housing officer but when dealt 
directly with housing officer it got better 

 Two Saints (support service referred to by housing officer) were fantastic  

Overall collective findings 
 

 38% of customers knew to come to the council for assistance 

 100% of customers accessed the housing service by coming into the offices 

 88% found it very easy to fairly easy to access housing services 

 50% felt their approach was dealt with very quickly/quickly and efficiently with 
the other 50% reporting an average approach 

 88% felt they were dealt with politely and respectfully to a great extent 

 100% felt that the advice they received was very clear and helpful 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

34 
 

How is it going to impact the service delivery in the future? 
 
Feedback on the whole was very positive and complimentary with most customers 
finding the service easy to access with very clear and helpful advice. 
 
However, there are some areas where we need to improve including: 
 

 Promoting the services the council provides so customers know to approach 
us when they experience housing issues 

 Look at ways to improve communications with other departments 
 Look at ways to improve the speed and efficiency customers are dealt with 

when approaching housing to ensure an above average experience for all 
 Continue to promote the need for more forms of suitable and affordable 

housing whether through social housing development or in partnership with 
the private rented sector 

 
(for full response to customer survey please see appendix 3) 
 
All services also need to examine why customers disengage and review their 
practices to ensure that re-engagement is possible when the individual is ready to do 
so, not continue to work on a ‘three strikes and you’re out’ basis, understanding that 
individuals, especially those with complex needs, will take some time to engage 
effectively. 
 
* 
 
Services experience customers with very complex needs which are difficult to 
address because of their lifestyle choices and behaviours and their lack of life skills, 
such as being able to manage budgets etc. 
 
It is imperative that all services are aware of what help and assistance is available to 
our customers to help to start to address some of these issues and make appropriate 
referrals and signposting so that the support they need can be obtained. No one 
service can assist an individual in isolation, we all must work in partnership to put a 
team around the person to tackle the complex issues together. 
 
* 
 
Services are also finding that customers have unrealistic expectations of what is 
available with regard to their housing options – what type of accommodation is 
available, in which areas, an unwillingness to consider short term supported or 
shared accommodation before moving on to a more settled solution, expectations 
about the availability of social housing. 
 
We always strive to give customers as many housing options and choices as is 
available to them, but unfortunately the options are not always what the individual 
wants. We need to make sure that we carefully manage these expectations by being 
honest with customers about what is available and how, whilst it may not be what 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

35 
 

they ultimately want, it is a step to a move on pathway to a better housing solution in 
the long run. 
 
The Hampshire Home Choice based letting scheme is a method by which we can 
manage applicant’s expectations with regard to social housing. All social housing 
properties are advertised for letting through the scheme, so applicants can see what 
is available. Feedback of lettings is also available through the web pages showing 
realistic waiting times for property types and areas, so applicants can consider their 
bidding strategies accordingly in order to optimise their prospects of rehousing 
through the scheme. 
 
* 
 
Many services refer to the difficulties in trying to support customers who have both 
mental health and substance misuse issues often finding that mental health services 
will not support whilst substance misuse issues are still apparent. 
 
It was felt that some work needs to be done around a dual diagnosis service and 
training for services to gain awareness of how to support these customers better. 
 
* 
 
There was also some concern about those individuals who make a life-style choice 
of being homeless, those ‘professional homeless’ who choose to rough sleep and 
beg despite the offer of assistance from services of shelter and support. 
 
The Homeless Network Group in conjunction with the Council had commenced some 
work on public awareness of how they can support rough sleepers and the homeless 
without inadvertently facilitating their lifestyle choice. This included suggestions such 
as not giving money directly to rough sleepers but rather donating to charitable 
organisations such as the churches or the Beacon who directly support individuals. 
 
This can be picked up in the strategy action plan as a piece of work that can be 
continued to ensure that the homeless are supported in an appropriate way. 
 
Havant Homeless Trust is seeking to obtain charitable status, so they can be the 
kind of organisation who can collect such donations and work in partnership with the 
other voluntary and community groups in the borough to support rough sleepers. 
 
 
8.2 Public Perception and Involvement 
 
It was felt that there was a still a general unwillingness of private sector landlords to 
let to homeless households and that there was still a stigma surrounding homeless 
households particularly around young, single parent households.   
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

36 
 

More engagement with private sector landlords to encourage them to help homeless 
people was recommended and to manage the expectations of private sector 
landlords and encouraging them to offer help to those who are homeless. 
 
The Council endeavours to support homeless households in to private rented 
accommodation and currently offers a wide range of support to do so from financial 
support to secure accommodation; referrals to Two Saints where it is felt Tenancy 
Training may be appropriate; the offer of ongoing support to both tenants and 
landlords should difficulties in the tenancy arise and signposting to other agencies 
and services who can provide support. 
 
Through its Supported Tenancy Scheme the Council also offers a more robust offer 
of support to landlords and this is currently under review to see what more we can do 
to encourage landlords to free up their accommodation as a valuable resource for 
homeless households. 
Housing Services are also interested in developing a Landlords Fair / Awareness 
Day for both public and social landlords to discuss our needs for accommodation to 
house homeless households and what support we can offer to both landlord and 
tenant to ensure both parties are happy and tenancies are sustained. 
 
Some work also needs to be done with private sector landlords to be aware of the 
services offered to support their tenants who may be faltering on their tenancy 
obligations so that homelessness can be prevented. Landlords need to feel confident 
about the services they can refer their tenants to for early help. 
 
* 
 
Homelessness and worklessness was also raised as an issue. It was difficult for 
services to help people in to employment if they were homeless - not having an 
address, not being able to prepare for interviews and chaotic lifestyles impacting on 
ability to obtain and retain employment successfully. 
 
On the flip side, it was also noted that not being in work could be a barrier to 
obtaining housing – landlords are more likely to take a working person over someone 
who is not working. 
 
As part of the Housing Needs Assessment when someone presents as homeless; 
matters which may be preventing someone keeping or obtaining accommodation will 
be discussed and as employment may be one of those matters, more work will be 
done to try and engage individuals in seeking employment, or support to ready 
themselves to seek employment, as a step to gaining or keeping accommodation. 
 
The Council can continue to further this work through its annual Job Fair and 
services can work in conjunction with the Department of Work and Pensions Job 
Centre Plus to see how they can support and engage their customers into 
employment. 
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

37 
 

* 
 
There was also some concern about services and landlords dealing with individuals 
with mental health problems, especially around the risks posed where insufficient 
information is available about the individuals condition, treatment or risk posed, 
either to themselves or others. 
 
There was also concern about the perceived lack of support to such individuals living 
in the community and that there was a failure to deal with low level mental health 
concerns which creates a bigger problem later. 
 
Naturally there are constraints about what information can be shared about an 
individual’s health circumstances and GDPR further exacerbates the level of 
information that can be shared without the individuals explicit consent. 
 
Services therefore need to work together to ensure that their sharing protocols are 
robust and their privacy policies allow the necessary level of information to be shared 
between the services that are trying to support an individual – we cannot work in 
isolation when there are complex issues requiring multi-agency approaches and 
information sharing cannot be allowed to form a barrier to joined up working. 
 
Services also need to be seeking up to date training and awareness to be able to 
deal with individuals with mental health issues so as not to be able to create their 
own barriers to providing support and assistance.   
 
We must also not rely on stretched statutory services to provide support to 
individuals recognising that there are many community and voluntary services 
available, such as MIND or iTalk, and that these need to be utilised as much as 
possible. 
 
 
8.3 Service Provision and Agency Working 
 
Concern was raised about the ongoing cuts to services which was resulting in a lack 
of resources – for example the reduction of housing support in hostels and the 
community and the ending of the Sure Start service. 
 
The Council recognises the pressures that these funding reductions create and is 
keen to utilise the Flexible Homeless Support Grant awarded to implement the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 to see what measures can be put in place to 
ensure the right services are in place to support those faced with homelessness. 
 
It is also paramount that we are aware of each other’s resources and what services 
we provide so that we are not duplicating processes and using resources 
ineffectively, but rather working together to pool resources where possible and 
provide services more cost effectively. 
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

38 
 

* 
 
As previously mentioned, Data Protection, GDPR and sharing information can be a 
barrier between services; particularly where consent to share is either not routinely 
gathered correctly or obtained too late to provide early and effective support to 
individuals.   
 
Services need to ensure therefore that their data sharing protocols and privacy 
notices are robust enough not only to meet lawful requirements but also to ensure 
information can be shared early enough between services to allow effective 
interventions to be offered. 
 
* 
 
Some services experience a high turnover of staff, particularly in areas such as 
social care. This can be detrimental to both the individual receiving the service where 
relationships have been built up and lost, or to another agency trying to liaise with 
customers support worker, with duty officers not always able to help as effectively as 
the case holder.   
 
Services need to examine why their staff turnover is high and what is impacting on 
their staff retention. In order for other services to be able to liaise effectively on 
behalf of a customer, services need to ensure that access and referrals in to their 
services are clear and transparent and that their structures and points of contact are 
readily available; such as through websites. 
 
* 
 
Throughout any discussions about barriers to services, communication is always a 
strong theme – lack of communication between agencies about what each service 
provides; how to access services; who is working with individuals that need to be 
involved in multi-agency meetings; lack of joint and partnership working; and lack of 
information being shared between services about individuals (for example when 
making referrals for assistance). 
 
It is imperative that services work together more effectively, both for the benefit of 
the customer but also in order to work more effectively to preserve limiting 
resources. Joint working needs to be embedded in the culture all services as none of 
us can work in isolation when dealing with individuals with multi-faceted needs. 
 
We must all look to see how we can better work together, ensure we attend multi-
agency meetings and take responsibility for building networks and relationships with 
our partner agencies with the intention of improving communications. 
 
* 
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

39 
 

Some organisation felt that there could be more information provided about the 
services provided by Housing at the Plaza and what they do. 
 
This is something the Council can achieve by ensuring that their website is up to 
date with this information. 
 
The Housing Manager is also keen to visit other services, perhaps through their 
team meetings, to give an overview of what Housing Services are provided and how 
individuals can be assisted with their housing issues. 
 
Other organisations have also been welcomed to attend Housing Services team 
meetings to reciprocate so that we can learn about their services too.  Putting faces 
to names or visiting other organisations places of work is also useful in building 
relationships and understandings of each other services and resources. 
 
* 
 
There has been some concern with organisations knowing who to sign post 
individuals to for further support. With such a plethora of information and services 
available, knowing about all of them can be difficult.   
 
Websites such as the Connect to Support Hampshire can be a starting point or 
Havant Citizens Advice who often provide links to other services, but it is imperative 
that services make use of digital technology and ensure their website and media 
pages are clear in what services they can provide and how organisations and 
individuals can refer for support. 
 
As an action point, Housing Services can ensure that their webpages are not only 
clear about what services they can provide, but also provide clear links to other 
services who can provide support with the many issues that affect someone who is 
faced with homelessness. 
 
Plans are afoot to catalogue the voluntary and community support available to the 
homeless so that this can be made available on Havant Borough Council’s website 
along with the information available on rough sleepers and the SWEP/Streetlink 
provisions. 
 
* 
 
There was concern raised about the unpredictable and short notice discharges from 
hospital for individuals facing homelessness with services having little or no time to 
respond. 
 
It was envisaged that the newly introduced Duty to Refer, with inpatient hospitals 
being one of the named public bodies with a responsibility to refer, would see a 
reduction in this happening and with patients being discharged being referred to 
services in a timelier manner. 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

40 
 

 
* 
 
Some services were concerned about the location of emergency accommodation 
(B&B) with the majority of what Housing Services have access to being out of 
borough and the impact this can have on households, particularly those with local 
employment, children in schools or needing to be near local networks for support. 
 
The Council recognises that this is an issue and in all cases, seeks to find the best 
housing solution for individuals within the resources available. Where this is not 
possible and placements out of borough need to be made, the Council will 
endeavour to move people back as soon as possible, although this then creates 
additional issues with multiple moves taking place, causing further instability and 
unsettled situations. 
 
In order to combat this, Housing Services continues to look for more appropriate 
housing solutions and will endeavour to work more closely with housing providers, as 
explained earlier, to try and develop more housing options for individuals which will 
negate the need for moves to unsuitable, temporary accommodation. 
 
In the meantime, Housing Services will always strive to ensure that if placed out of 
borough, individuals are provided with access to services and support that will 
reduce the impact on their household. 
 
* 
 
As already mentioned, there was concern about the relative insecurity of housing 
tenure within the private rented sector. One recommendation was that other models 
of tenancy are created that have longer terms available than the current standard six 
or twelve month Assured Shorthold Tenancy.   
 
These matters are of course, outside of local government control and would require 
central government amendments to the current legislative framework.  
  
Ministers have acknowledged this issue and stated that due to the significant 
changes in the private rented sector over the last 30 years, e.g. a 50% increase in 
the number of households with children renting in this sector, there was a need to 
address the question of short term contracts, unaffordable rent rises and the 
possibility of retaliatory eviction if tenants complained. 
 
In July 2018, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government, 
published its consultation paper Overcoming the Barriers to Longer Tenancies in the 
Private Rented Sector.  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/721556/PRS_Longer_Tenancies_Consultation.pdf   
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

41 
 

The Minister confirmed that he was seeking views on a new model – one that 
balances the tenants’ need for protection, with landlords’ needs to regain their 
property when their circumstances change; a model that gives tenants certainty over 
rents and retains the flexibility that many desires. 
 
The consultation closed on the 26th August 2018 and the government is currently 
analysing the feedback it has received. 
 
In the meantime, to help mitigate this issue, a positive measure announced in the 
recent Housing White Paper mean most tenants in the Build to Rent sector (a 
relatively new form of tenure but now included in the definition of affordable housing- 
NPPF July 2018) will be offered a minimum three-year tenancy. 
With the introduction of the Localism Act 2011, social housing landlords were able to 
introduce fixed term tenancies to ensure that social housing continued to be provided 
to those with a housing need. In the main, fixed terms of five or six years are 
preceded by an introductory, or probationary tenancy, of one year, amounting to a 
secure period of at least six to seven years before a tenant’s need for social housing 
would be reviewed. 
 
Most fixed terms were not introduced until around 2012, so we will only just start to 
see the impact this may have on any tenancies coming to an end where there may 
no longer be a need for social housing. However, the Council would expect to see 
social housing landlords providing robust advice and assistance to tenants who may 
need to move on and referring any such cases to Housing Services where 
homelessness may become a factor, in accordance with the Tenancy Strategies 
produced by local authorities as an outcome of the Act. 
 
* 
 
There appears to be a lot of confusion surrounding 16/17 year olds and young care-
leavers and which agency should be responsible for providing support. Whilst both 
cohorts would be afforded priority need status under the homelessness legislation, 
the duties to assist fall to two differing agencies - Children’s Social Care taking 
responsibility for young people who at 16 or 17 years old would still be seen as 
minors and local authority Housing Services having responsibility for care leavers 
once they have reached their 18th birthday. 
 
The ‘Hampshire Joint Working Protocol between Housing and Children’s Services for 
16 and 17 year olds in Housing Need’ seeks to clarify the duties and responsibilities 
for each organisation and has been reviewed to reflect the requirements under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. 
 
As part of its duties under the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, housing services 
are responsible for ensuring that services for certain client groups (care leavers 
being one of them) have services tailored to their specific needs. This may include 
providing clear information about what can be provided and by who. Housing 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

42 
 

Services therefore need to ensure that its information available on its website and to 
other services, clearly informs of this information. 
 
Housing Services and Children’s services also need to work in partnership to carry 
out joint assessment, both for housing needs and any care needs, to support young 
people and therefore need to ensure that their services are geared up to do so. 
 
* 
 
It is recognised that there is a lack of night shelter accommodation in the borough 
and referrals to out of district night shelters are a concern as an individual may travel 
a great distance to a shelter when they cannot be guarantee a bed-space on arrival. 
 
Whilst the numbers of rough sleepers in Havant do not constitute the need for a night 
shelter on the scale as in other authorities, it is still recognised that street sleeping is 
not acceptable and for those few people who find themselves rough sleeping, their 
needs to be an alternative and local option, particularly in times of inclement 
weather. 
 
Havant Borough Council works closely with Two Saints to see that rough sleepers 
are supported and that accommodation in their homeless supported accommodation 
is utilised to its capacity. However, with only five bed spaces, this is very limited.   
 
The Council are therefore working to see how it can support Two Saints to increase 
these bed spaces and look to provide an emergency provision, especially in the 
winter months. 
 
* 
 
There were concerns raised about funding and time-limits for those in refugees 
having fled domestic violence. 
 
The Council works proactively with Stop Domestic Abuse (SDA), the service 
commissioned by Hampshire County Council to provide domestic abuse services in 
the district. In doing so we can pool resources and support to ensure that individuals 
are able to find a suitable housing solution as soon as possible. Where this is not 
achievable, the Council can under its statutory homelessness duties, see what 
further assistance can be given with providing accommodation. 
 
Whilst the domestic abuse services have only just recently been recommissioned, 
this is something that can be fed back to commissioning managers so that they are 
aware of the issues of short stay accommodation when revising the service provision 
requirements in future. 
 
* 
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

43 
 

There were similar concerns with the Probation Services Approved Premises which 
only provide short -term provision and there appears to be little move on help until 
the last minute. 
 
There is again a need for Probation as a public body to refer to Housing Services 
any individuals leaving their accommodation with no further accommodation 
available to them at an earlier stage and not leave it until the last minute as is 
perceived. 
 
This will ensure that a Housing Needs Assessment can be carried out as soon as 
possible so all housing options available can be explored in a timely manner. 
 
* 
 
Having to meet local connection criteria before being able to access help from 
housing services and having to apply to specific housing authorities was also flagged 
as a concern. 
 
Under the Localism Act 2011 Councils were able to formulate their allocation policy 
criteria to take into account local requirements. As many, if not all, placed a 
requirement that applicants had to establish a local connection to their district before 
they would be eligible to apply for social housing. Prior to publishing allocations 
policies, local authorities would have carried out consultation and considered any 
comments on the proposals to introduce a local connection. 
 
Whilst having to have a local connection to a district may impact on an individual’s 
ability to secure social housing, it does not preclude other housing options which can 
be pursued such as looking for private rented accommodation, which carries no such 
restrictions. 
 
With regard to having to establish a local connection if presenting as homelessness, 
this is set in legislation and not at the local authority’s discretion. However, local 
authorities do have the power to waver this requirement in exceptional 
circumstances. 
 
* 
 
With resources being stretched, thresholds for services increasing and waiting times 
lengthening, there was also concern raised at the lack of a sufficient provision of 
adult social care and delays caused by waiting for the outcome of assessments. 
 
Under the Care Act, Adult Social Care do have a responsibility to carry out care 
assessments and enable the provision of appropriate care to meet those needs. 
 
If Adult Social Care are unable to provide assessment and support as quickly as 
possible, services may need to look for other options to fill the gap in the meantime.  
Other agencies dealing with individuals with care needs due to age, ill health, 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

44 
 

learning disabilities or mental health issues may be better placed to assist in the 
short term. 
 
It is for this reason that websites such as Connect to Support Hampshire have been 
devised to enable individuals to self-care, or look for interim support to help with care 
until full assessments of needs can be carried out. 
 
* 
 
There was some thought that social landlords should be more proactive with 
signposting early to support services and that they work more closely with local 
services before acting to evict households ensuring support is put in place to deal 
with the issues that lead many to lose their tenancies. 
 
As mentioned earlier in this document, social landlords who have housing stock in 
Havant all have a commitment to provide tenancy support to prevent people losing 
their tenancies. This couple with the Ministry of Justices Repossession Protocol that 
registered providers need to adhere to before taking repossession action means that 
they strive to do all they can to prevent having to take repossession action. 
 
However, social housing landlords must not rely on their in-house tenancy support 
provisions alone and must strive to involve other agencies and services as early as 
possible, not just at the point of eviction. 
 
This is where multi-agency partnership working is paramount so that we are all 
aware of what services we provide and how we can work together to help our 
customers, as none of us can do it in isolation. 
 
Whilst social housing providers are not recognised as a public body and therefore 
not bound by this duty, the National Housing Federation (NLA) has been working 
with its members who were keen to support the implementation of the Act 
regardless. As such, the NLA has produced a Commitment to Refer which social 
housing landlords can sign up to.  
 
Housing Services in Havant works very closely with its stock holding social housing 
providers to ensure that tenants who are facing eviction or referred for advice and 
assistance as early as possible. 
 
* 
 
It has also been recognised that some social landlords appear reluctant to take 
applicants with support needs, which appears at odds with such providers being 
‘social’ landlords and therefore seen as being providers of accommodation to those 
most in need. 
 
Unfortunately, with service reductions across both housing related support contracts 
and social housing landlord’s resources to provide support to tenants, there is 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

45 
 

naturally a reticence to consider allocating social housing accommodation to 
individuals whose needs may impact on their ability to successfully manage a 
tenancy. 
 
It is therefore important when assessing housing needs and eligibility to join the 
register for social housing that Housing Services ensure that they identify the 
applicants that may have ongoing support needs and ensure that signposting and 
referrals to organisations and agencies who can support these individuals are made. 
 
If robust support and engagement with support is in place at the time of allocation, 
the social housing providers are less likely to reject those with support needs. 
 
On occasions applicants with support needs are skipped for accommodation if it is 
not deemed unsuitable to meet their needs. For example, for an applicant with 
support needs due to recovering from substance misuse, it would not be in the best 
interest to allocate a tenancy in a property where there are known anti-social 
behaviour or substance misuse issues having to be addressed by the landlord. This 
is likely to adversely impact the applicant’s ability to successfully manage their 
tenancy and retain their accommodation. 
 
 
8.4 Housing Supply 
 
As already mentioned, there was concern about the insecurity of housing tenure with 
the recommendation that other models of tenancies are created and longer 
tenancies given. These matters are outside of local government remit, but we are 
aware central Government is looking at this.  
 
* 
 
Further concerns were raised around the standard of accommodation that is 
available in the private sector and the perceived mismanagement of Houses in 
Multiple Occupation (HMO).  
 
The Council’s Environmental Health Services Private Sector Housing Team works 
closely with landlords in the district to ensure that standards of accommodation are 
in line with the Housing, health and Safety Rating System, reducing the number of 
cat 1 hazards in accommodation wherever possible. 
 
This team is also responsible for enforcing the recently reviewed HMO licensing 
regulations, to ensure that any mismanagement it was felt is occurring is driven out 
of the sector. 
 
* 
 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

46 
 

There was overwhelming concern at the lack of all types of affordable 
accommodation to meet the varying needs of those who are homeless or faced with 
homelessness in the district.   
 
It was felt that there was a lack of accommodation in particular for: 
 

 a direct access hostel 
 

 supported housing, particularly for the young and the old 
 

 move-on accommodation for those already in supported housing  
 

 a lack of rooms and issues with the safety of rooms/shared houses 
 
Questions raised as to whether social housing landlords, as the stock holders within 
the borough, could help more with the provision of temporary accommodation, or 
whether other forms of housing provision could be looked such as porta cabins, as 
are being utilised in some other areas, and how we can make better use of empty 
properties and bring them back into use. 
 
When trying to address the need for more housing provision, we need to be mindful 
of exactly what are needs are before we can look to see how they can be met. We 
then need to work with our partners to see how these can be achieved. For example, 
if a housing association has a stock of particularly difficult to let properties, is there 
scope for these to be used as temporary accommodation? And how can our partners 
help with move on accommodation for those who are ready to move on to 
independent living? 
 
The Council continues and will continue to work with its registered providers through 
its allocation policy; support providers through the provision of hostel 
accommodation and how this can be increased; and with private sector landlords 
through its Supported Tenancy Scheme to endeavour to increase the housing supply 
to those who are facing homelessness.  
 
 
8.5 Financial Inclusion  
 
Concerns were raised with regard to the levels of Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 
which doesn’t currently meet the market rents being charged in the private rented 
sector. This makes looking at private rented accommodation as a housing option 
very restrictive to households who are benefit reliant or on low incomes.  
 
There are also issues with the level of rent in advance, deposits and guarantors 
required to secure accommodation in the private rented sector which for some, is out 
of their financial reach.    
 
The Council can continue to look at assisting households with financial support to 
secure private rented accommodation within its duties to prevent or relieve 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

47 
 

homelessness and ensuring that customers are signposted to receive money advice 
to sustain accommodation. Wherever possible, the Council will also bid for additional 
Government funding through its homelessness prevention initiatives to continue to 
support customers into accommodation, although ensuring that affordable 
accommodation is secured is still the challenge to be overcome. 
 
* 
It was also noted that housing associations are starting to ask for rent in advance for 
social tenancies, which can be of varying degrees from one week to up to six weeks.  
There have even been occasions when rent in advance has been asked before 
taking up supported accommodation. This may be manageable for those who have 
been waiting for some time for an offer through the Hampshire Home Choice 
housing waiting list and have had the opportunity to save for this eventuality, but for 
those who are being housed as a result of a homeless situation and have not had 
the ability to do so, this is a concern. 
 
Again, the Council can continue to support customers who require financial 
assistance to secure accommodation in order to prevent homelessness, but a 
question as to whether housing associations could do more to assist with such 
requests, either allowing tenants a period of time to pay, or being more flexible with 
who has to meet these requirements if it can be evidenced that prospective tenants 
are already housing benefit/LHA eligible. 
 
* 
To mitigate the financial risk to landlords in letting to customers on low incomes or 
benefit reliant – which has also been raised as a concern – it is suggested that rent 
guarantees or payments of housing benefit/LHA/UC housing element could be paid 
direct to the landlord. Such processes may help to encourage supply of this valuable 
resource. 
 
* 
 
Concerns were raised at the general complication of the welfare benefit system; the 
absence of a face-to-face service when having to apply for welfare benefit support 
and having to make applications by telephone or via a website; delays in payments 
of benefits and housing benefit; and welfare benefit sanctions and perceived 
‘hostility’ towards jobseekers who do not or are unable to comply with their claimant 
commitment contracts. 
 
The Council and its partners can continue to support welfare benefit claimants by 
ensuring that they are fully aware of the claiming process; what they need to provide 
in order to get their claims processed in a timely fashion and where claimants can go 
for support, particularly when sanctioned. The Council is also, through its Customer 
Services Team, is a point of contact for referrals from the DWP for those vulnerable 
customers who need assistance with making their UC claims. 
 
* 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

48 
 

 
It has also been noted that there is a lack of legal aid funding to support those 
needing help when threatened with homelessness. Advisors therefore need to be 
aware of the eligibility criteria for claiming legal aid and where to direct customers 
who may need support with identifying if they are eligible, such as to HCA. 
 
Where customers aren’t eligible, advisors need to be aware of other advice support 
agencies who can assist with some form of legal advice such as the local authority’s 
housing services; HCA and organisations such as Shelter.   
 
* 
Customers are also finding there is a lack of help with transport costs to access 
services or get to appointments they need to keep, either to comply with benefit 
claiming requirements or to engage with services that may be supporting them to 
prevent homelessness.   
 
Again, there needs to be an all-round awareness among advisors across agencies 
and collation of what support is available to help in such circumstances and where 
this help can be obtained from to best support customers in need. 
 
* 

From 1st August 2019 Hampshire Adult Social Care are reducing the funding for 
Social Inclusion Services across Hampshire by £1.8m. Homelessness Support 
Services (the collective name for Social Inclusion Services and the Winchester Night 
Shelter) are housing related support services for people over the age of 18 who are 
homeless or at risk of homelessness. This loss of the provision of early support is 
seen as a big concern which may lead to customers getting in to crisis and being 
unable sustain tenancies or secure interventions to prevent homelessness. 

As a response Havant Borough Council is able to utilise funding from the Flexible 
Homelessness Prevention Grant awarded to develop measures required to 
implement the Homelessness Reduction Act to future fund a housing related support 
worker to bridge the gap created by this reduction of Social Inclusion funding. 

 

9.0  Housing Services feedback 

We also sought the comments of the staff working on the front line in Housing 
Services to ascertain their thoughts on the same questions raised with the 
Homelessness Partnership Forum. 

The Housing Services team currently consists of 18 members of staff, 2 of which are 
Managers and one of which is on maternity leave. 15 members of staff were 
therefore surveyed and 4 responded. 

Staff were asked ‘What are the main barriers/issues that you have encountered 
when trying to support homeless households?’: 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

49 
 

 Lack of suitable and affordable accommodation of all types – social, private 
rented, temporary, interim, supported, hostel 

 Access to private rented sector difficult due to high rents, landlords not willing 
to take people on benefits/wanting guarantors 

 Lack of, and impending further reduction in housing related support, to sustain 
accommodation and stop repeat approaches 

 Customers with complex needs that are difficult to meet 

 Customers lack of wanting to take responsibility (ie completing forms; 
providing documentation required; willingness to consider options available)  

 Some lack of consistent working approach amongst housing officers 

 Staff feeling overwhelmed, anxious, stressed and successes not being 
recognised and celebrated 

Staff were also asked ‘What more needs to be done to overcome these barriers?’ 
and the following comments were received: 

 Increase the supply of affordable and suitable accommodation 

 Improve engagement with private sector and registered provider landlords to 
encourage partnership working 

 Look at the landlord offer to increase access to the private rented sector – 
consider bonds rather than deposits; increase the upfront financial support; 
increase direct rental payments to landlords 

 Closer working across Hampshire Home Choice partners to improve access 
to and make better use of housing stock 

 Increase the supply of tenancy support 

 

The responses in the main were very similar to those voiced by the Homelessness 
Partnership Forum and stakeholder survey and will therefore be recognised and 
contribute towards the actions to come out of the Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping Strategy. 

 

10.0  Summary and Conclusion 

 

10.1 Areas of success 

The homelessness review has identified that there are a number of areas where a lot 
of good work and services are being provided by the Council and its partners in the 
Havant area 

These include: 

 A good and robust housing options service which is compliant with the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 

 Receipt of New Burdens and Flexible Homelessness Support Grant in order 
to implement new legislation 

 Staff restructure to meet the needs of the service 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

50 
 

 Good performance levels on prevention 

 Housing related support services in place  

 Good partnership working with partner register providers of housing; 
neighbouring Portsmouth City Council housing services; and private sector 
landlords 

 Financial support to secure or retain accommodation available  

 Budgeting and debt management advice available  

 Support to access training and employment or be work ready 

 Support with relationships and those suffering domestic abuse 

 Support for families and young people 

 Support for older people 

 Support for those with mental health issues 

 Support for those with substance misuse issues 

 Support for ex-offenders 

 Support for rough sleepers 

 Support for those leaving prison or hospitals through Duty to Refer 

 

10.2 Emerging issues 

However, there are areas which are seen as needing improvement, such as: 

 The need for customers to engage earlier to allow interventions to be 
considered 

 Managing the expectations of customer as to the housing options available  

 Lack of temporary accommodation within the borough 

 Lack of move on accommodation from temporary or supported 
accommodation 

 Lack of affordable social and private rented accommodation  

 Understanding the needs of rough sleepers and managing the support on 
offer  

 Managing the reduction in support to prevent homelessness 

 Better communication and multi-agency working between organisations 

 Embedding that ‘homelessness prevention is everyone’s responsibility’ in to 
all organisations 

 

10.3 Priorities for action 

It is the areas that require development that will feed into Havant Borough Council’s 
Homelessness and Rough Sleepers Strategy and drive the priorities for action.   

 

1. The need for customers to 
engage earlier to allow 
interventions to be 
considered 

 Continue to promote the Duty to Refer to 
public bodies and encourage non-public 
bodies to adopt a commitment to refer 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

51 
 

 Better promote the services available from 
Housing Services and how customers can 
engage at an early stage 

 Provide more robust awareness amongst 
professionals of the services Housing 
Services Provide and how they can refer 
their customers at an earlier stage 

 Improve access to advice and assistance 
through the Councils website and the 
Hampshire Home Choice website 

2. Managing the expectations 
of customer as to the 
housing options available 

 Ensure we have a comprehensive package 
of housing options available to meet diverse 
needs 

 Ensure options available are transparent 
and explained so informed choices can be 
made 

 Ensure other professional organisations are 
aware of the housing options available so as 
not to misinform their customers 

3. Tackling public perceptions 
of homelessness and 
addressing stereotypes to 
ensure that access to 
accommodation is increased 

 Ensure website information is easy to 
access and up to date 

 Investigate the possibility of ‘tenancy 
training’ to demonstrate skills obtained to 
ensure applicants can manage a tenancy 
and minimise risk to landlords 

4. Lack of temporary 
accommodation within the 
borough 

 Review the current temporary 
accommodation available 

 Explore other options within the borough by 
continuing to work with registered providers, 
supported housing providers and private 
sector landlords 

5. Lack of move on 
accommodation from 
temporary or supported 
accommodation 

 Explore other options within the borough by 
continuing to work with registered providers, 
supported housing providers and private 
sector landlords 

 Continue to promote and expand the 
Supported Tenancy Scheme 

6. Affordability and Welfare 
Reform 

 Close monitoring of Universal Credit will be 
required to assess the impact of accessing 
and maintaining accommodation 

 Close partnership with registered providers, 
the private sector and DWP so that housing 
services can be alerted to the issues that 
may lead to homelessness at the earliest 
opportunity 

7. Lack of affordable social and 
private rented 
accommodation 

 Continue to encourage the development of 
social / affordable housing with developers 
and registered providers 

 Continue to work with registered providers to 
ensure the best use of stock within the 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

52 
 

borough through creative letting and local 
lettings plans 

 Continue to work with private sector 
landlords to encourage the availability of 
suitable accommodation 

 Consider the introduction of a Landlords Fair 
to engage with private landlords 

8. Understanding the needs of 
rough sleepers and 
managing the support on 
offer 

 Expand on annual rough sleeper 
count/estimate and carry out a robust needs 
analysis of those rough sleeping 

 Carry out analysis of data available on sofa 
surfing activity and target advice and 
assistance to prevent this slipping in to 
rough sleeping 

 Continue to work with statutory and non-
statutory bodies and voluntary and 
community groups to co-ordinate data about 
rough sleepers 

 Continue to work with statutory and non-
statutory bodies and voluntary and 
community groups to co-ordinate services 
available to rough sleepers 

 Through joint work, encourage the safe 
practice of supporting rough sleepers 
through voluntary and community 
organisations rather than direct assistance 
to an individual 

9. Look at whether Housing 
First is a model that could be 
successful in Havant 

 Consider the option for more challenging 
and complex households 

 Review other models to determine suitability 
 Discuss with accommodation providers and 

support services 
10. Managing the reduction in 

support to prevent 
homelessness 

 Map out and create a directory of support 
services available to refer customers to as 
an alternative 

 Encourage the promotion of self-service 
advice through digital access 

 Make a commitment to ensure financial 
support is available to continue to 
commission local housing related support  

 Consider the use of Tenancy Training to 
empower tenancy sustainment and reduce 
the need for ongoing support 

11. Better communication and 
multi-agency working 
between organisations 

 Ensure Housing Services are a committed 
presence and multi-agency meetings, both 
statutory and non-statutory 

 Promote the services provided by Housing 
Services within other organisations and 
agencies, both statutory and non-statutory 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

53 
 

 Ensure good working relationships are 
forged, particularly with other statutory 
organisations 

 Ensure that multi-agency working around 
and individual is encouraged at the earliest 
opportunity  

12. Embedding the concept that 
‘homelessness prevention is 
everyone’s responsibility’ in 
to all organisations 

 Consider the formulation of a Homelessness 
Reduction Board at a strategic level 

 Ensure that senior leadership across all 
organisations is committed to the reduction 
of homelessness being high on their agenda  

 Ensuring that homelessness or potential 
homelessness is a routine consideration of 
all organisations when dealing with their 
customers 

 Ensuring that awareness of homelessness is 
embedded the operational staff’s skills set in 
all organisations  

 Promoting and supporting the Duty to Refer 
13. Agree top priorities for 

expenditure of Flexible 
Homelessness Support 
Grant 

 Agree priorities and explore options for 
expenditure that offers best value 

14. Ensure officers are kept up 
to date on relevant 
legislation 

 Review training for all members of staff 
 Identify training gaps and arrange 

appropriate training and awareness 
sessions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

54 
 

Appendix 1 

 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING STATEMENT 2019 – 2020 

 

 

Mission 

To improve people’s lives by ensuring that new development will meet the needs of 
those genuinely in need of affordable homes. We aim to increase the supply of 
affordable housing across a range of tenures to enable all sections of society have 
access to a home. 

Priorities  

This Affordable Housing Statement supports the delivery of the Council’s Corporate 
Strategy 2015-2020.  The Strategy contains five operational priority areas; these are: 
Financial Stability, Economic Growth, Environmental Sustainability, Public Service 
Excellence, and Creativity and Innovation; it’s these priorities that run as a golden 
thread through our work in the housing sector. 

The Council has set several key priorities for the coming years with ambitious targets 
that will ultimately be the measure of our success.  These targets will remain at the 
forefront of our minds in the delivery of the Housing Service and the provision of new 
affordable housing. 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

55 
 

 

 

 

Supply of new homes 

There is significant demand for affordable housing within the Havant Borough 
Council area, both Affordable Rented, and Low-Cost Home Ownership properties, as 
demonstrated by the numbers of applicants registered on Hampshire Home Choice, 
the councils waiting list, and Help to Buy South, our regional Help to Buy Agents. 
According to waiting list data as at 1st April 2019 the combined total need for 
affordable homes is 2563 dwellings. 

This data suggests there is a greater need for affordable rented homes compared 
with that for Intermediate affordable homes with 1603 (62.5% of total need) waiting 
for affordable rented homes when compared to 960 (37.5% of total need) on the 
waiting list for intermediate affordable homes. This compares with the most recent 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment which suggests a need for 74% 
Social/Affordable rent and 26% Intermediate homes, e.g.   Shared Ownership or 
Shared Equity. The Pre-submission Havant Borough Local Plan 2036 responds to 
this data by seeking 30% affordable homes on sites of 10 or more units, with a 
tenure split 70/30 in favour of the rented homes. 

 

 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

56 
 

The table below shows Havant’s delivery levels of affordable housing over the last 6 
years.  

Year Shared 
Equity 

Discounted 
Market 
Sale 

Social  
Rent 

Affordable 
Rent 

Intermediate  
Rent 

Rent 
To 
Buy 

Shared 
Ownership 

First 
Buy 

Mortgage 
Rescue 

TOTAL 
For each 
year 

           

2013-
14 

2  2 49   20 16  89 

2014-
15 

 6  159   61  2 228 

2015-
16 

  3 83 1  64   151 

2016-
17 

  2 92 19 16 39   168 

2017-
18 

   53 5 1 17   76 

2018-
19 

   67  12 15   94 

TOTAL 
For 
each 
tenure   

2 6 7 503 25 29 216 16 2 806 

 

Priority Target 
  
 
Increase the supply of affordable 
housing within the borough by 
supporting Registered Providers, 
Housing Associations, house builders, 
and other stakeholders in the sector to 
build new homes.  This support will take 
the form of a firm, but fair approach to 
negotiating s106 agreements, with a 
sensible, and practical approach that 
recognises the challenges house 
builders and providers face in the 
sector.  We will strive for the removal of 
barriers to development so stakeholders 
regard Havant as a priority investment 
area, making Council funds available to 
support affordable housing delivery 
where required. 
 

 
170 new affordable homes built in the 
district by April 2021 
 

 
To ensure that the sector builds 
affordable housing of the right size, 
type, and tenure that meets the housing 
need as identified by the Council. 
Changes introduced in the Welfare 
Reform Act and Housing and Planning 
Act have caused Registered Providers 
to rethink the size, type, and tenure of 

 
40% of all new affordable homes to 
have 2 bedrooms. 
70/30 tenure split in favour of affordable 
rented homes. 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

57 
 

affordable housing to maximise their 
revenue. This priority will ensure the 
Council robustly defends attempts by 
housing providers to build homes that 
do not serve the needs of communities 
well. 
 
 
 
Some types and tenures of affordable 
housing are unaffordable to low income 
households, and those entitled to full or 
partial welfare benefits. The 
Government has reacted to this and is 
once again promoting Social Rent 
housing typically set at target rents 
around 50-60% of rents in the Private 
Rented Sector. It is a priority that Social 
Rent housing is promoted as well as 
other initiatives that deliver ‘genuinely’ 
affordable housing. 
 
 

 
Work with Registered Providers, 
Planning Officers and Members to 
promote the inclusion of Social Rent 
homes and truly affordable rents that 
have regard to local incomes into 
adopted planning and Section 106 
(Town & Country Planning Act 1990) 
policy. 

 
To shape and influence housing policies 
contained within Havant Borough 
Council Local Plan, and any 
supplementary documents, to ensure 
that they accurately reflect the housing 
needs of the borough. 

 
To maintain the strong links already 
enjoyed with, and continue to provide 
advice to, Development Management 
and Planning Policy officers, and 
consultants working on the Local Plan. 
 
 

 
Keeping Members informed and 
consulting with them on new affordable 
housing initiatives is an integral part of 
Local Government and the smooth 
operation of the council. 

 
Attend Portfolio Holder update 
meetings, as required, and ensure 
officer representation, where possible, 
at Development Consultation Forums, 
Development Management committee 
meetings, and Technical workshops. 
 
 

Modular housing, including housing 
pods, under the umbrella term of 
Modern Methods of Construction, is 
becoming more common place in the 
market. 

Legal & General, including their new 
modular homes manufacturing 
business, have recently partnered with 
VIVID Homes, who are actively 

To research, engage with providers, 
and evaluate whether MMC can provide 
some solutions to our current housing 
shortage.   

To seek to identify sites within the 
borough that may be suitable for pod 
type short term housing. 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

58 
 

developing affordable homes in our 
area.  

This type of accommodation may 
provide enable developers to provide 
housing more quickly and more cost 
efficiently than traditional building 
methods. 
 

 

Housing Investment 

Priority Target 
  
To invest Council funds in innovative 
new models of providing affordable 
housing that not only provide a range 
of tenures to support our mission, but 
also assist with the supply of 
temporary accommodation available in 
the borough. 

To invest circa £100000 of developer’s 
contributions to enable the purchaser of 
Brent House to affect renovations to 
provide temporary accommodation for 
families and single people facing 
homelessness in the borough. 

Also, to maintain engagement with, and 
assist smaller Alternative Affordable 
Housing Providers to develop in our area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

59 
 

Appendix 2 Organisations and partners we work with 

Organisation 

Age UK 

Astor Group 

Beacon Centre 

BME/cultural groups 

Christians Against Poverty 

Citizens Advice Havant 

Community First 

Customer Inclusion Adviser 

DWP (Havant) 

Elmleigh Hospital 

Elmleigh (social work team) 

Food Banks 

Guinness Housing Group 

Havant Homeless Trust 

Havant Housing Association 

Home Group 

Housing Benefits  

Hyde Group 

Inclusion 

MIND 

Neighbourhood Team (HBC) 

Off the Record 

Orion Centre 

Parkway Mental Health Team 

Police 

Probation 

Radian 

Richmond Fellowship 

Roberts Centre 

Social Services (Adults and Childrens) 

Stop Domestic Abuse 

Sovereign 

SSAFA 

St Faith's Church 

Step By Step 

Stonewater Group 

Supporting Families 

The Grange AP 

Two Saints 

VIVID 

Winchester Night Shelter 

Winchester Prison Resettlement 

You Trust 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

60 
 

Appendix 3 

Homeless Review 2019 

Havant BC Customer Survey 

 

Service User Survey Findings 

1. Group One – Customers at the very start of their journey, accessing advice and 
assistance with an emerging housing issue 
 

 9 customers surveyed, 3 responded 

 2 out of 3 customers knew to come to the council for assistance 

 The other customer was directed to the council by a family member 

 All 3 customers approached us in person first by calling into the office 

 All 3 customers felt it was very easy to access the housing service 

 2 out of 3 customers felt their approach was dealt with in an average 
timescale 

 The other customer felt their approach was dealt with very quickly and 
efficiently 

 2 out of 3 customers felt that the staff treated them politely and respectfully 
to a great extent 

 The other customer felt the staff treated them politely and respectfully to 
an average extent. 

 All 3 customers felt that the advice they received was very clear and 
helpful  

Customer feedback and ways to improve the service from this group: 

 Build more houses 

 The lady who helped me was incredibly helpful and friendly 
 

2. Group Two – Customers accessing advice and assistance who were threatened 
with homelessness 
 

 8 customers surveyed, 3 responded 

 1 of the customers knew to come to the council for assistance 

 The other 2 customers were directed to the council by family members 

 All 3 customers approached us in person first by calling into the offices 

 1 out of 3 customers found it very easy to access the housing service 

 2 out of 3 customers found it fairly easy to access the housing service 

 1 out of 3 customers felt their approach was dealt with very quickly and 
efficiently 

 1 customer found the approach dealt with in an average way and the third 
found the approach was dealt with quickly and efficiently 

 All 3 customers felt that the staff treated them politely and respectfully to a 
great extent 

 All 3 customers felt that the advice they received was very clear and helpful  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

61 
 

Customer feedback and ways to improve service from this group: 

 Better communication with Housing Benefit team 

 The officer who dealt with me was very polite and helpful 
 

3. Group Three - Customers accessing advice and assistance who were homeless 
 

 8 customers contacted, 2 responded 

 Neither customer knew to come to the council for assistance, one was 
directed to the council by their support worker and the other was directed by a 
friend 

 1 customer out of 6 went to CA first. 

 Both customers approached in person first by calling in to the offices  

 1 of the customers found it fairly easy to access the housing service 

 1 of the customers found it difficult to access the housing service 

 1 customer felt their approach was dealt with very quickly and efficiently whilst 
the other felt it was dealt with on average 

 Both customers felt that the staff treated them politely and respectfully to a 
great extent 

 Both customers felt the advice was given as very clear and helpful 
 

Customer feedback and ways to improve the service from this group: 

 Service was good 

 Some confusion between support worker and housing officer but when dealt 
directly with housing officer it got better 

 Two Saints (support service referred to by housing officer) were fantastic 

 

4. Overall collective findings 
 

 38% of customers knew to come to the council for assistance 

 100% of customers accessed the housing service by coming into the offices 

 88% found it very easy to fairly easy to access housing services 

 50% felt their approach was dealt with very quickly/quickly and efficiently with 
the other 50% reporting an average approach 

 88% felt they were dealt with politely and respectfully to a great extent 

 100% felt that the advice they received was very clear and helpful 

 

 

 

 

  



V10 – 09.10.2019 

62 
 

Appendix 4 

 

Grant funding received from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government to support homelessness initiatives and measures: 

 

Purpose of funding 
 

2018-19 2019-20 

New burdens 
  

£61,369 £64,871 

Flexible Homelessness 
Support Grant (FHSG) 
 

£250,003 £306,009 

Top up FHSG 
 

n/a £88,060 

Rough Sleeper Initiative – 
joint partnership with 
EHDC 
 

n/a £35,000 

Total 
 

£311,372 £493,940 

 

 

This grant funding is to be used to support any initiatives/projects which will prevent 
or relieve homelessness.  The funds, apart from the RSI, can be carried forward if 
not spent in year – at the present time there have been no further indications of 
whether there will be continued funding for 2020 and future years. 

To date the grant has been used for the following initiatives :- 

Additional Staffing – 5 members of staff on fixed term contracts 

SLAs with Two Saints to provide flexible Community Support following on from the 
reduction of £2.2m from the Hampshire CC Social Inclusion budget. 

SLA with Two Saints to provide outreach to those in B&B outside the area. 

2 x Supported lodgings placements 

Loans and deposits to enable renting in the private sector. 

Incentives to PRS Landlords 

IT upgrades to ensure compliance with completing government statistics. 

New initiatives identified in the review and contained within the Action Plan will be 
supported by this grant. 

 

 



V10 – 09.10.2019 

63 
 

Bibliography 

1) Havant Borough Council Annual Monitoring Report 2017 
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/factsandfigures/population-statistics/pop-
estimates/small-area-pop-stats.htm 

2) Havant Borough Profile January 2018 – available at 

https:/www.havant.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Havant%20Borough%20P
rofile.pdf 

3) Hampshire Home Choice - 
http://www.hampshirehomechoice.org.uk/content/Topics/AverageWaitingTimes 
 

4) https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attac
hment_data/file/733421/Rough-Sleeping-Strategy_WEB.pdf 

 

 





NON-EXEMPT

             
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet 18th December 2019

Overnight Parking for Motorhomes on Hayling Island
Private Sector Housing Manager

RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET

Portfolio: Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods, Safety and 
Enforcement
                  Cllr Narinder Bains 

Head of Service:  Natalie Meagher 

Key Decision: No 

1.0Purpose of Report 

1.1.This report is submitted to Cabinet for policy decision on the 
Experimental Traffic Regulation Order the affect of which was to cease 
overnight parking of motorhomes between 10:00pm and 6:00am in car 
parks in Hayling Island. 

2.0Recommendation 

2.1.That the Experimental Traffic Regulation Order be made permanent.

3.0Executive Summary 

3.1.  Since 2011 motorhomes, (the term ‘motorhomes’ is used for private 
vehicles with sleeping accommodation for the motor taxation class 
‘motor caravan’) have been able to park and stay overnight in West 
Beach car park (although the car park is not a licensed campsite).

Havant Borough Council noted that as the use of the car park by 
motorhomes has increased, motorhomes were parking too closely 
together which is considered to have serious health and safety 
implications in the event of a fire.  Therefore, Havant Borough Council 
commissioned a Fire Risk Assessment [FRA] by Fire Decisions 
Limited.

3.2.  The FRA states that to reduce the risk of fire spreading between 
motorhomes the authority can control this by providing adequate 
spacing between vehicles, the recommended spacing is a minimum of 



4 meters however it is recommended that 6 meters would reduce the 
risk significantly.  To do this the authority would need to tarmac (binder 
and surface course) West Beach car park, the bays would have to be 
marked out with box junctions to ensure that the distance was adhered 
to, which could only be provided at significant cost. In addition to the 
associated cost, there are other matters to consider.

3.3.The Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership (ECSP), of which Havant 
Borough Council is a member has identified the erosion of this area of 
beach/ car park.

As the beach erodes (and or gets flooded) we would need to 
continuously make repairs to the car park, currently any such repairs 
are not budgeted for. 
West Beach car park is situated within the SSSI area. To develop the 
land to accommodate the spatial requirements needed for motorhome 
parking would not be conducive to enhancing the natural environment 
that currently exists. Furthermore, this approach would not be 
supported by Natural England.

With these issues highlighted and taken into consideration the 
conclusion made was that it would not be viable or achievable to 
proceed with any formalised motorhome parking. Therefore, as safety 
is of paramount importance the recommendation is to ban overnight 
parking by motorhomes.

3.4. In light of the identified issues an Experimental Traffic Regulation 
order banning the overnight parking of motorhomes between the hours 
of 10:00pm and 6:00am in Hayling Island Car Parks was approved 
and implemented.

An experimental order was the chosen option to allow the Council to 
assess the effects of the Order.  Objections to an experimental order 
must be made within 6 months of the date of the Order. The objection 
period ended on 10th February 2019.  Details of the 
comments/objections received are given in Part 10 of this report and 
are included as Appendix A.

3.5.Cabinet members were consulted on 27th March, and a draft paper 
was presented which outlined the overnight parking ban currently in 
place for motorhomes and discussed the options available to the 
council. 

The options presented were as follows:

1. A suitable site identified and infrastructure put in place, HBC to 
operate as a caravan site.

2. A suitable site identified and HBC seek an alternative provider to 
deliver a caravan site.

3. Overnight parking for motorhomes is permanently banned.



During the discussion a number of questions were asked, in response 
to which further work has been undertaken. The questions are explored 
under section 6 of this report.

These items are discussed in point 6 below. 

4.0Additional Budgetary Implications 

4.1.  None

5.0Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and 
Directorate Business Plan/s

5.1.Our values include Customer Focus and Taking Responsibility both of 
which underpin this work. In addition, the evidence that has been 
collated since first introducing the Experimental Traffic Regulation 
Order to ban overnight parking, further support our priority to 
‘understand the future needs of our residents and visitors and 
designing our services to meet those needs’.

6.0Options considered and reasons for the recommendation
   

6.1 The full risks and benefits of Options 1 and 2 (see 3.5 above)– 

1. A suitable site is identified, and infrastructure put in place, HBC to 
operate it as a caravan site

Benefits: -
 Small amount of revenue generated through fees

The maximum fine through use of a Penalty Charge Notice [PCN] is 
£70 (£35 if paid within 14 days).   A charge for staying one night 
greater than £35 would not provide any intention to comply. 

We are not able to accurately predict the amount of revenue 
generated through the creation of a site for overnight parking, however 
based on the limited data we have available the amount of revenue 
generated from overnight parking in the West Beach car park prior to 
the implementation of the ban was approximately £16,000 per annum.  
Please note, at this time the parking was unrestricted and the number 
of vehicles parking overnight that resulted in the above figure is likely 
to be far higher than the maximum number we would be able to 
accommodate in a site created by ourselves. Therefore, the revenue 
generated is likely to be less than the figure stated above. 



Risks: - 

 Significant cost to set up the site (discussed further 
below)

 Significant cost to manage the site
 Lack of existing appropriate skill set / resource to manage 

site
 Operational risk incurred through responsibility for the 

health and safety of the users of the site
 Planning permission required for change of use 
 Revenue generated is unlikely to match the set up and 

on-going costs incurred
 Complaints from residents 
 Complaints from private caravan site operators 
 There is a risk motorhome users will not use this site and 

instead choose to park illegally in a different car park and 
risk receiving a PCN

 Potential loss of income from parking versus motorhome 
income

We are limited in the number of options for a suitable site, however an 
alternative is discussed below.  Costings are also provided.  We do not 
know the cost of managing a site if one were to be created, however it 
is likely to require an almost permanent presence to ensure 
compliance (just as most holiday caravan sites provide), and therefore 
the costs are likely to be significant.  

As soon as anyone brings a caravan (including a motorhome/mobile 
caravan/camper van) on to a piece of land for the purpose of human 
habitation (rather than simply parking or storage) the land becomes a 
caravan site.  The land on which the overnight parking would take 
place would be council owned and Section 8 of the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act 1960 confirms that local authorities should 
have regard to any standards which may have been specified by the 
Minister under subsection (6) of section 5 of the Act, which in this case 
would be the 1989 Model Standards.  We must adhere to the same 
standards that we would enforce on a privately-owned site through the 
licensing process. 

There is a possibility that the council may face complaints from 
residents who neighbour whichever site is to be used as a caravan site, 
as well as residents concerned over the council using tax payer’s 
money to fund a project that provides little benefit to the residents. We 
must therefore be prepared to field any complaints and negative press.  
Additionally, we may also receive complaints from private caravan site 
operators on Hayling Island who may have concerns that we are 
taking business away from them.         



Historically motorhome users have displayed a preference to park in 
the West Beach car park.  If the caravan site created by the council is 
not in the area in which the motorhome users wish to stay, they may 
not use the designated site and go to a different car park as described 
above.

2. A suitable site is identified, and HBC seek an alternative provider to 
operate a caravan site

Benefits: -
 Small amount of revenue generated through fees

As discussed above, there may be some revenue generated through 
this option.  However, for option 2 the amount of revenue is likely to be 
based on profits made from the site after costs have been met, and 
due to the high costs and low anticipated revenue there may be no 
income for the council at least for the first few years.  

Risks: - 
 Operational risk incurred through responsibility for the 

health and safety of the users of the site
 Planning permission required for change of use 
 Revenue generated is unlikely to match the costs 

incurred
 Complaints from residents 
 No interest from private operators due to lack of 

profitability
 There is a risk motorhome users will not use this site and 

instead choose to park illegally in a different car park and 
risk receiving a PCN  

 Potential loss of parking income versus motorhome 
income

This option would involve the council finding a suitable site to be used 
as a caravan site in the same manner as above and acquiring the 
necessary planning permission.  However, the next step would involve 
procuring a caravan site operator who may lease the site from the 
council and operate it themselves.  The start up and management 
costs could be borne by the operator procured.  However due to the 
possible high start-up cost it may be a while before the site is making a 
net profit.  While the majority of the operational risk would sit with the 
operator, the council would still retain an element of responsibility for 
the site.

As with option 1, we must be prepared for complaints from residents 
who may not be happy should the council make the decision to start 
using an area of land as a caravan site.

As with option 1, motorhome users may not use the designated site 
and go to a different car park.



The level of demand at caravan sites on Hayling Island –
Caravan/campsite operators on Hayling Island were surveyed to 
establish if they may be able to accommodate pitches for touring 
caravans or motorhomes.   The survey was sent to sites officers were 
able to identify as having pitches for touring caravans/motorhomes 
from the information we have available.   

Officers estimate there ought to be over 350 pitches (not including 
Fleet Farm or Lower Tye Farm) available on caravan/camp sites on 
Hayling Island.   

Nevertheless it is clear that there is provision for visitors to Hayling 
Island to stay there overnight in their motorhomes.  Privately owned, 
licensed, and managed sites are present, albeit not on the seafront, 
and can accommodate motorhomes.  Any provision made by the 
council for such a service, aside from the cost and risk, may also have 
a negative impact on these existing businesses.  

The impact of the ban on the local economy – During the 
consultation at the implementation of the ban, 1 representation was 
received from a business (a dry cleaner) on Hayling Island suggesting 
that their business had been affected by the ban.  In addition, we have 
had feedback from the operator of the café that their breakfast 
business has been impacted since the ban
 
The financial impact of the potential loss of car parks - The 
proposed alternative site as detailed below, does not require the loss 
of an existing car park.  Therefore, if this site were to be pursued, and 
the recommendation in this report was not approved, there would be 
no financial impact from the loss of a car park. 

Details on any interested partners and confirmation on whether 
Norse would be interested in working with the Council in this 
area – As discussed above the caravan/campsite operators we 
contacted did not respond to our questions, therefore we had no 
opportunity for additional dialogue.  

The matter was raised and discussed with colleagues in Norse, 
however their position was largely similar to that of the Council in that 
it is not their area of expertise, and there was unlikely to be much 
return on investment.  Therefore, Norse would not look to take this 
workstream on.  
  
Details on any options for potential alternative sites or for a 
number of smaller sites across the seafront –  Other car parks in 
HBC’s ownership were discussed during the meeting on 27th March as 
potential alternative sites.   However the car park located between the 
Hayling Seaside Railway and the Coastguard building was also put 



forward as there are more attractions here for holidaymakers (i.e. bars, 
restaurants etc).  

There is an area of land situated to the west of this car park that is not 
in use at present.  To mitigate any loss of revenue through conversion 
of a car park, it was decided that we would identify this currently 
unused area as a possible site for motorhome users and acquire the 
plans and costs for doing so.  This area will be referred to as St 
Andrews hereafter. Please see attached plans indicating the area in 
question.  

Plans have been created for installation of infrastructure taking into 
consideration spatial requirements, as provided by the Model 
Standards.  The site would allow up to 22 spaces for motorhomes.  The 
set up would involve significant costs to put in place the necessary 
infrastructure.

The car park proposals have been broken down into two options by our 
Civil Engineering Team, with each option having a choice of 
construction. 

 Option 1 (Loose Surface) – This proposal consists of the 
available space within St Andrews being used without impacting 
the SSSI, with the construction being made up of a loose 
surface (gravel). 

 Option 2 (Hardstanding) – This proposal is similar to above, 
however the construction consists of a hardstanding (tarmac 
surface).

Below are the cost estimates,

Option 1 (Loose Surface) £176,415.20
Option 1 (Hardstanding) £283,631.35

It should be noted that the Civil Engineering Team confirmed that in 
maintenance terms and management of the car park the preferred 
option is option 2 (hardstanding), as this will be a tarmac surface 
maintenance free for 10 to 15 years and will also be lined to aid 
enforcement and management of the car park.  Plans and estimates 
provided in Appendix B.  

The above costs only represent the improvements necessary to 
provide adequate bays, they have not taken into consideration further 
costs that are likely to be necessary such as provision of showers and 
disposal points for chemical closets.

The council would have to determine how the St Andrews site is to be 
managed.  Whilst the above infrastructure would go some way to 
ensuring requirements such as separation distances are adhered to, 
we would need to have plans in place to be absolutely sure that the 



site is being used safely.  This is especially important in summer 
months when in previous years motorhomes parked very close to one 
another wherever they could find some space.  Not managing the site 
closely presents a significant risk to the council.  The management 
plan once created would need to be costed, however it is likely to be a 
substantial outlay.

In terms of providing a number of smaller sites across Hayling Island, 
it is likely that the overall cost and risk would be largely the same as a 
single larger site, it would merely be split across multiple locations. 

6.1.Ultimately, the council are not currently in a position to provide a site 
for overnight parking for motorhomes on Hayling Island due to the 
cost, risk, and provision already exists in the form of privately owned 
and licensed camp sites.

It is important to note, the seafront is safer with the car parks used 
only as car parks and not as campsites.

7.0Resource Implications

7.1.Financial Implications - None

7.2.Human Resources Implications - None

7.3. Information Governance Implications - None

8.0Legal Implications

8.1.   It is unlikely that there would be any legal implications resulting from 
the recommendation.

9.0Risks

9.1.   The primary risk relating to the recommendation is that a group of 
people will be unhappy with our decision, in line with the feedback 
from the consultation (detailed in point 10 below).  The majority of 
people who made objections to the ban are non-residents 

10.0 Consultation

10.1. Following the formal advertisement of the Experimental Traffic 
Regulation Order a number of representations were received. 

10.2. The total number of representations supporting the ban on 
overnight parking for motorhomes was 5 and all are Hayling Island 
residents. In addition, there were 2 general comments received.



10.3. The total number of objections to the ban on overnight parking 
for motorhomes was 68.  This number consisted of 56 objections from 
non-residents, 1 who withheld their address, 7 objections from Hayling 
Island residents, and 4 objections from residents from elsewhere in the 
borough.  In addition to the above, there was also a complaint to the 
council from a business in Hayling Island, however they did not make 
an objection through the appropriate channel.  There were no other 
objections or complaints regarding this matter from businesses, to our 
knowledge.  

10.4. The main reasons for objecting to the ban are as follows:

Loss of local trade/ 
detrimental to local 
economy 

One objection from a local business as above. No 
other objections have been received. (see 3.4)

Loss of income to 
the authority

based on the limited data we have available the 
amount of revenue generated from overnight 
parking in the West Beach car park prior to the 
implementation of the ban was approximately 
£16,000 per annum.  However, we consider this 
minimal loss would outweigh any risk identified in 
the Fire Assessment report

Risk of fire during 
the day is the 
same as the risk at 
night

There is no evidence to dispute this – however, it is 
suspected that the risk is higher during the night due 
to users sleeping and less people about to spot a 
fire. We also have officers patrolling during the day.

Could simply mark 
out bays – rather 
than an outright 
ban

Have already identified that marked out bays are not 
a viable option due to the need for the car park to be 
properly constructed/ surfaced and the cost 
identified to do this.  The erosion of the beach also 
makes this not financially viable. Other identified 
options (posts markers) cannot be used in this 
location due to lack of lighting and potential trip 
hazard and collision.

Disagreed with the 
Fire Risk 
Assessment report

The authority has an obligation once a potentially 
dangerous situation has been identified to act in the 
public interest.

Could designate an 
alternative area 

See 6.1 for further information

Too few camp sites 
on the Island (for 
1-night stay) 

From our estimations there ought to be over 350 
pitches (not including Fleet Farm or Lower Tye 
Farm) available on caravan/camp sites on Hayling 
Island.   Also see further information in 6.1

Increase of cost to 
enforce the 
overnight ban

We have periodically carried out overnight 
enforcement patrols at various times of the week, 
including weekends and bank holidays across the 
Borough, including beach locations. This overnight 
enforcement has been paid for from an overtime 
budget, however, overall PCN income has covered 
this cost. If this ban is made permanent, then the 



authority may have to consider alternative ways of 
future enforcement as this is unstainable with 
current staffing levels 

Displacement of 
motorhomes to 
residential roads

Since the ban has been in place the traffic team has 
not received any significant complaints in relation to 
this Order where motorhomes have not previously 
been eligible to park. Any issues raised are being 
monitored and will be dealt with through the normal 
Traffic complaint processes.

Motorhomes are 
no different to 
beach huts 

The beach huts are operated under the same 
restrictions. There is no overnight stay allowed in the 
Beach Huts.

10.5 Despite the number of objections received it is recommended that the 
experimental order be made permanent due to the risks identified by the 
FRA, the start-up and management costs, and provision of pitches 
already present in privately owned and licensed existing campsites.

10.6 A number of comments were received through responses to the Say 
What You Sea survey.  The question that resulted in the most comments 
relating to motorhomes was ‘Q11 - What do you feel is missing from the 
seafront?’.  57 responses related to motorhome provision missing from 
the seafront.  

10.7 The background of the survey respondents was not captured so we do 
not know if any responses were from local businesses, however from the 
responses provided we believe this is unlikely. Full comments are 
provided in Appendix C.   

11.0 Communication

11.1. Following confirmation of the recommendation being agreed, the 
council would be required to publicise our decision.

12.0 Appendices: (include short summary of each appendix)

Appendix A: Experimental Traffic Regulation Order consultation 
responses
Appendix B: Plans from Civil Engineering Team
Appendix C: Say What You Sea survey results
Appendix D: Current Experimental Traffic Regulation Order

13.0 Background Papers: (provide evidence of any previous report, 
government guidance, relevant website etc.)



Agreed and signed off by:

Monitoring Officer: 10th December 2019
S151 Officer: 9th December 2019
Director: 9th December 2019
Portfolio Holder: 9th December 2019

Contact Officer:  Sam Ings
Job Title:  Private Sector Housing Manager 
Telephone:  01730 234334
E-Mail:  Sam.Ings@easthants.gov.uk 

mailto:Sam.Ings@easthants.gov.uk




OBJECTOR COMMENTS

 I am writing to complain about the van on overnight parking on beachlands. We 

have used this spot many times and have had lots of lovely times here. We do 

not leave litter or empty waste water in the beach. We spend money in the local 

shops and entertainment places. Being close to us we loved     just popping down 

with no booking made and at any time of the day to suit our needs. 

Likes to use campervan to sit on the beach - summer pursuit to sit with a bottle 

of wine and snack and enjoy the evening peace.  Letter scanned and on file

I still believe that the data that you have been provided with is flawed. I have 

seen no recommendations for 4 metre spacing in car parks coming from UK or EU 

bodies. Sleeping in a motorhome does not constitute camping - it is using the 

vehicle within its type approval. Can I ask for any incidents of fire or explosion in 

motorhomes whilst parked up in your car parks? What about fires in normal 

petrol powered automobiles, perhaps we could have the numbers of these fires? 

Has your local Fire & Rescue Service been asked to comment? The Council is 

using this so called fire risk as part of their overall reasons for banning 

motorhomes and I still believe that the advice is at best dubious. I want to 

question the phrasing that says that the car park is not a campsite. Motorhomes 

have all of the facilities that they need within the vehicle. For that reason they do 

not need to be on a campsite. They are literally just parked up. The Council does 

not appear to have considered the financial impact. Motorhomers use their 

vehicles all year round. They come to an area and spend money in the local 

economy. There is no impact assessment of this spending and the impact on the 

surrounding area. There are other local authorities in the UK that have managed 

to handle this in a totally different way. I would suggest that the authority looks 

at the facilities that Canterbury have installed. This attracts motorhomes to the 

area and they are seeing the financial benefits. It is worth noting that they do not 

have a 4 or 6 metre separation rule. All over the continent local authorities 

provide motorhome overnight parking and none of them have a 4 or 6 metre 

separation rule. I consider the Councils decision is based on flawed and 

incomplete information and it discriminates against motorhome owners.

mulitple emails - saved in email folder

mulitple emails - saved in email folder

mulitple emails - saved in email folder

The job of the council elected and paid for by the public is to provide services for 

the public and to manage them, not to hide behind bureaucracy. You are now 

forcing motorhomes to stay on local roads, which is what will happen. Have you 

ever been to Europe and see how they manage motorhomes (aires), Brexit has 

created an uptake in people staying in uk buying motorhomes etc, the job of 

elected people is to facilitate what people want, I recently visited hayling for 3 

days and spent £83 diesel in mengham, £55 in west town Tesco,£ 43 inn on the 

sea, £11 hayling ferry, £6 picking sunflowers, £14 fish chips west town,£6 ice 

crEAm café beach, £67 west beach parking.  Does these numbers come into your 

spreadsheet when the local businesses have to close up because you are keeping 

potential tourists away?

And because I was as Hayling I had two families who visited me and spent money 

in café, parking and pub!

WAKE UP

Kathy, thank you for your prompt reply and pointing out that there are other 

campsites available on the island, the problem with these are that they are not 

on the beach where the kite surfers are and normally in high season they will not 

accept single night bookings even if they have availability. With the demise of 

many shops and now a pub I would think that the council would be trying to 

promote tourism. I was there for 3 days last week and there were around 50 

others there, that's over a thousand pounds a day in parking fees plus the income 

generated by local businesses that is now going to be lost. When is this ban 

coming into effect? 



Large comment on email

I find it amazing that the council call hayling the home of windsurfing and are 

looking at regenerating the seafront. Yet you ban overnight parking for camper 

vans on the sea front, which will discourage visitors from coming to the Island, 

hense affecting local businesses and other income to the Island.  This crazy 

decision should go back to Council to be amended



SUPPORTING COMMENTSI have been windsurfing on hayling island for over 30 

years. we had a holiday caravan on the Island for 

some 20 years before moving down here 

permanently in 2005. West beach is one of the best 

windsurfing, paddle boarding and kite surfing braced 

in the country. Over the past few years I have 

watched the situation with unregulated Motorhomes 

at west beach get completely out of hand. Campers 

park anywhere they like without any consideration 

for other users . Some vans have been taking up 3 or 

4 spaces, parking sideways and blocking spaces with 

chairs bbqs awnings and other paraphernalia. They 

have ignored the 3metre fire break rule ( and a 

recent grass fire highlighted the potential dangers 

there) campers have openly boasted that they 

haven’t paid the overnight charge has no one was 

checking and even if they had to pay an occasional 

fine they came out ahead. I should add that I actually 

have a small camper van myself that I use to bring my 

windsurfing and SUP kit down to the beach. I have 

stayed overnight from time to time ( paying the 

appropriate charge , I also have a season ticket ) I 

believe there is scope for properly regulated 

overnight camping at the beach and I would welcome 

a well managed scheme but I would urge you not to 

allow another uncontrolled situation to return. They 

seem to have quite a good scheme at Calshot for 

campers which might be worth looking at 

Firstly I fully agree with the stopping of overnight 

parking by motor homes. Never felt this was a good 

idea, and the number of motor homes now using 

Beachlands is unsightly and causes congestion in an 

already busy car park. It must also have taken 

business away from local campsites which I feel is 

both unnecessary and unsuportive of those 

 businesses. 

Good decision as will be taken over for long term 

parking by the residents in the Flats next door and 

possible future developments in that area to the 

detriment of local shops. Can you please consider 

similar at the Station Road HAYLING Island car park 

used regularly by the car dealer next door. So bad 

last week the Blood donor vehicle had problems 

finding somewhere to park.

The weekend after the ban came into place, we had a 

windy Sunday, very few campers were in the car 

park, but it was completely full, I can’t remember 

seeing so many windsurfers and kite surfers out on 

the water apart from when we have festivals, it was 

amazing, one chap hadn’t been out for over 2 years, 

the carpark was buzzing, met an old disabled lady 

who likes to come for an hour and watch, she 

normally can’t come as the disabled spaces are taken 

up by campers staying for the weekend. The council 

likes to call (correctly) Hayling as the birthplace of 

windsurfing, yet it has chosen this carpark as the 

place for overnight camping, this has put many 

windsurfers and kite surfers off coming to Hayling, on 

the evidence of last weekend they are back, also of 

note was how many people were seen with coffee 

and food coming from the cafe, that’s because most 

of the motor homes bring there own food and make 

there own coffee.If the council was to reinstate 

overnight camping, it should be relocated to the 

carpark known as Chichester Avenue, this has toilets 

and would be very easy to make the bays that would 

be nesacery for campervans to park in line with fire 

recomendations



At busy periods the car park has been over capacity with 

motorhomes and campervans, randomly and 

inconsiderately parked theeby denying parking for others.  

It is also a dangerous health and safety issue, and at busy 

times there have been in excess of 50 units parked 

haphazardly and in close proximity, breaking the 

recognised safe distances between units over night.  I 

cannot see how HBC can responsibly acquiesce to this 

when as planning authoroty it rightly insists on complinace 

with recognised safety distance between units on 

campshites in the borough. It is a massive risk and liability 

for Lincoln tax payers in the event of an incident occuring.

West Beachlands is the only car park people wishing to 

participate in the sport of windsurfing can park their 

vehicle and access the beach with windsurfing equipment 

on Hayling Seafront.. Since the car park has become 

inundated with camper vans , the recreational and healthy 

lifestyle sport of windsurfing has at times become 

impossible to do because of the lack of car parking 

space. The nature of the beach provides an ideal launching 

area for both children and adults. I completely support this 

TRO. However, if it is imperative that campervans be 

allowed to park overnight, could they not be moved slightly 

east to the car park adjacent to the skate park or in the car 

park adjacent to the funfair?Visitors to the Island bring much needed revenue to 

local shops and entertainment facilities. However, 

motorhomes usually come down fully provisioned on 

board so that they are self contained and do not 

need to move for local spending while they are here. 

There are already sufficient caravan and camping 

sites on the Island for them to stay on without the 

the council under cutting their prices and offering a 

privileged location. In the last summer season the 

motor caravans tended to form encampments, often 

parking side on to the sea (in removal van sized 

vehicles) blocking the open sea view for other 

visitors. Established caravan sites have rules and 

checks on things like release of grey water, storage of 

gas cylinders and spare petrol cans. The council does 

not have the resources to check these sort of things 

especially when the vehicles are set up more 

permanently for overnight stays. Beach hut users 

have to pay a considerable licence fee and cannot 

stay overnight. However, they were getting motor 

caravans parked up close behind them plus the 

occupants could stay there overnight. Generally, the 

introduction of car parking charges for the winter 

months are very fair and sensible. However, the 

anomaly where households with the means to run 2 

cars only have to pay a 1 vehicle price needs 

reconsidering for the 2019/20 season. It is illogical 

because a standard parking ticket only covers 1 
A new low in the car park at west beach. Yet again 30+ 

motorhomes parked any way they want. All over the place, 

some too close together and a number have gained access 

to the SSSI. A bunch of what appears to be travellers at the 

western end and we now have quad bikes being ridden by 

8 year olds within the SSSI and beyond. I do not usually 

voice my emotions but I am sickened and disgusted that 

this has been allowed to develop into what I can only 

describe as lawless! I gather that motorhomes will not be 

able to park overnight from next weekend. I can only hope 

that this is enforced from day 1 and will include those 

individuals who have been abusing the system for a 

number of years who seem to think they can reside there 

at will.I am a local and I am also a motorhomer…..never 

through all my travels across Europe have I seen such 

unregulated and uncontrolled behaviour. We are seeing 

the degradation of our beautiful environment by what I 

can only describe as passers by who are being allowed to 

by our council and elected members. I am outraged. I 

would appreciate a response assuring me that this 

unofficial campsite will not be tolerated from day 1...next 

weekend.



COMMENTS

Why is the discount for parking permits being 

increased to age 65? If this is your intention surely 

it would be fairer to phase the increase in the 

same way the pensions are?

Questioning price increase. Having only learnt 

about the new increases to parking permits for 

Beachlands etc, I would like to question certain 

decisions. The price increase however I feel is 

unjustified and unnecessary. Also why do we now 

have to pay for a full 12 month period instead of 

the usual 8 months? These permits used to only 

be able to be purchased by residents of the 

Island, and not all and sundry! Why is it that as a 

council you show no support for the local people, 

just milk them for all you can get.!

 It is obvious that your decision to allow overnight 

parking was a mistake as you have now he to 

change that. I think it was also a mistake to open 

the purchase of permits to anyone.

 I strongly think you should NOT charge for the 12 

months as proposed, and you should go back to 

permits for residents only. This would support the 

locals, avoid Beachlands being a campsite, and 

bring in revenue from visitors, 

Hi James and thanks again for receiving us last 

week to discuss the west beach camper van ban.

I have since discussed it with other Fire Safty 

colleagues and hope the following could be 

considered towards making the site safer and 

more manageable.1. All vans should be sited 

North of the road 2. Facing south towards the sea 

3. From west to east.parallel to the road 4. A 4 

meter gap between all vans.5. Posts with pitch 

numbers low enough to drive over in an 

emergency.6. A designated sign next to the 

parking machines stating that- All camper vans 

must have1 a multipurpose fire Extinguisher 2 a 

smoke alarm 3 a fire detector 4 failure to produce 

the above will result in being asked to leave.If the 

site is set out this way it enables a quick And 

orderly exit in the case of an incident.

As the parking is restricted to only three days it is 

not a  camping site,but a car park with 

overnighting facilities and we do not think Fire 

points should be needed as the risk is so low.



I'm just writing in regards the experiment on 

closing the west beach car park for overnight use. 

This was our first weekend out in our camper van 

and we had been told that Hayling Island is 

amazing and you can park near the beach etc so 

we planned our trip to come down only to find 

"No Overnight Camping" gutted...We did stay for 

a while and i can tell you that in the time we 

stayed  we had over 50+ campers come in look at 

the sign then drove off straight away without 

evening stopping. I did read the notice about 

parking to close etc for health and safety reason's  

but surely if you ask people to leave the correct 

space between the vans they you require it would 

cure this problem? Hayling Island is a lovely place 

to visit but its going round all the camping 

community to stay away from this area now 

which is not good. I have attached the picture of 

the car park around about 6:00pm and the car 

park was not much different to this through out 

the day which can't be good for one of the busiest 

holidays of the year. Just thought you should 

know as the revenue coming into your town is 

going to be affected for sure. Shame it looked like 

a amazing place to be in a campervan. ���

HI COULD YOU PLEASE CONTACT ME ON MY PHONE OR 

EMAIL REGUARDING HAYLING COUNCIL STOPPING 

CAMPING ON SEA FRONT AND THE DAMAGE IT IS 

DOING TO THE LOCAL BUISNESSES.HOPE TO HERE 

FROM YOU SOON



OBJECTIONS
We have a motorhome and have loved staying at West beach on occasions . We have always paid the charge 

. We spend money in pubs , restaurants , cafes supermarkets, even charity shops! If you go ahead with the 

ban you will make the island a ghost town again . Also if a motorhome is going to catch fire , it's more likely 

to happen in the daytime ! Such an awful shame this is happening, we will miss the inn on the beach 

especially 
I believe this as not been thought about in any consideration to local businesses. I for one regular used the 

overnight parking to take in a walk and use in on the beach for a evening meal. A simple wooden post 

marking 3 meter areas would of worked. In my years of campervaning we do all tend to respect 

surroundings and would police each other. 

I believe a total ban is a big mistake on the future of this area. 

Also if a camper parks in the daytime next to another camper. Surly their sould be a 3m rule to apply. 

Thanks for reading

I am a local resident, Watersports user (Since 1979 on Hayling - Kite, SUP, Windsurf and Sailing HISC Member 

also) and permit holder for Beachlands Car Parks. I simply cannot believe that a ban was placed on 

Motorhomes overnight without any consultation that could see resolve to the situation we are now faced 

with. (Whether Fire and safety, local residents, watersports users or the Council budget). I have spoken to so 

many MH users - which on the most part - are more than law abiding proffessionals - bringing only good to 

the Island. I recognise that there are always a minority that can spoil it for others - but to simply ban MH 

that were bringing such positives to our economy on Hayling - does not make any sense. I have also spoken 

(and know) many who oppose the MH being there and almost every one of the MH users that I have spoken 

to, would have been more than happy to compromise i.e. be moved, police themselves, work with the 

council - making this a more lucrative opportunity for HBC. Makes no sense!

 I visit this site to go beach fishing with my grandsons<with my motorhome> at nights, sometimes! will this 

still be possible?
We visit twice a year and stay min 4 nights on west beach. We use local coffee shops, pubs and super 

markets plus attractions when we stay. Hayling island is a gorgeous place and unique park up and overnight 

stay. we contribute to the local economy and have shared with others who have come and stayed over 

night. It’s a real shame that this is being stopped. I feel it will have an impact on local tourism and trade

As a frequent visitor to HI for the last 30years to partake in water sports, I think this decision will badly affect 

tourism and the local economy. I have always enjoyed my stays since my days at RAF Thorney Island and 

have used hotels, campsites and a campervan. The car parks are a disgrace with no markings and no 

maintenance that is noticeable. Many towns now offer Aires style provisions including Chester, Lytham St 

Anne and many more in Wales, Virtually all towns and cities offer overnight (Aires) motorhome camping in 

Europe . This is a backward step for the council which they may regret.

More help needed for Motorhomes similar to continental Aires would help Council coffers
We have a Motorhome and travel around the UK and Europe regularly, as responsible and caring people we 

always take our waste home and if necessary we litter pick other peoples rubbish before we leave. We 

always try to spend in local shops, pubs and cafes rather than the large supermarkets. All we ask is that we 

are able to park not necessarily free, but in a dedicated area with a pleasant view if possible. We are 

therefore very dissapointed at the closure of the parking area on Hayling island and would ask that you 

reconsider this decision.
Please would the council take into consideration the views of the many residents and tourists who have 

objected to this ban. The health and safety issues may need to be addressed but this can be done fairly 

easily and apply for the full 24 hour period. It does seem that there is a vendetta (by some people, possibly 

with their own agenda) against people staying overnight in motorhomes and they are using health and 

safety issues as a tool to ban them. Why was this overnight ban put it place right in the middle of the holiday 

season ? Motorhome users are a friendly group of people who enjoy the outdoor life and the freedom to 

travel around without having to book ahead. The island has benefited over the years from its tourism and if 

this ban is allowed many local businesses will suffer. Not to forget to mention the revenue received from 

overnight parking. Hayling Island is a very special place to many people. My father was stationed here during 

the war. We spent our annual holidays here. My parents retired here. Our children had their holidays here 

and my son now brings his children here. Hayling Island has so much to offer please don't turn the tourists 

away without considering the full impact and the consequential re-action to this very unpopular ban. 

Thank you.

I am angry and disappointed that this has happened. We have enjoyed many years of being able to park our 

motorhome on a Saturday night at Hayling and enjoying the lovely view whilst meeting up with friends. We 

do not always wish to stay on a campsite and often these campsites want you to stay 2 nights! My husband 

and I are responsible adults and feel that unlike Europe where motorhomes are gladly welcome in England 

they are frowned upon.
It was with sadness that I heard about the proposal to discontinue overnight parking. We love visiting 

Hayling Island to enjoy the vistas, watching the water sports, peace and enjoy the day and night fishing. We 

spend quite a lot of money when we are there and your local traders will almost certainly suffer from people 

like myself not returning because of this ruling. I do hope you see sense and realise how this will impact on 

your local economy.
I own a commercial vehicle and often windsurf before work, I am now concerned I may get a parking ticket 

before 8am with parking inforcers wrongly thinking I am sleeping in my vehicle over night.Also this sunday 

after windsurfing, I had a few beers at the Inn on the beach, not wanting to fill there small car park up with 

my van I parked just next to it. It was quite full and i was unsure i would get in anyway. I have a season pass, 

but also was uneasy leaving it there due to the potential fine for wrongly thinking i was sleeping overnight. 

When in fact I sleep at home 3 miles down the road on hayling. Obviously I was not going to drive home 

after drinking. Can you please shed some light on my 2 concerns here. As I enjoy a pint after a days 

windsurfing at the inn on the beach looking out to sea afterwards and would be quite dissapointed to 

receive a parking ticket. After I have just left my vehicle net to the pub (which is the done thing). And also on 

the windsurfing in the early hours before work concern.

This is a big mistake. People visit the Island to enjoy themselves along with their families and children. By 

doing this potential holiday makers and others will not be spending money on Hayling keeping businesses 

going like the restaurants, shops in Mengham, Pubs, gift shops etc. Wake up and count the money!



Motor homes people are very calculated travelers, they like to enjoy the beautiful England & wake up with it 

in our front window. Why ban the people who keep England natural. Freedom.

I totally object to your overall ban and comments about fire safety. Firstly when was there a case of a 

motorhome catching on fire and setting others alight? Frequency, recency - this seems to be a completely 

unfounded and unsubstantiated excuse. People park so that there is enough room to get into their 

motorhomes and still allow room for another van or car or vehicle. Needing a 6m distance is ludicrous. All 

through Europe there are motorhome aires with neighbouring parking places without this distance 

enforcement. Their whole culture revolves around holidaying within their countries in their motorhomes 

without any sort of crazy rule like this and yet there are motorhomes everywhere. It seems we have latched 

on to some crazy rule for one small car park which is going to take up unnecessary amounts of space thus 

limiting the number of people who can park and pay you, the council, parking fees!. Provide the evidence as 

to the necessity for this rediculous rule and it may seem more credible but on the face of it it makes no 

sense. Secondly, we have windsurfed at Hayling for over 20 years. We used to live locally but now don’t and 

hence getting to the best windsurf spot we have in this country is only possible by motorhome as we have 

kids. It’s a 150 mile journey and is not something we can do daily. Being able to stay overnight enables us to 

come down late on a Friday, windsurf Saturday and Sunday and travel home Sunday night. During that time 

we never leave mess, we use the chemical waste and we spend considerable money locally. We come down 

in all weathers and all times of year as it’s usually windy when it’s the winter months. We eat at inn on the 

beach every time we come down, we buy petrol from your local petrol stations, we buy top up food at the 

local Tesco, we buy fish and chips or other takeaway meals for our Sunday meal from the local take away 

shops near beach lands and we take the kids to the fun fair every year several times a year and spend yet 

more money there. Plus we pay our parking charges Day and night. You imposing the ban makes our entire 

ability to continue to enjoy our sporting passion an impossibility. There are so few decent windsurf spots in 

the UK that are also safe for children when it’s low tide and the sand bar provides all of that - a safe place for 

kids and beginners but massive waves for the experienced sailors. If you don’t windsurf then you will find it 

hard to appreciate the uniqueness of the spot and everything it has to offer. Trying to windsurf with kids too 

results in us tagging the childcare and sailing and having a safe beach for our kids to play on, to learn the 

sport we love and also for us to be able to keep them warm day and night in the colder months is amazing 

and yet a few crazy rules and sad people are trying to ruin all this for a large number of us. If you impose this 

ban then you leave us no option but to have to try and find other places to spend our money and go, or 

worse still, accept that we can no longer justify our motorhome and can no longer enjoy our sport other 

than on summer holidays. This is a very selfish decision that has been made with no consultation with the 

people who actually use the spot and by people with no passion for windsurfing. Please don’t ruin it all for I am so disappointed about this ban. I take my children here and stay for one night every month in our VW 

T5 and we have such fun! We spend money at the Inn on the Beach pub and buy ice creams from the kiosk. 

We walk along thw sand bar at sunset and swim in the sea first thing in the morning with hit coffee waiting 

for me in my camper. Such a shame that these experiences for my children will stop. Please reconsider. I 

have never had any problem with the other campers. We are all like minded people who are these to enjoy 

the beautiful beach. Shame on the select few local people who i believe have instigated this ban so they can 

run their own private paddleboarding lessons from the car park. The vast majority of locals are opposed to 

the ban as Hayiing has a long tradition of camping on the Beach and I want the local businesses to be 

supported. PLEASE OVERTURN THE BAN!! we love the camping experience on the Beach in our T5 Camper 

and do not want this ban!! Thank you. 

I would like to object to this. We were very saddened and upset to find out that we can no longer park our 

motorhome overnight at this beautiful location. We have done it many times, always paid, parked sensibly 

and respected our surrounding environment. This could bring some great revenue to the council. In France 

they have self administered Aires and these go without any management, perhaps HBC could adopt this 

procedure and be the first to introduce this to the UK. We need to be more innovative, more and more 

people are becoming Motorhome users and there are not enough beautiful beachside locations to enjoy our 

lovely south coast. Please HBC be the first to take a step in the right direction, not backwards like you have 

done.
My family and I used to live in Portsmouth. Because of work we've relocated 120 miles away but still enjoy 

windsurfing with our 2 young children . If the ban on overnight motorhome parking is enforced our 

continued enjoyment of hayling island , ongoing contact with friends on the south coast and huge spending 

on local restaurants, bars , shops and local facilities such the fairground will cease and we will forced to 

spend our time at other less well equipped and less ideal beaches or even possibly sell our van and vegetate 

at home .
I think that ultimately you are going to lose a great deal of revenue from the banning of overnight 

motorhome parking. I appreciate that there are some outfits that really shouldn’t be there which ultimately 

have ruined it for those of us that pay and behave properly. Maybe you could block a piece of land off and 

put barriers on, that made people pay whilst in entry or exit, you could also put bays that confirm to the UK 

rule of 6metres between outfits. An initial outlet but you could reap rewards. Maybe a height barrier of 

4metres to keep it to proper MH. We have had many lovely breaks on your beach and will miss the 

opportunity for this to continue. Thank you
I have read the FRA commissioned by HBC and at no point did it recommend a complete/immediate ban on 

"overnight parking" .... the report gave a number of recommendations that would make the overnight 

parking compliant with fire regs, the HBC have chosen to completely ignore all these recommendations. This 

decision shows that the commissioning of a full FRA report was a total waste of money, the council's caravan 

officer could have advised you of all the h&S points it raised. A true and far more beneficial TRO would be to 

mark out parking bays for motorhomes/campervans, this would then allow HBC to assess the situation and 

whether it is possible to manage the situation whilst still being compliant with fire regs ...... the cost of 

managing compliant overnight parking would be far less than banning it and would still allow a valuable 

source of revenue to continue. Please show some common sense and reverse this decision.



This overnight ban will have in my opinion a detrimental impact on local small business that rely on the 

overnight stoppers. The loss of the revenue overnight parking generates if ‘policed’ is also to be considered. 

Not providing a place for motorhome will only push the issue into the nearby streets. As the Council for 

Hayling, you should be working to help the limited holiday /tourist attractions and encourage motorhome to 

the island. This trial is a ill conceived decision and very short sighted. Impose clearer rules and employ 

people to enforce it, if they do their job correctly they will increase the revenue, make the parking safe and 

motorhomers will come on mass, hence using local business etc. It’s no good saying use local sites, they are 

not large enough and are already fully booked.Please reconsider this discussion, you have a great 

opportunity to make Hayling a real destination for motorhomers, rather than join the other councils such as 

Devon & Cornwall who appear intent on stopping overnight parking.

I have read the safety report and the estimates to tarmac and upkeep the carpark in the event of coastal 

erosion and though I understand the councils concerns , I fail to see how the immediate decision to ban 

Motorhomes & campervans will make a difference to the situation. As a council you will be losing out on 

revenue drone the parked vehicles , the local businesses will lose out on income and risk alienating a lot of 

people both locals and tourists alike . I've only been using West Beach for the last two years but I've come to 

love the area . I hope you will listen to any reasoned arguments that other campers put forward and also 

local businesses that may contact you & overturn your decision to ban the parking or the leisure vehicles

My wife and I come and stay on West Beach an average of twice a month, at the weekends throughout the 

year, I fill my motorhome up with Diesel when I arrive on the island, buy food at the local takeaways and 

normally have at least one meal and several drinks at the Inn on the beach. The beauty of the car park apart 

from the location is that you can just turn up for one or more nights when you want, all the campsites on 

the island are fully booked untill September and will not take bookings for one night. When I was last down 

there were around 50 Campers staying overnight, that is over a £1000 in lost revinue. This decision has upset 

locals as well as visitors like me, I won't be coming to the island unless I can stay the night, I know others 

with smaller vans will be parking in residential streets but that is not for me. Councils in other resorts are 

changing their parking regulations and opening up overnighting spots for motorhomes. Why don't you mark 

out the bays and enforce the parking as advised in the fire report you commissioned? The increase in 

parking charges and winter charges have upset the local residents, now there is going to be a loss of 

business to the local shops, food outlets and the Inn on the beach.

The ban on West Beach for over night parking for motorhomes has been put into place after pressures from 

a small number of locals - most notably - the watersports sector

Other locals and more importantly local businesses were not consulted or were their views taken into 

considerartion

You have based the ban on H&S concerns raised in a fire risk that Havant BC commissioned

The fire risk assessment does not say to ban motorhomes from parking overnight

The fire risk assessment says:

motorhomes are exempt from the camping and caravanning act 1969

That there are no reported incidents of anyone ever coming to harm through fire whilst sleeping in a 

motorhome

A suitable bay marked out could define a parking bay. These bays could be marked out with logs which are 

inexpensive and environmentally friendly

If you are banning motorhomes from staying at night because they park too closely and are a fire hazzard, 

then you have to ban them from parking during the day for the same reason. There are more people about 

during the day and they are using gas cookers and bbqs. Noone cooks while they sleep. That said, last year's 

Boomtown fire was caused by cars parked too close to eachother - perhaps they need banning too.

Your risk assessment did not cover the beach huts - these are highly inflamable, less than 2 metres apart and 

are allowed to store gas bottles and bbq fuel

If you look at your own fire risk assessment - photo 6 shows that it appears to be two surfer type vans that 

have parked in a selfish way blocking the road

The local watersports fraternity are also blaming the motorhomes for poor parking - which led to an 

ambulance having difficulty getting to a fallen horserider in May - horses are banned from the beach. 

However, this could easily be rectified - by having marked out bays and a proper marked out road

The local watersports fraternity have also accused motorhomes of not paying their way. Yet last year, I am 

told that revenue from was £12,000 - can you afford to lose this?

Non payment is easy to stop - just use barriers at the gate, pay on exit - that way no one can get away I would like to understand why you are banning motorhomes from parking overnight because they are 

parking too close together, yet they are still able to use the car park during the day. Are the health and 

safety regulations different during the day? We love visiting Hayling Island, peak and out of season - 

disappointed about this to say the least. I am sure your local businesses will be affected by this. We spend 

money in the Inn on the Beach, the local cafe, fuel up at the petrol stations. I wonder whether the ban has 

been pushed forward by a local councillor who feels his view is being spoilt - maybe he should take the time 

to engage with those using the car park, he would then no doubt agree that there is a community spirit, 

people are just enjoying the peace and quiet, the amazing beach, and brining revenue to the local 

businesses. Instead of banning “any vechile that can be adapted to sleep in” your council could put in clearly 

marked bays, open up the whole beach to overnight parking - there are other options. There will always be a 

small minority who can ruin things for the rest (car owners included) - however the majority of people using 

the car park keep it clean and tidy. I sincerely hope this ban is lifted

There has been no issues relating to health and safety of of campervans being too close together parked 

over night at Hayling island as far as I am aware. No fires, explosions. no accidents etc. Why bring this up 

now when there is no reason. 

 Cars/vans are parked this close together every day of the week everywhere in the world. 

 Having a designated carpark with campervan parking for this purpose would help campers know where to 

park and how far away.



This TRO is completely unnecessary and detrimental to Hayling Island. 1. ECONOMIC: The motorhome and 

campervan community spend a lot on the island during their stay. They fill up in local fuel stations, shop at 

local shops and spend money in the local restaurants take aways and pubs.  Motorhomes and 

campervanners bring in winter trade too. 2. ECONOMIC & TOURISM: Hayling Island is a magnet for kite 

surfers, windsurfers, paddleboarders and kayakers. People travel for miles to benefit from the perfect 

conditions and need to have direct access to the beach. Its not convenient for them to come and go every 

day with their equipment. Some users have children, elderly or disabled and its easier for them to be right 

on the beach 24/7.3. TRAFFIC: There is already a lot of traffic on Hayling. There will be an exodus of 

campervans and motorhomes leaving the beach before 10pm to where ever they can stay, filling the roads 

during peaks times every day. The same applies in the morning.4. ECONOMIC & TOURISM: Hayling is a 

popular one night stop over for people travelling to and from the continent on ferries. If the ban goes ahead 

these people will go elsewhere and spend their money elsewhere. 5. ECONOMIC & TOURISM: Not everyone 

wants to stay at a campsite. They’re not all open throughout the year. You cannot turn up at 10pm at a 

campsite and just stay the night. There are simply not enough campsites on Hayling to accommodate the 

current influx of vans and motorhomes. Word will get out about the ban and people will simply stop coming 

to Hayling and spending money here. 6. TRAFFIC: People will start to look for overnight places on the island 

having come here and found nowhere to stay. This will include unrestricted roads, outside homes, non 

council car parks. 7. HEATH AND SAFETY: Motorhomers and campervanners take great pride in their 

vehicles. Most of them have fire extinguishers, smoke alarms, CO2 alarms, fire blankets etc. Some people 

have spent tens of thousands on their motorhomes and take great care to protect them from fire.

 8. HEATH AND SAFETY: There is no more fire risk at night that during the day. There have been no fire 

incidents at West Beach involving vehicles. 10. HEATH AND SAFETY: People are more likely to drive under the 

influence of alcohol as they leave the site after drinking in the pub or on the beach. With the overnight stay 

allowed, people could stay on side and sleep off alcohol until ready to drive again. Taxis late at night on a 

weekend night are very limited.11. HEALTH AND SAFETY/ECONOMIC: This ban sends out a message that 

West Beach is not a safe place to stay overnight. This will effect confidence in camping at events such as Kite 

Surfing Armada. If it’s not safe during the rest of the year how can it be safe during that weekend?12. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY: There are no signs advising people of safety rules. If people aren’t told how and where 

to park it’s no surprise that vehicles have been parking too close together and/or in the wrong places. 

I own a campervan and come from Manchester. We stayed on this car park recently and it was a lovely 

couple of days. We would not have visited Hayling island if this overnight parking was not available and 

won’t be visiting again if the order goes ahead. We contributed to the local economy by using the cafe and 

the Inn on the Beach where we purchased several meals. Whilst we were there no one complained about 

campervans and no one was blocking access on the road

That the majority of motorhomes abide by the rules set out by yourselves. It is unfair to penilise the majority 

who do abide by your rules. not only are motorhome users going to feel this discision to ban motorhomes is 

wrong but also local businesses that make there living esp during colder summers and winter from those 

that stay a few days and enjoy the watersports activities from the comfort of a warm motorhome esp those 

like me that are disabled and a car would not suit my needs. I spend money in the Inn on the beach, funfair 

with grandchildren, local cafes like many other motorhome users but would find it difficult other the period 

of just one day
I cannot understand how you can afford to lose all the revenue from the overnight parking for campers. I 

hadn't realised that you were such an affluent council that you can turn down that amount of money. We 

were parked in the little carpark by The Inn on the Beach the other week and we worked out just in our 

small group you would have taken £1000 in one night and that was not including all the other areas where 

the campers park. If you are suddenly so concerned about fire regulations even though to my knowledge 

there has never been any fires caused by camping overnight, why do you not mark out bays at the correct 

width apart as they have done in Exmouth after discovering that the ban they imposed to overnight campers 

was a terrible mistake. They have now put out a plea for the camper vans to come back. I feel sorry for the 

businesses that it will affect also, as we campers spend quite a lot of money when we are there. Let's hope 

your actions don't send some businesses to the wall. Such a shame that such a wonderful place to while 

away a weekend or longer is going to only be kept for a certain few when people have been enjoying Hayling 

Island for as many years as I care to remember. As for listing the camping sites that you suggest we should 

use, there seems to be a couple of problems with that (a) you cannot book for one night only at these sites 

and (b) they are full all summer anyway. Did you do your research before listing these as alternatives for us 

to use? I urge you to reconsider these proposals as everyone including the Council will lose out.

I love Hayling and I park my motor home on west beach. I use local shops and pubs who I think rely on 

tourist trade. I think your plans to stop the overnight parking of motorhomes will be a shame. I am sure 

there is a to many campers currently parking. If I were to park with the appropriate gap, some one will just 

park in the gap. 

 If there was a compound only for motorhomes on the beach with a barrier entry and marked out bays with 

the appropriate distance. if you limit the number able to park on the barrier entry this will stop 

overcrowding. this is a system that is used extensively in France this works very well and is inexpensive to set 

up
Having recently purchased a Campervan after having several bad experiences in Airbnb’s and as watersports 

athlete living In Berkshire getting access to the ocean is so important for my training. Since June 2018 I have 

spent a maximum of of 2 nights Parking overnight at Beachlands. Every time I pay the required charges and 

would happily see a small increase in charges to have marker posts (using sustainable resources and social 

enterprises) put in to map out parking bays to the required width.

 I also have volunteered my time fee of charge to provide Stand Up Paddle safety clinics to the public Uding 

beachlands. The ability to stay overnight is so important as I have all my boards and equipment. It is very 

unusual in such a popular holiday destination that there are only 2 campsites with distances to the beach 

which are too far to carry equipment without having to pack up my van and the are only open half the year 

when I train the whole year.i also spend a lot of money at the local businesses.pkease reconsider or at least 

think of a compromise



It's such a shame to lose this area of overnight parking on the beach. As I understand it, it's the only area 

within a fair drive that you can wake up with a beautiful view as at West Beach. I understand the fire risk 

and patrolling these areas and black topping the car park wouldn't give it the same appeal, nor cost 

affective. During the Eastoke Coastal Defence Works, back in 2012/13, timber groynes were used to de-mark 

car parking spaces in Eastoke Corner Car Park (discuss with ESCP), could a similar approach not be taken 

here? - I would also suggest a ban on using motorhome awnings and generators, which could reduce the 

contention between motorhome users and other beach users/ beach hut owners.

Regarding the ban on overnight motorhome parking at Hayling Island.  We have been spending 2 or 3 nights  

there on and off for the last 18 months and love it so we are very disappointed with your actions.  The FRA 

you commissioned  recommends 4 metres between vehicles and I appreciate that this  is not always the case 

when parking.  That said they should also take into account how many fires or explosions there have been to 

be able to access the risk.  I do not believe there are any documented cases so can not understand your 

reaction to the  assessment results.  The word recommended is also significant, if your signage stated 

motorhomes park overnight at their own risk the distance between vehicles recommended by Havant  

BoroughCouncil is 4 metres you are covered should there be an incident. The majority of us that overnight at 

H. island are responsible individuals who are happy to pay the parking charge.  We put rubbish in bins and in 

our case take any recycling home with us.   Regardless with what more of transport people use there will 

always be those who don't think before they act ie: not bin rubbish or have a fire/ bbq in an inappropriate 

place.  I hope you will reconsider your decision, it does not just affect us it will impact on the local economy 

and small businesses will suffer. 

The Council have stated on a number of occasions that, due to funding cuts, there is insufficient money 

available to carry out all the traffic management projects that the council would like to undertake. The 

banning of overnight parking by camper vans at West Hayling will make the lack of funding worse because:1) 

there will be a loss of revenue from overnight parking.2) there will be increased costs arising from the need 

to deploy more parking wardens to police the ban.3) therefore the ban will have a negative effect on the 

Council's finances.The timing of the ban, in the middle of the summer holiday season, is ill timed because 

visitors, who spend money which benefits the island economy and have been parking overnight for years, 

have had their holiday plans disrupted.

 Apparently the ban has been imposed for safety reasons arising from vans being parked too close together. 

This is a valid concern, but a complete ban is using a sledgehammer to crack a nut. The Council is clearly 

willing to incur the cost of deploying more wardens so there is no reason why an overnight parking layout 

for campervans cannot be devised and operated under the control of wardens. This would result in happy 

campervan visitors and less drain on the Councils finances.

 This ban should be reversed and an overnight parking scheme brought into operation.

I am so very sad to learn that you are withdrawing the priviledge  we have had to park and stay over at 

Hayling west beach. We have loved it but could see it has been getting out of hand with people staying for 

weeks on end and obviously not paying. Perhaps allowing parking at a higher rate e.g. £20 per night  with an 

ANPR system in force and perhaps a     barrier. And only booked on line for overnight stays.I understand that 

cuts have  made this a necessity as well as people taking liberties.  Please re consider it is a wonderful site. 

2ND objection The ban on overnighting motorhomes has been devastating. We are careful and appreciate of 

the beautiful place that is west beach at hayling. We would be delighted to see regulated parking here as are 

the majority of campervanners. Access to this beautiful resource has been removed due to the actions of a 

minority. Please allow responsible people back and keep the beach unspoilt and used for its purpose of 

enjoyment and the beauty of the English coastline. West beach is a beautiful place and we have enjoyed the 

wonderful views, warm water and fantastic local services for more than 10 years. To have this snatched 

away from us without warning, due to a minority of people who do not respect the area , is devastating. 

Living close to Hayling and using the beach facilities year round I feel that this action to restrict overnight 

sleeping in adapted vehicles is short sighted and sad. Why not allocate restricted parking to surf businesses 

and instructors so there is no access to motorhomes or campers ie in between the beach by the bench 

seating - these people then should pay for a permit to park in this restricted area. This then would allow for 

no crossover with visitors wishing to stayover night - a bit of investment in 6 meter bay marking between 

motorhome or camper slots would mean first come first served and those vehicles would park more 

efficiently than they currently do as there is no markings in place - as in cornwall if then people park outside 

the lines they get a ticket.With the volume of use and an increase of parking charges slightly,this would 

cover the cost and everyone would be happy . A little investment would allow for a better feeling towards 

the council - and happier visitors to Hayling Island- A shame that being busy due to exceptional weather has 

generated negativity when things should have been more positive and financially rewarding for the 

economy of Havant and Hayling Island.

We are a camper van community of whom also keen water sports fans. We can say we respect our 

environment and are privileged to have such an amazing beach to socialise, paddleboard and quite possibly 

camp? It’s just the minority that have to spoil it......quite possibly travellers?! This is a shame but they are 

allowed to do what they like and don’t seem to get moved on? Why not put up barriers so that good honest 

people that respect the area can pay and then be let out. If people don’t pay or stay another night they 

don’t get out simple? Maybe some CCTV put up? Or security patrol to drop in? Paid for from the revenue? 

It’s not hard people we can make this work I’d pay £20 to be able to camp so come on please keep the faith

The motorhome and campervan owners who frequent West beach on the whole are all responsible people, 

we valued the beautiful area and would take all health & safety precautions to protect it, all the vehicles and 

public. As motorhomes are fire retardant unlike a lot of caravans, tents etc. I fail to see why campsite 

spacing should apply, we are not camping we only need a spot to park over night to sleep...... these are 

becoming increasingly difficult to find. A lot of European visitors also used this peaceful spot to sleep over 

night while exploring the surrounding area during the day. We have often helped them to use Ringo to pay. 

Please reconsider and maybe state it is not a campsite, and instead of saying maximum 72 hours, say max 3 

consecutive nights. Thank you for giving us this chance to put our case. If awning canopies are taking up the 

space of another vehicle then they should pay for 2 spaces. Personally I am unable to prebook a site as I 

don't know in advance when I'm able to go.



We are local residents and enjoy the opportunity of being able to use the overnight parking with our 3 

children. We regularly park up and stay the night in our campervan. It is a facility that allows us to enjoy the 

outdoors close to home, takes the children away from technology with plenty of fresh air and quality time. It 

is very difficult to find venues within a short hop away which we can enjoy regularly over the summer 

months which does not cost a fortune and allows the children to keep up their community sporting 

commitments. I also like to support our local businesses as much as possible rather than taking our cash else 

where. This ban will really have a negative effect on our future outdoor leisure time as a family.

As a disabled person that travels from Yorkshire to your beach specially because there are very few beaches 

that I can park my motorhome close enough so I can actually access the beach there has got to be a better 

solution than just a blanket ban, if this goes through it’s yet another council that is taking away my right to 

park and access a beach. I have Rhumatoid Arthritis and it’s not going to get any better so please reconsider

I object to the above Experimental Order on the grounds that the recommendations made in the Fire Risk 

Assessment Report have not been considered. A Freedom of Information request was made to ask for full 

evidence on which the statement, made during the Cabinet Meeting on Wednesday 27th June 2018, that 

the current parking arrangements for motorhomes is not wholly effective is based and also full details, 

including evidence, of the health and safety grounds. This was answered by forwarding a copy of the Fire 

Safety Report produced for Havant BC . It is therefore assumed that this Report comprises the sole reason 

for the introduction of the Experimental Order. The Experimental Order states:

"It has been noted that motorhomes are parking to closely together which has serious health and safety 

implications in the event of a fire or explosion to the motorhome." The following Statement of Reason was 

provided by Havant BC:

"The FRA states that to reduce the risk of fire spreading between motorhomes the authority can control this 

by providing adequate spacing between vehicles, the recommended spacing is a minimum of 4 meters 

however it is recommended that 6 meters would reduce the risk significantly. To do this the authority would 

need to tarmac (binder and surface course) West Beach car park, the bays would have to be marked out 

with box junctions to ensure that the distance was adhered to. The estimated cost would be in the region of 

£650,000." However the actual recomendation in the FRA is that:

Havant Borough Council uses the CFPA Guide No 20:2012 Fire Safety In Camping Sites as the standard to be 

applied for deciding motorhome spacing. That the free distance between units should be at least 3 metres 

and where possible 4 metres.

This would mean that a 2.5m wide parking space would allow a vehicle to park and the occupants to exit the 

vehicle. With an additional 3 m (1.5 m either side) would mean than no Motorhome is less than 3 m apart. 

So the total width of the parking bay would be 5.5 m. The FRA goes on to say:

There are a number of ways that parking bays could be delineated, considering that this is not a tarmac site - 

it does not recommend tarmacing the car park but instead gives several examples of low cost methods of 

delineating parking bays, and also recomends that Havant Borough Council provide signage on what to do in 

the event of a fire and other safety information at strategic points around the car park. I would add that as 

the car park is currently deliniated with wooden posts it could be cost effective to use this method to mark 

motorhome parking bays also. The Havant BC Statement of Reason goes on to state:

"As the beach erodes (and or gets flooded) we would need to continuously make repairs to the car park at 

considerable costs of which we have no budget or funding

for." However, according to the FRA, there is no need to tarmac the car park, therefore the only ongoing Hayling should have been proud of providing this service as popular and much talked about on MH forums 

for leading the way in changing the way the UK should change and provide overnight stop-overs for MH's, 

but now the reverse is happening and we will avoid Hayling. There are too few campsites on the Island 

suitable for MH's and these have to be booked in advance and rarely provide single night stop-overs or even 

48 hours. Health and Safety is always used in the UK as an excuse to close things down. At the very least the 

council just needed a little more thought in a way of marking MH spaces that complied with your H&S 

requirements, if this is your main reason, rather than shut everything down.There are far too few overnight 

stop-overs in the UK and local councils need to look at Europe to see how well Motorhomes are received. 

Local towns provide overnight parking for MH's and usually for free, making use of Car parks not used at 

night. In return we buy provisions or eat from the local shops and cafes. In the UK we're even willing to pay 

overnight parking fees considerably higher than Europe for less facilities, but these are still lower than UK 

campsites like to charge us Motorhomers. We had to cancel our planned trip to Hayling due to the closure in 

August, as visited in June and knew nothing of the planned closure..... we went further down the coast so 

our business was lost to HBC and unfortunately the Island's businesses also lost out ... multiply this loss by 

the amount of MH's who will have to do the same thing and a lot of revenue is lost to the Island ..... very 

short sighted HBC and not in the interest of the people you should be representing.

 Maybe look at one of the other large carparks near to the beach that may be easier to control the spacing 

of Motorhomes if thats your main concern, but again some European campsites pack MH's in tighter than 

you were seeing along the beach carpark, and I'm talking about Belgium, the home of our supposedly Euro 

laws the UK still like to quote.

The motorhome parking offers the oportunity for those who live some distance away to come and enjoy 

Hayling Island and support the local businesses without having to resort to hotels or parking on grass 

campsite pitches in the winter months. Upon your experiental removal of the provision we have made plans 

to travel with our motorhome to alternative areas in the South who are encouraging motorhomes to come, 

stay and spend their money within the local community.From our own experience, we personally spend c. 

£1000 per annum enjoying the area and expect that the outcome will put the loss to the council and 

businesses in Hayling Island within the area at a significant amount of money. This cannot be good for the 

local area at a time when businesses are seeing a slow down due to both the time of year and the weakness 

of the GBP.

We often visit Hayling island simply because the motorhome overnight parking is provided. Now that it is 

stopped we simply wont visit as obviously we are not welcome. 

Such a shame the local businesses and public facilities including the slipway at the ferry boat inn will just 

simply loose my business and money. Are you aware that the West beach carpark is listed in European 

stopover books which invite foreign visitors to visit the island? 

I find it so sad that the council are looking backwards and not moving with the times, especially as the local 

campsites are just simply not fit for purpose for use with a motorhome and the lifestyle one provides.



Why cant the council paint the fence posts white, say every 8 meters or a set distance, then motorhomes 

must park central to these posts. This will make sure the distance you require (despite this distance not 

applying anywhere else in Europe!) is adhered to, if a motorhome is not parked next to the white post it gets 

a penalty ticketThis will make sure the distance you require (despite this distance not applying anywhere 

else in Europe!) is adhered to, if a motorhome is not parked next to the white post it gets a penalty ticket. 

Simple really
Banned on the grounds of fire safety? I've never heard of such rubbish. It smacks a lot of inventing a weak 

reason to stop people parking there overnight and enjoying the fine sunsets and sunrises, so that you can 

quietly sell off that land to developers in the future. It's not a campsite so why apply those regulations in the 

first place? If you are genuinely worried about fire risk, put signs up asking overnight campers to respect the 

minimum distance (or risk losing the privilege), get the ticket inspector to remind people if necessary while 

he is doing his rounds, or even paint or mark 'night bays' at the required widths. But an outright ban? A 

weak, kneejerk response to save the trouble of finding a solution.

having recently  purchased a campervan and enjoyed days only enjoyed days only in West Beach I have 

found it a lovely place to stay except for the extremely unfriendly almost hostile beach hut owners) and had 

been planning an overnight stop.  I now am lucky enough to have spare income which I had been spending 

ot Hayling Island, I always eat out, often with the Grandchildren.  Therefore four adult meals, 3 children 

meals, ice cream and two lots of parking fees are therefore now regularly going to be spent elsewhere.  

Hayling Island is in desparate need of regeneration and by driving away campervan owneres is not going to 

achieve this.  In one season I have learn't by personal experience , that the beach hut owners think that this 

is "their" beach.  They block you in with their cars (if parked too close together there wouldnt be space for 

them to do this!), they put out their beach chairs to reserve parking spaces for family members and friends.  

So why is the council victimising campervan owners?  We do bring a lot of income into the area, after all if 

you can afford thousands of pounds worth of campervan you do have spare capital.  This income will no go 

to another area adn the beach hut owners can have their beach back.  But Hayling Island and it's local 

businesses need us and the money that we spend on the Island. 

My husband and I have enjoyed staying for the night in our motorhome on West Beach for 3 years now. We 

mostly stay for one night in the low season to enjoy the view, the peace, and to have a meal in the Inn on 

the Beach, and not have to drive home afterwards. We have never seen any problems there, no litter and no 

excess noise. Mostly in the winter months there are only between 2 and 4 like minded vans there, so parking 

apart is not an issue. We didn’t go during August, but I don’t see why, if it was so busy then, that we should 

be penalised all year round. We have been happy to pay the overnight charge, even though the facilities are 

closed after 5 pm, and wonder why some of the revenue hasn’t already been used to mark out some parking 

bays so motorhomes can park according to the regulations, although we’ve not had to do this in other areas. 

Why are the council happy to loose this extra revenue? I hope we can come to a fairer arrangement which 

takes into account the views of all parties. 

Hello - I am writing with regards to the overnight ban at Hayling beach. We have been enjoying this beach 

for a long time, staying overnight in our campervan, usually just for 1 night. It is a wonderful way to spend 

time with the family and appreciate nature with the children. We've so many amazing memories sitting on 

the beach late at night or being the first in the sea for an early morning swim before the crowds of people 

arrive. It makes me so sad to think that this amazing quality family time could be taken away from us. There 

is such a fantastic community down at Hayling beach that we have never experienced anywhere else. Our 

motto is to always make sure we leave the beach in a better state than we found it - this usually means 

scouting around for litter dropped by others during the day. The people who stay overnight passionately 

care about Hayling beach and it makes me sad that it is these people who will suffer the consequences of 

the ban. Please, please do reconsider - there is a whole community of people ready to make this work if you 

will give us the opportunity.

This is a community meet up place, people who use this car park spend good money on the island in the 

shops and cafe ect. That will make a financial impact on the local business. Also it makes good revenue on 

the parking charges. It gains nothing to ban the parking. As for fire regulations, just stipulate that there must 

be a certain space between vans. Please don’t close this parking area for Motorhomes



Even though I am Hayling resident we use the overnight parking on a regular basis throughout the year, it is 

a lovely place to park and relax in our camper when we have a spare Saturday evening. I strongly feel that 

this ban is an infringement on mine (and others) personal freedom, the ban was introduced 

undemocratically without prior consultation with the public and users of the facility, and without proper 

justification. People have been allowed to pay to park overnight at West Beach for many years, and have 

done so without incident. If the council feels there is a risk to people using the facility, despite no incidents 

in the past, then it is the councils responsibility to introduce guidelines and provide information for people 

to follow when using the facility. Of course it is down to the individual to choose to abide by the rules, and I 

appreciate not all people will follow the advice, however, I do feel that regular users of the overnight parking 

will respect any information provided by the council. Summer 2018 saw an unprecedented number of 

people visiting the beach, I have never seen it so busy, so perhaps the space could be limited to a certain 

number of vehicles and a ban on tents being pitched on the common. Over the bank holiday weekend in the 

summer there were many people camping in tents and those will not have paid the overnight parking 

charges and effectively had a free weekend, these people should be advised to use local camp sites, epcially 

taking in to consideration tents do not have any proper sanitory facilities. This should not lead to a blanket 

ban on motorhomes and campervans who have used this facility for years. In addition to this I would like to 

suggest that, if the number of vehicles is to be limited, then the overnight space could be moved to the far 

end of the carpark - say from the BBQ area to the beach huts near the golf course. If this were to be the case 

the council could easily mark out bays for the use of overnight stays, marked out using pebbles from the 

beach placed into the carpark surface perhaps? I am also concerned about the loss of revenue for the 

immediate local businesses and those in West Town, local water sports shops and food take away business 

will also suffer, The Inn on the Beach has reconised the value of business brought to the area and have 

adjusted their parking rules accordingly, and whilst Hayling depends on the seasonal business for the 

immediate local economy I can only feel this ban is directly detrimental to that revenue, and sends out a 

"tourists not welcome here" message to visitors. 

 The councils leaflet advising visitors to use the local camp site facilities is nonsense and clearly has not been 

researched, the local camp sites - The Oven, Fleet Farm, Fishery Creek in particular - are always fully booked 

during the summer months, and do not allow one night stop overs, and in some cases require a minimum of 

three nights to be booked in advance. This is of no interest to most users of the West Beach car park 

because most visitors here will be visiting for the day, and only require a single night stop, they could be 

here for a special visit to simply enjoy the tranquility of the location or simply passing through on their 

No different to beach huts. In fact gaps between vans normally wider.  Motorhomes have fire extinguishers 

on board.  Motorhomes bring visitors which bring money to the area.  Motorhomes have bins and take their 

rubbish home with them instead of leaving on the beach.  Motorhomes discourage dogging and drug 

taking/dealing because of their presence.
This order is totally unnecessary as not only will it impact on ordinary beach loving responsible camper van 

owners and Anglers it will reduce income earned by all local businesses  and council parking fees which will 

have a negative effect on the local area.  Other UK beach parking areas have an overnight facility for parking 

campers.  Dont punish the many for actions by the few.

After hearing that the beachlands car park is now out of bounds for motorhomes/camper vans or any 

vehicle that someone sleeps in after 10.00pm - 06-00am is the wrong way forward, Hayling Island will no 

longer attract people with said vehicles to.I have been planning a 3 day trip to Hayling Island for the last 6 

months so that my wife and i can do some sea fishing...have meals from the local takeaways and buy items 

from your local shops. But we have now cancelled our visit (the ist one since i was taken there as a child, i 

am now 66 yrs old) We have now changed our route and holiday and will be spending it Fishing at EASTNEY 

Southsea. This will be a great money looser to local business over the years if said vehicles are banned from 

staying overnight.
Hi we own a motorhome we love Hayling Island as do our grandchildren. Loved staying on the beach and 

using the local facilities especially out of season:). Maybe get marked bays and easier ticket machine. As the 

original one was very difficult to use I imagine some just didn’t bother to pay. I would happy pay £20 for 24 

hours parking no return within 3 days. Then issue a fine if found to be doing this.This would enable safe 

parking and more revenue into the hbc and local businesses :) it a shame to have lost it altogether. We don’t 

want free parking. We would just like to wake up to a beautiful view in the morning and sit there watching 

the sun go down The simple things in life that bring so much pleasure in this hectic world. Thankyou for 

listening:)

Having been a long standing visitor to Hayling over the past 40 years I have made use of West Beach car park 

on numerous occasions. During more recent times since owning my camper van I have also been fortunate 

enough to be able to make use of the overnight parking facilities, and on one occasion staying for 2 nights. I 

have always been mindful of the 72 hour rule and that is is as clearly stated, an overnight parking facility 

NOT a campsite. I can understand the concerns of locals who have I am sure like me seen visitors abuse this 

rule by Camping rather than parking as I have seen people erect awnings and set out their “pitch”. Maybe 

inadvertently the provision of a 72 hr /3 night stay sadly encouraged them to do this. Whilst I totally support 

the need to make it clear that West Beach is NOT a campsite and make a stand on those that have abused 

this wonderful provision, I feel the decision to exclude all SHORT term overnight parking is extremely harsh 

on those who have responsibly made use of the facility and very much appreciated it. Maybe a possible 

compromise would be to reduce the length of stay to a maximum of 2 nights and to increase significantly the 

penalty charge for those not abiding by any new regulations. If this is not an option then reduce it even 

further permitting only 1 overnight stay per week. This would then mean those wishing to visit and camp on 

Hayling for a longer period would need to make use of the local campsites rather than the beach. 

I do hope common sense will prevail in any decision that is made as I feel it is possible to meet the needs of 

all who genuinely made use of the overnight parking rather than penalise all for the minority who sadly 

abused the previous regulations.



To whom it may Concern 

I am just part of a growing group of people that object to the proposals by Havant Council. The ban on 

overnight campers is one that could be easily dismissed. Unfortunately W e live in a society where all our 

civil liberties are being slowly eroded, and this situation is once again a case of the minority of inconsiderate 

campervan owners destroying the beauty and freedom of camping by a beach, for a majority of considerate 

owners .

This site could be lightly managed , and fees gathered in parking spaces measured thus ensuring structure, 

and regulation, but without the need for a total ban .. instead you have imposed a total ban , it’s like using a 

selgehammer to break into a walnut! 

This site could go into profit given the correct light management .. there are many municipal camping sites In 

France where this is the case . 

local business would still benefit from the revenue generated by people using the site, and Hayling Island 

would very much be a go to place for visitors and families alike. It would be a win win situation , as opposed 

to the lose lose situation which Havant Council has imposed .. There is a way forward that would benifit 

Hayling Island .. it is whether or not there is a Will by the council to do so.. 

on a more personal note , I am deeply saddened by this ban .. my daughter is disabled , we do not object to 

paying a fee but there are very few perks to her being disabled. Going to the beach and being able to wake 

up and look at the sea directly in front of you was fantastic, and she loved it .. it has been difficult to explain 

why it has been suddenly stopped . I do not think you should tar everyone with the same brush , and her life 

is now being robbed once again of a simple pleasure that gave her great joy. 

 yours sincerely 

I think banning motor homes from the west beachlands car park overnight as there’s risk of fire because 

parked to close to each other is absolutely pathetic can somebody tell me of a car park anywhere that 

vehicles of any type are not parked too close to each other and what changes from the hours of 10 pm to 6 

am than that of daytime hours motor homes bring cash to the island in many ways including shops, pubs , 

food stores fuel stations and of course the car park itself as there’s always been a charge for camping 

overnight it’s not near residents to cause problems with noise and not close to any buildings so in my 

opinion not a problem at all and I live on the island

I am disgusted by the recent ban off motor homes on Hayling beach. It brings additional income to the island 

and you have now put on more patrols which is using more TAX PAYERS MONEY. Also you are now charging 

us to use the beach throughout the winter as well. It really concerns me who makes these ridiculous decision 

concerning Hayling island. They obviously don’t live here and I do think there ideas and proposals are 

ridiculous. Please don’t start me on housing. All that you keep stating in your ridiculous reports is the need 

for new housing to fund projects. WE WONT BE ABLE TO GET ON AND OFF THE ISLAND. It’s bad enough 

now. It doesn’t take a genius to realise you need the infrastructure before you build new homes. Access on 

and off the island, schools, doctors etc. I also don’t want you ruining this island as myself and the residents 

love this place. I have lost faith in Havant county council.

It isn't clear to me what factors have influenced the establishment of this order. The ostensible reason given, 

that there is a fire risk seems to be illogical. If there was such a risk, then it would exist at all times, not just 

overnight. In fact, the risk is probably greater at other times when people might be cooking. That being said, 

it would be possible to mark motorhome parking spaces relatively cheaply using simple posts. I would guess 

that one or two nights' parking fees would cover the cost. As I said, I suspect that the real reason for the ban 

is local vested interests, but certainly not from the Inn on the Beach or the Ferry Boat etc. where we and 

others have spent quite a lot.

I was born in Portsmouth and visited Hayling beach many times as a boy. I took up windsurfing and have 

sailed at West Beach every year for 40 years. More recently, being partly retired, I stayed overnight at West 

Beach in a motorhome. Now I see that overnight stays are temporarily suspended. I would like to object and 

make the following observations:One van, a converted mobile library, has parked there continuously for 

several years. You can see them, every day, on the beach webcam. Would it be acceptable if I also ignored 

the charges and restrictions?I find it hard to believe that safe bays for overnight parking would cost 

£500,000. Not a single motorhome site in the country spends that much for infrastructure and they throw in 

water supply and electric. I believe simple ground markings are all that is required to make the car park 

compliant with safety regulations. If not, then none of the private sites on Hayling are compliant with 

regulations. What is the council safety officers view on this?In my experience the motorhomes have not 

been too numerous to present a nuisance. No more so than all of our windsurfing vans, kitesurfing vans, 

horse trailers, etc. In all cases people are enjoying themselves. Busy days are when lots of people are 

enjoying themselves. Live and let live.The beach is a mess and is being made worse by the works that have 

been going on for the last two years, at what cost? Surely a lot more than putting in some motorhome 

overnight parking bays. I have had many days spoiled by earthmoving vehicles. I have no idea why they were 

there or why the beach huts were removed. I cannot find any information on the council website. It does 

not look as though the council has the beach users interests at heart. What is the motive for destroying the 

beachfront?Hayling beach is a community resource for the whole of the community, including Havant and 

beyond. Local residents have a say, but they must concede that it is a public beach which the public should 

be free to use in many different ways. Just as they can feely visit all the other beaches in the country. This 

freedom is an important part of our national character and heritage.The local businesses rely on tourism. I 

cannot imagine how much I have spent whilst visiting the island. Making the island hostile to tourism is to be 

hostile to the local business community.• Provide more information about the works currently being 

conducted on the beach. Site information notices would be a minimum.

• Keep overnight stays for motorhomes, at least in reasonable numbers.

• Kick out permanent beach residents.

• Keep Hayling open to the public for all the recreational uses that can sustainably be supported.

Additional information: Well Havant Council you have certainly applied DOUBLE STANDARDS 

allowing camping/motorhomes to the kite surfing armada.  You either have a blanket ban or not, 

not just when there is an event.  Look at Europe & there motorhome Aires, even Gorton who we 

are twinned with have an aire. You are a disgraceful council.

Objects



    Hello, it was was with a very heavy heart when I visited west beach on Hayling Island today and found I 

was no longer allowed  to park overnight in my Motorhome, I have been coming for several  years and enjoy 

all the amenities together with a lovely meal in the evening in the ever improving and really nice Restuarant 

in  the Inn on the beach, we usually come about four times a year  normally in the winter months and will 

miss it very much. I was rather hoping that councils would actually improve facilities for  motorhomers like 

on the continent to attract their lucrative  business instead of reducing them and turning them away, it’s  

such a shame as it is the perfect spot and so convenient for the ferries you could have made a very attractive 

stopover for the  ever increasing Motorhome fraturnity! I used to pay the £6 day rate then the £15 night 

rate and then the day rate agai and  occasionally stay an extra night as well.  I hope the local businesses are 

happy with your decision or did  you not consult them?   I would welcome hearing your reasons for taking 

this     extraordinary decision,

Your proposal is based on a false premise on the assessment of risk. Firstly the times between which they 

may not park are the times that are the safest as the van would be occupied and as almost all or all have 

smoke alarms the occupants would be alerted to and could deal with any fire before it could take hold. 

Secondly on the continent , where Motorhomes are even more popular, there are over 7000 

aires/stellplatz/sostas which are overnight parking places specifically allocated for motorhomes (caravans 

are excluded) where parking is allowed in close proximity.  I have carefully researched the literature and can 

find no record of any fires let alone spreading of fires. So the actual risk is zero or infinitesimal. There is one 

report of a fire on a Uk campsite with 6m spacing where an awning bridged the gap. The upside of any risk is 

a vast increase in potential income for the local economy as motorhomes often like to eat in local 

restaurants, drink in bars and purchase food etc in local shops. The ability to walk back to a secure parking 

increases all of these. As the councils problem appears to be th3 cost of tarmac and white lining my 

suggestion would be to not tarmac but to define the edge of parking slots by posts at required intervals as 

this system is already used on many campsites as it’s easier to drive or reverse looking at posts rather than 

lines. These posts can be suitably spaced to comply with fire regulations. I am will8ng to provide more 

information on continental practices. I request the parking of motorhomes overnight be permitted taking 

the above in to account. 

I believe that everyone has a right to enjoyment as long as they don't cause issues. Councils that keep 

shutting car parks or put in height barriers are removing the option for some people to enjoy themselves. Its 

all very well to blame people in Motorhomes but I have cleared up litter in places where I have stayed and 

cleaned beaches. I had intended to do more this year as I am between jobs. I have seen cars full of kids 

throw out bags of fast food rubbish from their cars, seen local residents fly tip. I've reported it to police and 

councils no action taken. We should all be working together for the enjoyment and benefit of all and trying 

to protect this planet from the ravages of what Humans are doing to it. Trying to save it for the young.



P
u

b
lic S

e
rvice

 P
la

za

H
a

va
n

t. H
a

n
ts. P

O
9
 2

A
X

C
ivic C

e
n

tre
 R

o
a

d

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
:

P
la

n
n

in
g

E
m

a
il:

In
te

rn
e
t:

cu
sto

m
e

r.se
rvice

s@
h

a
va

n
t.g

o
v.u

k
w

w
w

.h
a

va
n

t.g
o
v.u

k

(0
2

3
) 9

2
4

7
 4

1
7

4

C
ivil E

n
g
in

e
e
rin

g
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
d
sca

p
e

2
0
1
8
_
2
2

V
A

R
IO

U
S

1
0
.0

5
.2

0
1
9

2
0

1
8

_
2

2
/0

1
0

A
H

A
H

S
W





P
u

b
lic S

e
rvice

 P
la

za

H
a

va
n

t. H
a

n
ts. P

O
9
 2

A
X

C
ivic C

e
n

tre
 R

o
a

d

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
:

P
la

n
n

in
g

E
m

a
il:

In
te

rn
e
t:

cu
sto

m
e

r.se
rvice

s@
h

a
va

n
t.g

o
v.u

k
w

w
w

.h
a

va
n

t.g
o
v.u

k

(0
2

3
) 9

2
4

7
 4

1
7

4

C
ivil E

n
g
in

e
e
rin

g
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
d
sca

p
e

2
0
1
8
_
2
2

V
A

R
IO

U
S

1
0
.0

5
.2

0
1
9

2
0

1
8

_
2

2
/0

1
1

A
H

A
H

S
W





Q1a - What reasons do you use ferry 

Point to Inn on the Beach.  If other, 

please state Number of comments

Arriving late during the week, spending the 
night in the van and leaving before rush hour. 26

I used to take my campervan to West Beach 
and enjoy staying overnight .

Being able as a disabled pensioner to get out 
and about in our campervan and enjoy the 
views

Campervan - please bring back the overnight 
camping. Perhaps in designated areas? 
(Commented x 3)

Motorhome

Motorhome

Frequent trips in our motorhome

I have a motorhome and I am disabled and 
it’s one of the few beaches in the UK I can 
access

Leisure in my campervan

Motor home

Overnight camping

Overnights  in the past

Prior to overnight parking ban

Relacing for the day in the motorhome.

Sitting in my motorhome.

Staying in my motorhome.

Staying overnight in campervan

Used to do overnight campervan staying, 
until you stopped it.

used to use it to stay over til the ban ruined it

Visiting ALL year in my campervan

We have a campervan and love nothing more 
that spending the weekend there when it was 
legal.

We used to come down in the camper and 
spend money in the local shops bars but now 
we can't.

We used to park our motor home here and 
walk  dog walking swimming and supporting 
the local economy



Q2a - What reasons do you use In on the 

Beach to Beachlands.  If other, please state Number of comments

I used to enjoy staying overnight in my campervan 14

Campervan - please bring back the overnight 
camping. Perhaps in designated areas?

Campervanning and overnight stays

Camping

Frequent trips in our motorhome

In.my campervan

Motorhome camping

Overnight camping

Overnight stays in a campervan.

Overnights  stay in the past

Use the Elsan point for my campervan toilet

Used to come in motorhome

Visiting ALL year in my campervan

We have a campervan and love nothing more that 
spending the weekend there when it was legal



Q3a - What reasons do you use 

Beachlands to Eastoke Corner.  If other, 

please state

Number of comments

refreshemt caravan only 12

Campervan - please bring back the overnight 
camping. Perhaps in designated areas?

Camping

Frequent trips in our motorhome

Motor home stopover

Motorhome

motorhoming

Overnight camping

Using my campervan

Visiting ALL year in my campervan

We have a campervan and love nothing more 
that spending the weekend there when it was 
legal

Would like to be able to sleep overnight in my 
campervan



Q4a - What reasons do you use Eastoke Corner to 

Creek Road.  If other, please state

Number of comments

Campervan - please bring back the overnight camping. 
Perhaps in designated areas? 5
Camping

Frequent trips in our motorhome

motorhoming

Overnight camping



Q5a - What reasons do you use Creek Road to 

Sandy Point.  If other, please state

Number of comments

Campervan - please bring back the overnight camping. 
Perhaps in designated areas? 7
Camping

Frequent trips in our motorhome

motorhoming

motorhoming

motorhoming

Overnight camping



Q8a - How do you usually get to the 

seafront? - If other please state

Number of comments

Motorhome 20

Campervan 17



Q9 - What is the best thing about Hayling Seafront?

Motorhome / caravan

motorhoming

Used to be that it was popular for overnight campervan 

Camping

It was the little community of campers at the weekend



Q10 - What would have made your visit better?

Positive view on Motorhomes (include comments on overnight camping) No. Negative view on Motorhomes No.

Overnight parking allowed 44 No overnight parking 10
Ability to pay my money and stop in my motorhome overnight Enforcement of overnight stay regulations

all night camping

If people would adhere to the No Overnight Parking rules. General 

respect for other beach users.

Allowing campervans to say over night  Better car park control to stop overnight campervans/campers

Being able to sleep overnight in my campervan no motorhomes
Being able to stay over on the beachfront in my little camoervan No motorhomes blocking up the parking spaces
Being able to stay overnight SEGREGATION OF MOTORHOMES FROM GENERAL PARKING, 
Being able to stay overnight No carvans in the car park as they take up a lot of space
Being able to stay overnight in the motorhome and enjoy our time longer. No Camper vans. Car park west of inn on the beach is becoming too busy to park despite paying £120 for annual ticket. Bus size vans are inappropriate
Being able to stay overnight on the beach No camper vans in the car park (take up too much space), 
Being about to stay overnight without being fined Banning motor homes
Being allowed to park overnight , 

Being allowed to park overnight in designated bays for a fee

being allowed to stay overnight as a responsible adult in a self contained campervan

Better  ( proper ) facilities of overnighting in Motorhome including waste disposal

Overnight camping with 24/7 toilet/shower access. 

Bring back overnight parking
Bring back overnight parking for motor homes - some still do it so the council is loosing out on 

loads of money (local businesses are missing out as well)

Campers welcome
Able to stay overnight in Campervan to SUP first thing in the morning and enjoy the beach in the 

evening.

overnight parking, chemical waste disposal.

If the overnight ban was lifted

If you still allowed motorhome's to stay overnight

Less campervans

Lifting of the overnight ban.

Lifting the ban for overnight sleeping in your motorhome

Overnight facilities

Overnight motorhoming

Please bring back the overnight camping. Perhaps in designated areas?

Reasonable fee for overnighting

Somewhere to park my motorhome over night please

Staying overnight in my campervan

The ability to stopover 1 night per week

To be able to spend the odd night there and wake up to the sound of the sea

overnight parking allowed

We used to park our camper on west beach overnight for £15.   I used to love sitting with my 

hubby night fishing till the tide turned. Beautiful quiet nights, others with campers would wander 

over for a friendly chat over a cup of tea. Then a couple of hours sleep before heading to the 

cafe for breakfast before leaving for home.  Such wonderful memories.

Better car park control to stop overnight campervans/campers

Allowing motor home and campers to overnight

Being able to camp all year

Being able to park overnight in my Campervan

Reinstate overnight parking, splash park, bigger / more play park

overnight camping

Being able to camp overnight in campervan

Not banning motorhomes

motorhomes not being banned



Q11 - What do you feel is missing from the seafront?

Positive view on Motorhomes (include comments on overnight camping) No. Negative view on Motorhomes No.

Moterhome / campervan areas 57 Ban overnight 2

Areas for campervans to stay overnight, which will bring more income to the island. Barriers to stop overnight camping by campervans
Being able to park up overnight beach patrols to prevent overnight tent camping on beach.
Ability to camp overnight in campervans.

Mark overnight bay for Motorhomes

Motorhome overnight

Motorhome overnight facility

Motorhome overnight stays

Overnight motorhoming

Overnight staying

Overnight stays

The facility/permission to sleep overnight in my campervan

The opportunity to overnight park

Camper vans being allowed to park overnight.

Camper vans being allowed to park overnight.

We stopped visiting this year due to the motorhome ban (even though we never stayed 

overnight) - We prefer to go somewhere else where we feel more welcome

availability to park and stay in campervan with the right facilites

Campervans

Staying over in campervans

Camper vans . I understand that large Motorhomes were abusing the beach on West 

Beach but that was a small minority . Why ban us all ?

Motorhome and camper area

Motorhome campers and the great atmosphere we all bring to the island

Motorhomes

The freedom we had to stay over (paying as we all did to be able to)

Motor home stopover point

Motor homes

Dedicated overnight parking for camper vans at West Beach

Overnight camper parking 

 MOTORHOME AREA because it contributes to local eccconomy

allow overnight parking again -

Designated motorhome overnight parking bays.

Facilities for overnight parking

overnight parking for camper vans

Motor home parking

Motorhome and campervan parking for 24 hours

Motorhome overnight parking

Motorhome overnight parking. 

Over night parking for Campervans

Overnight parking  water tabs  cold showers  

overnight parking for campervans

Overnight parking for motorhomes

overnight motor home parking
Since the ban on overnight parking the place is a ghost town unloved and uncared for 

and polluted with raw sewage which is heartbreaking to see. I have been a visitor for 

many years and stopped overnight on a few occasions, just staying for a night not setting 

up as a camp which sadly some did.  It WAS an overnight facility NOT a campsite and 

sadly some abused this and ruined it for the majority of caring and responsible people.  

How short sighted you have been HBC in destroying something that was once a hive of 

activity and had such a lovely feel. For me for less parking cost I drive to wittering yes I 

know I can’t park overnight but the beach is clean and it’s managed well. Shame on you 

HBC

Overnight parking for camper vans.

Understanding re motorhome parking overnight

Motorhomes

Camping in campervan overnight

Camping, overnight parking

Free parking and overnight staying for campers

allocated parking for camper vans
Please bring back the overnight camping. Perhaps in designated areas?

the ability to camp overnight

all night camping

Overnight camping with 24/7 toilet/shower access.

overnight camping 

Chichester Avenue car park should have a day time motor home only parking area,  it is 

large enough and has a large grass area suitable for them.

Camp site

Safe car parking. Particularly for camper vans



Q25 - Have you experienced any issues in accessing the beach as a result of  your disability or long term health condition? If yes, please give deailts

not allowed to park overnight














	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Cabinet Lead Delegated Decisions, Minutes from Meetings etc
	Report

	6 Corporate Performance report 2019/20 Quarter 2
	Cabinet Briefing HBC_Qtr2_Monitoring_Report_V3_GTproofread
	6.2 Indicator Reports HBC Q2
	6.3 Healthcheck_Q2_HBC_GTproofread
	Place
	REGENERATION
	Promotion of havant borough


	Customers
	Finance
	Quarter 2 2019-20
	Forecast variances from budget

	Staff
	Organisational Development Strategy

	Governance
	Health & Safety
	Emergency Planning & BUsiness continuity
	Corporate Governance Board & Risk


	6.3 Healthcheck_Q2_HBC_GTproofread.pdf
	Place
	REGENERATION
	Promotion of havant borough


	Customers
	Finance
	Quarter 2 2019-20
	Forecast variances from budget

	Staff
	Organisational Development Strategy

	Governance
	Health & Safety
	Emergency Planning & BUsiness continuity
	Corporate Governance Board & Risk


	6.3 Healthcheck_Q2_HBC_GTproofread.pdf
	Place
	REGENERATION
	Promotion of havant borough


	Customers
	Finance
	Quarter 2 2019-20
	Forecast variances from budget

	Staff
	Organisational Development Strategy

	Governance
	Health & Safety
	Emergency Planning & BUsiness continuity
	Corporate Governance Board & Risk



	7 Council Tax Support Scheme 2020/21
	8 Council Tax Empty Homes Premium
	9 Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Strategy
	App A HBCstrategy final
	APP B HBC Homelessness RS  ACTION PLAN
	App C FINALHavant homeless review v10

	10 Overnight Parking for Motorhomes on Hayling Island
	App A West Beach Public Consultation Comments 2018 2019.v2
	App Ba St Andrews Option 1
	App Bb St Andrews Option 2
	Appendix C HI Survey - Motorhomes
	Appendix D Beachlands Order

	12 Investment in Additional Car Parking



